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The Honorable Pat Miller, Chairman )
Tennessee Regulatory Authonity

460 James Robertson Parkway

Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Attn: Sharla Dillon, Dockets and Records

3
Dear Chairman Miller: EE

0400369

On behalf of RTC Communications, Inc., the original and thirteen (13) copies of the
Application for Certificate to Provide Facilities-Based and Resold Competing Local
Telecommunications Services 1s sent to you in accordance with the requirements of the
Tennessee Regulatory Authonty.

Also enclosed 1s the required $25.00 filing fee. Copies of this Application have been served

to the Tennessee Incumbent Local Exchange Service Providers as indicated by the
Certificate of Service. f

If you should have any questions regarding thus Application, please contact the undersigned.
Sincerely,
=

John Becci
Manager - Regulatory Affairs

on behalf of
Alice Evitt Bandy |
Chief Executive Officer
RTC Communications, Inc.
Enclosures
cc: Michael Wallin, RTC Communications, Inc.
Echelon Building 11, Sutte 200 Eagandale Corporate Center, Suite 310 Brookside Court, Suite 135 547 South Oakview Lane
9430 Research Boulevard, Aushn, Texas 78759 1380 Corporate Center Curve, Fagon, Minnesota 55121 4625 Alexander Drive, Alpharetta, Georgia 30022 Bountiful, Urah 84010
phone 512-338-0473, fax 512-346-0822 phone 651-452-2660, fax 651-452-1909 phone 770-569-2105, fax 770-410-1608 phone 801-294-4576, fax 801-294-5124

1
Telecommunic;arions Advisors Since 1962




Before the
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
FOR A CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE FACILITIES-BASED AND RESOLD

COMPETING LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE
FACILITIES-BASED AND RESOLD
COMPETING LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Pursuant to applicable Tennessee Statutes and the Rules and Regulations of the
Tennessee Regulatory Authority and Section 253 of the Federal Telecommunications Act
0f 1996 (“Act”), RTC Communications, Inc. (“RTC”) respectfully requests that the
Tennessee Regulatory Authonty (“TRA”) grant to RTC authority to provide facilities-
based and resold competing local telecommunications services, including exchange
access telecommunications services, within the State of Tennessee. RTC is willing and
able to comply with all applicable Federal Communications Commussion rules and
regulations. In addition, RTC 1s willing and able to comply with all applicable rules and
regulations in Tennessee pertaining to the provision of competing local
telecommunications services. TCA 65-4-201

In support of its Application, RTC submits the following:

1. The full name and address of the Applicant is:

RTC Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869
Telephone: (706) 965-2345

Questions regarding this application should be directed to:

John Becci

Manager — Regulatory Affairs
John Staurulakis, Inc.

6315 Seabrook Road
Seabrook, Maryland 20706
Telephone: (301) 459-7590
Facsimile. (301) 577-5575



Contact name and address at the Company is:

Michael Wallin

Regulatory Manager

RTC Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869
Telephone: (706) 965-1721
Facsimile: (706) 965-1720

Organmizational Chart of Corporate Structure:

See Exhibit A

Corporate Information:

RTC Communications, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Georgia on April 22,
1985. A copy of RTC’s Articles of Incorporation and amendments are provided
in Exhibit B. A copy of RTC’s Authority to transact business in the State of
Tennessee is provided in Exhibit C. The names and addresses of the principal
corporate officers are in Exhibit D.

RTC Communications, Inc. will not maintain an office in Tennessee. The name
of RTC’s registered agent in Tennessee is:

Stephen Jacoway
547 Market Street
Chattanooga, TN 37202

The biographies of the principal officers and any other key technical staff are in
Exhibit E.



4. RTC possesses the managenal, technical, and financial ability to provide local

telecommunications service in the State of Tennessee as demonstrated below:

A.

Financial Qualifications

In support of its financial qualifications, RTC Communications, Inc.
submuts the consolidated financial statements for years ended December
31,2001 and 2002 , and the independent auditor’s report for its parent
company, Ringgold Telephone Company (Ringgold) in Exhibit F. Year
2003 financial statements are not available at this time. Ringgold
Telephone Company 1s an incumbent local exchange provider in Georgia.
Ringgold serves approximately 14,300 customers in Catoosa County,
Georgia. Ringgold’s principal line of business 1s local communications.
Other lines of business include long distance, wireless, internet, digital and
video services.

RTC Communications, Inc. has financing vehicles in place to ensure
adequate liquidity in meeting its anticipated funding needs RTC is an
operational business entity that has been operating since April 1985. In
the event and to the extent they may occur, recurring operating losses,
working capital deficiencies and negative cash flows from operating
activities will be covered by the current operations of RTC
Communications, Inc., or the company may choose to draw a loan from
financial institutions that it currently does business with (please refer to
the Financial Statements in Exhibit F.)

As RTC initially will provide service on a resold and unbundled network
element platform, RTC requires no additional capitalization or financing
nor does 1t expect to incur significant expenses to provide intrastate
service. RTC may purchase or construct facilities at a later date, but has
no plans to do so in the immediate future.

Exhibit F includes the proforma income statement, proforma balance
sheet, and proforma cash flow projected for RTC Communications, Inc.
for the first three years of operation.

Exhibit G RTC initially will provide service on a resold and unbundled
network element platform At this time, RTC does not require
construction of facilities of 1ts own 1n Tennessee. Since no capital
expenditures are needed at this time, or in the foreseeable future, a capital
ex;pendltures budget 1s not provided.

RTC’s financial statements do not include amounts relating to rectprocal
compensation for terminating Internet Service Provider traffic.

Irrevocable Letter of Credit 1s provided as Exhibit H.



B. Managenal Ability:

As shown in Exhibit E to this Application, RTC has the managenal
expertise to successfully operate a telecommunications enterprise 1n
Tennessee. As described 1n the attached biographical information, RTC’s
management team has extensive management and business experience 1n
telecommunications.

C. Technical Qualifications;

RTC services will satisfy the minimum standards established by the TRA.
The Company will file and maintain tariffs in the manner prescribed by
the TRA and will meet minimum basic local standards, including quality
of service and billing standards required of all LECs regulated by the
TRA. As noted in the biographies (Exhibit E), there are three (3) officers
with engineering backgrounds and numerous years of telecommunications
expertise. In addition, RTC has numerous employees with engineering
backgrounds. Thus, RTC is certainly technically qualified to provide local
exchange service in Tennessee

Proposed Service Area:

RTC Communications, Inc. has a Certificate of Authority to provide resold and
facilities-based competitive local exchange services in the State of Georgia.

Ringgold Telephone Long Distance, an affiliated company, has a Resale
Certificate of Authorty in the states of Georgia and Tennessee.

The applicant proposes to offer local exchange service in the areas currently
served by BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. These areas served by BellSouth
are designated open to competition. RTC intends to offer local exchange
telecommunications services initially through the use of resold facilities and
through an Unbundled Network Element platform.



Types of Local Exchange Service to be provided:

RTC Communications, Inc. expects to offer local exchange services, including,
but not limited to, basic local service and custom calling features, to business and
residential customers 1n Tennessee. Initially RTC plans to offer basic access line
service, PBX, and DID Services, Optional Calling Features, Directory Assistance,
Directory Services and Operator Services, as well as all services required under
Chapter 1220-4-8-.04 (3) (6) and (2).

RTC 1s 1n the process of opting into a BellSouth Interconnection Agreement

Repair and Maintenance:

RTC 1nitially proposes to provide local exchange service via resale and
Unbundled Network Element Platform (UNE-P). RTC will rely on the technical
expertise of its underlying carrier and BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. from
which RTC will be obtaiming UNE-P RTC’s underlying carriers will be
responsible for repair and maintenance of the telecommunications network. RTC
will be responsible for servicing its own facilities once they are constructed.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Small and Minority-Owned Telecommunications Business Participation Plan:
(65-5-212): Exhibit I.

Toll Dialing Parity Plan: Exhibit J

Applicant has served notice of this application to the eighteen (18) incumbent
local exchange telephone companies in Tennessee with a statement regarding the
company’s intention of operating geographically. See Exhibit K for the list.

Numbering Issues: Statement provided in Exhibit L

Tennessee Specific Operational Issues: Statements provided in Exhibit M

Miscellaneous:

A. Sworn Pre-filed testimony: Exhibit N

B. Applicant does not require customer deposits

C As of now, RTC has not been subject to complaints 1n any of the states in
which we are doing business.

D. A copy of our tariff1s enclosed Exhibit O

Grant of the Application will further the goals of the Tennessee Legislature and
further the public interest by expanding the availability of competitive
telecommunications services in the State of Tennessee. In addition, intrastate
offering of these services 1s in the public interest because the services will provide
Tennessee customers increased efficiencies and cost savings. Authorizing RTC to
provide local exchange telecommunications services will enhance materially the
telecommunications nfrastructure mn the State of Tennessee and will facilitate
economic development.

In particular, the public will benefit both directly, through the use of the
competitive services to be offered by RTC and indirectly, because RTC’s
presence in Tennessee will increase the incentives for other telecommunications
providers to operate more efficiently, offer more innovative services, reduce their
prices, and improve their quality of service. Grant of this Application will further

enhance the service options available to Tennessee citizens for the reasons set
forth above.



CONCLUSION:

RTC Communucations, Inc. respectfully requests that the TRA enter an order
granting 1t a certificate of convenience and necessity to operate as a competing
telecommunications service provider and authority to provide a full range of local
exchange on a facilities-based and resale basis in the State of Tennessee in the service
areas of BellSouth. For the reasons stated above, RTC’s provision of these services
would promote the public interest by providing high-quality service at competitive prices
and by creating greater economic incentives for the development and improvement for all
competing providers.

Respectfully submitted this 207 of Oetsber 2004,

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
RTC Communications, Inc.



EXHIBIT A

Organizational Chart of Corporate Structure



TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE
COMPETING LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES.

RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

EXHIBI’I;‘ A

RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY

Ringgold Telephone
Long Distance

Ringgold Telephone
PCS Corporation

RTC i
Commumcatl:ons, Inc.

i
!

No pertinent acquisitions or mergers are currently in progress and the company currently
has no plans for any acquisitions or mergers.




EXHIBIT B

Articles of Incorporation
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"R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC."

Pl
rd

//
has beén duly incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia on the i 22nd

|
day of April .19 85 , by the filing of articles of incorporation in the: office of the
!
Sccretary of State and the fees therefor paid, as provided by law, and that attached hlcreto is a true

|

copy of said articles of incorporation.

|
|
|
|
|
|
!
f




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
R T C COMMUNTEATIONS INC.

-

The name of the '‘Corporation 1is:

|

!

|

|

x |
- 1. |
i

|

R T C Communications, Inc. E

[ . i

!

' 2.
The Corporation has perpetual duration.

3.
The Corporation i1s a Corporation for profit and is
|
organized for the following purposes: !

(1) To carry on the business of manufacturing,
repairing, buying, selling, and otherwise dealing [in
all kinds of electrical ‘'equipment, radio equlpment,
stereo equipment; electronic equipment, all-kinds | of
electronic hardware, 'including resistors, ‘capacitors,
tubes, transistors, microphones, speakers, 'including
any and all other forms, types or kinds of radio and
electronic equipment; and to do any and all acts and
things necessary, convenlent, expedient, ancillaryL or
in aid.to the accomplishment. of the foregoing

(2) To buy, 'sell, trade, and otherwise’ deaﬂ in real
estate and further, to buy, sell, trade, lease and
otherwise deal in personal property. i
ey GU oo

(3) The construction, erection, repairing and
remodeling of bulldings and structures of all tjp@s,
including residences, apartments, stores, warehouses,
and office buildings ‘for.itself and others;- the*doing
of &ll kinds of public works, including grading and

R N T I U N




7.

The initial Board of Directors shall consist| of three

members -whose names and addresses are:

Alice Evitt Bandy 123 West Nashvillle St.
Ringgold, GA 30736

Marshall M. Bandy, Jr. 505 LaFayette St.

Ringgold, GA 3

{

0736

T. L. Selmon 123 West Nashville St.
Ringgold, GA 30736

8.

The names, titles, and addresses of the offic
Corporation are:

rers of the

Alice Evitt Bandy, Delynn Evitt
Presldent Secretary/Treasurer
123 West Nashville St. 603 East Nashville St.
Ringgold, GA 30736 Ringgold, GA| 30736

9.

This Corporation 1is being created under the Georgla

Business Corporation Code of the State of Georgia.

10.
The name and address of the incorporator 1is:

Alice Evitt Bandy 123 West Nashville St.

Ringgold, GA

30736

. . . TUIE 5 DAPPPIPY




EXHIBIT C

Authority to Transact Business
in the State of Tennessee




MAK-U1-Z0U4(AON) 0933 RINGGOLD TELEPHONE CONPANY

ISSUANCE DATE: 02
REQUEST NUMBER: 0

Secretary of State
Division of Business Services
312 Eighth Avenve North
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower
Nashville, Tennessce 37243

STATUS: ACTIVE

T0: REQUESTED_BY:
RINGGOLD TELEPHONE CO

SMICHAEL WALLIN

PO BOX

869 PO
RINGGOLD, GA 30736

WAS INCORPORATED OR QUALIFIED TO DO BUSINESS IN THE STAT
ABOVE DATE, AND THAT THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT(S) WAS/WERE F
DATE(S) AS'BELOW INDICATED:

—=Mmes

!
4

oX 869
RINGGOLD, GA 30736

L

24
05

/12
55

LFAKJTU Y 1120

RINGGOLD TELEPHONE CO
SMICHAEL WALLIN

0
02

04

CHARTER/QUALIFICATION DATE: 08/22/1989
CORPORATE EXPIRATION DATE: PERPETUAL

CONTROL NUMBER: 0217234
JURISDICTION: GEORGIA

b0/ U0

o

I

NNESSEE ON

N OFFICE ON

REFERENCE DATE FILED FILING TYPE FILING ACTION
NUMBER NAM DUR STK PRN OFC AGT INC MAL [FYC
1334-0471 06/22/1989 QUAL - PROFIT
 2403-1520 03/18/1992 AN RPT X
3272-2837 01/17/1997 AN RPT X
4895-1361 08/22/2003 AN RPT/AGENT X X
FOR: REQUEST FOR GOPIES —orhoeessmmesssssmmmmmmee=mmos ON DATE: 02/24704]
FEES |
FROM: EIVED: 20. X
RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY REC $20.00 $0.00
PO BOX 869 TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED:

RINGGOLD, GA 30736-0000

RILEY C. DARNELL

$20.P0

RECEIPT NUMBER: 00003432355
ACCOUNT NUMBER: 00377007

Lol

|
|
|

SECRETARY OF STATE



UAR-O1-20040A00)  09:33 BINGGOLD TELEPHONE CONPAFY (WE)TO6 965 1720 2003007

1, 11 A At TS l
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APPLICATION FOR CER{TFICATE OF AUTHORITY FOR

T A vEdEn LS RELL
ThY ‘_%a&iug‘urs:m of the State of Tennessees -~RY OF STATE

=

Pursuans 1o the provislons of Scction 4825103 of the Tennessee Dusiness Corporation A<t, the undersigned cor-
paration hereby applics for a certlficate of autharity 10 transact businesa in the Staic of Tennessee, and for that pur-

pose sets Jorth:
RTC Communications, InC.

1. The name of the corporation is

If different, the name under which the centificate of authotity Is to be obtained is

INOTE: The Scuretary af Siate of the State of Tenncysce may not ssue 3 certificate of authority 1o a faseign corpora-
tioo for prafit If 1ts name docs hat eamply with the requirements of Section 48-14-101 of the Tennessee Dusiness Car-
poration Act. IF ottalning a cenificate of authority under an agsumed corporate name, an apphication must be filed
pursuant to Section 48-14-101(d).}

2. The state or couniry wnder whose law it is incorporated [s Georgia .
3, The daie of its incorporationis____APril 22, 1985 ,and 1lie period af duration, of other than perpetual,
is .

4. The complete tireet address (including 21p code) of its principal affice is__
JO6 E. Nashvil)l 5t,., Rinaagld., GA_ 30716 .

5 The complewe street address (including 2p code) of {ts regisizred office int 1his Saate and Whe name of its registered
agent at that office s

C T corppration System, 53C Gav Strect, Knoxvil'e, TN 17002 R
- R — - . '

#. The tiarhes and complete business addre .es (including 21p ¢ode) af its urrent olficers ate: (Altach separaie shett
if necessary.) i

Alice Evitt Bandy,12) West Hashville otreet, Ringacld, GA 30736

_pelynn_Evitt, 603 E, Nashville Strzer, finageld, €A 3C736

7. The names and con.plete business addresses (including zip code) of i curient board nf direriars are. (Astacu
separate sheet if nc.casary.)

i
i
i
Alice Evitt Bandy, 123 dest Nashville Street, Ringnold, GA 30736 !
Marshall H. Bandy, Jr. 505 Lafayette Strccbt, Ringgold, GA_ 3076 |
I
)
!
|
1
i

. John _Selmon, 123 West Nashville Streor, Rinqqold, GA_ 30716

A. The corporaticn 15 a sorporation fur profit.
9. i ihe document It not 1o be effective upan filing by the Secrerary of Siate, the delaved effecuve date/uime is

19 _[dste) (time),
INOTE: A delay=d efTective date thall not be Jaler than the S0th day after (he dare thir document is (v by the Secr=22y
of Sue.]

try the Seartary of Siate or other ofTicial having custedy of corporate records jn the state or country
uoder whese law It Is Incoy poratad. The cenificate shall ot bear = date of mon= *+an one (1) month prior to the date
the application is filad In this state ]

M/gpy RTC Conmrunications, Inc.
Date Name I‘Camnxlcn/

' 7 . .
L e elynde ' |=,u/£‘1,;,
- Blgrer's Capacity | ., : Lo L Shpmtse o

‘7 . .

1
[NOTE: This application must be accanpamied by a cenlficate of existencs (or a document of similar impost} duly i
|
1
I

A

B AT R RN EE E PN T g S , Sy #O 5

. — . oI - - 3 ALY : . S T I® .

R AL TS PR f-f_zf,,‘,:‘} ‘Jlice .£vict Bandy .-, - 5 i\l e ;‘:;i-
iﬂ},""""" r‘*w‘." e o L%fi&ﬁ\t.ﬂﬁu[t\ [0 L A=Y o . ¢ e l;_d_.f. ~ o iy .’."'.:\%:.‘:



MAR-UL-Z0U41MON) U955 RINGGOLD TELEPHONE CONPANY FALTUS 05 720 P 0047001

.mul Ehgnlahnn S FGRM: NUNBER:, '~

H c1
A CEATXFICATE DATE 3 uﬁll&lS’ -
‘Smlgﬁﬂﬁ"'mﬁfmwu : OOCEET WUMBER 891 55::%'0"
. Dr. ECANINER 3 RITA 1onY
& “%f#ﬂ?na: B TELEPHONE s 406=856-2M17
Srov CROVELL CONTROL NUMBER : 8506293
5:"6};'5'*,5‘31' OF smlg o DATE INCORP/AUTHZFILED: -04/22/85 |
i | JURTSDICTION :

GEORGIA |

necussreo aY:z |
MARSHALL M. BRANDYs JRas PaC. |
505 LAFAYETTE STREET / P.0. 80X 429
RINGGOLD Gn 30736 i
!
|

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

I» MAX CLELAND, THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATF OF |
GEORGIA, DU HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER THE THE SEAL OF MY OFFICE THAT:|

“R T € CONMUNICATIONS, INC.”
A DOMESTIC PROFIT CGRPORATION™

- - — — ot - WD SR D WA S = - = h—

WAS FORMED IN THE JURISDICTION SET FORTH ABOVE, AND FILED ITS
CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, ARTICLES OF INCORPQRATION OR
APPLICATION FOR A CERVTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO THANSACT BUSINESS IN
THE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE ON THE ABOVE DATE. SAID
ENTITY XIS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICACLE FILING AND ANNUAL I
REGISTRATION PROVISIONS OF GEORGIA LAW RELATING TO CORPORATIONS
AND LIAITED PARTN SSHIPS C1ITLF 14 OF THE QFFICYAL CODC OF GEORG!A
ANNOTATED) AND HAS NOT FILED ARTICLES OF DISSOLUTION, OR
STATEMENTS OF WITHDRAWAL 07 CANCELLATION WITH THE SECRETARY OF
STATE. THIS CERVIFICATE IS ISSUED UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF O.C.G.A.
SECS 14=2=0» 16—3-~6s OR 14=-9=1102 AND SHALL BE TAKEN AND RECEIV'D
IN ALL COURTS, PUBLIC QTFICES, AND OFFICIAL SODIES AS PRIHA-FACIE
EVIDENCE OF THE EXISTENCE CR NON=ERISTENCE OF THE FACTS STATED |
HEREINS i

IMPORTANY NOTICEa. PLcASE
RETURN THE PINK COPY AND TKE !

AMCUNT DUE TQ THE SECRETARY !
OF STATE IARNEDIATELY.

MAN CLELAND
SECRETARY OF STATE

o florvamsaer

I WAYNE HOWELL
DECU1Y SECRETARY OF STATE
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123 W. NABHVILLE ETREET, RINGGOLD, GA_30736
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U gTATH O o g e TR TR
‘,.‘:\,lmAIVWSTMI“ oL, e e '. T y ae s
- ‘sum1mamunmnuu.mm P gt e AT
IIAIHVII.I.I. TN, 37243-0308 -
AMOUNT SUE - £30.00
;uun m:‘. cuasma o 12 1F DAFERNT, THIS AEFORT I3 OUE ON OR BEFORE  04/01/97
11} BECRETARY OF STATE CONTROL NuMAFR 0217234 OR FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 58-1725910
(3A.) NAME AND MAILING ADDRERB OF CORPORATION . (28 ) BTATE ON COUNTRY OF »:.:umnon
GEORGIA t"J- e
RTC COMAUNICATIONS. INC. (2C.) ADD OR CHANOE umuu o ADDRESS:
= \
- 3283 U NASHVILLE ST. i
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RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

EXHIBIT D

TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE
COMPETING LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

NAME

Alice Evitt Bandy

Harry Gass

To Be Determined

To Be Determined

Philip A. Exli

Principal Corporate Officers

TITLE

Chief Executive Officer

Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

Secretary

Board Member

ADDRESS

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869

6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869
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EXHIBIT E

RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE
COMPETING LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

RTC Communications, Inc. Staff Qualifications

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer, RTC Communications, Inc.
President and CEQO, Ringgold Telephone Company.

Alice Evitt Bandy 1s Chief Executive Officer of RTC Communications,
Inc. Mrs. Bandy has 28 years experience 1n the telecommunications
industry serving in management positions with Ringgold Telephone
Company. Mrs. Bandy is a graduate of the University of Tennessee with a
degree in merchandising.

Philip A. Erli
Executive Vice President, Ringgold Telephone Company

Philip Erli is Executive Vice President of Ringgold Telephone Company.
Mr.Erh has a wide variety of experience in the telecommunications
industry spanning 31 years, including management, communications
consulting, marketing, business planning, sales and regulatory positions.
Mr. Erli is a graduate of Indiana State Umiversity with a BS degree in
finance, and earned an MSBA from Indiana University.

Lynn Williams Howell

Vice President of Customer & Employee Relations, Ringgold Telephone

Company
Ms. Howell 1s Vice President of Customer & Employee Relations of
Ringgold Telephone Company. Ms. Howell has 24 years experience 1n
the telecommunications industry and has been with Ringgold Telephone
Company since 1980. Ms Howell 1s currently responsible for Human
Resources, Customer Service, Customer Support, Marketing, Public
Relations and Video. Ms Howell holds several industry related certificates
1n various areas such as, Customer Service and Human Resources and
currently attends Business Management classes at Northwestern Technical
Institute, 1n Rock Spring, GA.

Continued. .



Stephen J. Scharf
Vice President of Financial & Information Technologies, Ringgold Telephone

!
Company

Stephen Scharf is Vice President of Financial & Information
Technologies of Ringgold Telephone Company. Mr. Scharf has 14 years
experience in the telecommunications industry, and currently is
responsible for management of ISP, Information Services, and Finance
and Accounting Department. Mr. Scharf holds a BS degree from
Winthrop University in Rock Hill, South Carolina, and completed two
years of electrical engineering training at the Rochester Institute of
Technology, Rochester, New York.

Tommy Holcombe
Vice President of Operations, Ringgold Telephone Company

Tommy Holcombe is Vice President of Operations of Ringgold
Telephone Company. Mr. Holcombe has 29 years experience in the
telecommunications industry, and has been with Ringgold since 1978.
His background includes equipment repair, engineering, construction,
marketing and customer service management. Mr. Holcombe 1s active in
the business industry in Georgia. He 1s president of the Ringgold Rotary
Club, a past Chairman, of the Catoosa County Chamber of Commerce,
and is a past president of the Northwest Georgia Utility Coordination
Commuttee.

Michael Allen Wallin
Manager of Regulatory Affairs, Ringgold Telephone Company

Michael Wallin is Manager of Regulatory Affairs of Ringgold Telephone
Company. Mr. Wallin has experience in PBX and Key system installation
and repair, engineering, construction and project management. Mr. Wallin
holds several industry related certificates in various areas. Mr. Wallin has
been with Ringgold Telephone Company since 1999 and has 25 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
The Ringgold Telephone Company
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Gentlemen:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE
COMPANY, a Georgia Corporation, and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of retained earnings, operations, comprehensive income and cash flows
for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of The
Ringgold Telephone Company’s management. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of The Ringgold Telephone Company and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.
74 éc e oz AN
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THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

ASSETS
2003 2002
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,181,932 $ 1,260,034
Telecommunications Accounts Receivable 1,991,256 1,558,358
Other Accounts Receivable 158,642 120,917
Note Receivable - 9,042
Materials and Supplies 475,353 637,146
Prepaid Expense 240,348 183,687
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 5,047,531 $ 3,769,184
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Investments $ 333,980 $ 618,501
Investments in USCarrier Telecom, LLC 248,878 143,929
Rural Telephone Bank Stock 285,500 285,500
CoBank Participation Certificate 164,464 58,526
Cash Surrender Value Life Insurance 314,992 283,335
Prepaid Expense 256,188 280,392
Other Assets 1,089,739 1,114,088
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS $ 2,693,741 $ 2,784,271
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Plant in Service $ 54,678,344 $ 53,400,157
Plant Under Construction 700,369 20,451
Non-Operating Plant 6,442 6,442
Subtotal Plant $ 55,385,155 § 53,427,050
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 27,619,285 23,679,595
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT $ 27,765,870 $ 29,747,455
TOTAL $ 35507142 $ 36,300,910

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements.
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THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

LIABILITIES ANDSTOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

2003 2002
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 865,329 $ 1,579,179
Current Obligations Under Capital Lease 235,656 217,178
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 1,140,443 936,934
Customer Deposits 383 820
Other Accrued Liabilities 116,448 108,448
Compensated Absences 70,297 38,006
Deferred Compensation 60,000 60,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 2,488,556 $ 2,940,565
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASE $ 1,300,064 $ 1,525,481
LONG-TERM DEBT $ 17,929,144 $ 18,809,573
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Accumulated Postretirement Benefits $ 2,202,004 $ 2,126,641
Deferred Revenue 0,848 -
Deferred Compensation 356,214 330,392
: TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES $ 2,568,066 $ 2457,033
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
' Common Stock $ 72,000 $ 72,000
. Paid-In Capital 548,509 548,509
t  Retained Earnings 11,184,174 10,718,867
‘ Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (583,371) (771,118)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 11,221,312 $ 10,568,258

$ 35,507,142 $ 36,300,910

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002

RETAINED EARNINGS-BEGINNING $ 10,718,867 $ 9,197,481
Prior Period Adjustment - 133,929
RETAINED EARNINGS-RESTATED 10,718,867 9,331,410
Net Income 465,307 1,394 957
$ 11,184,174 $ 10,726,367

Dividends Paid - (7,500)
RETAINED EARNINGS-ENDING $ 11,184,174 $ 10,718,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Network Service
Network Access Service
Internet Revenue
Other Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Sales

Uncollectible Revenue
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSE:
Plant Specific Operations
Plant Non-Specific Operations
Depreciation and Amortization
Customer Operations Expense
Corporate Operations
Internet Expense
Other Expense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

NET OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING TAXES
Other Taxes

NET OPERATING INCOME

OTHER INCOME AND (EXPENSE)

INCOME BEFORE MISCELLANEOUS DEDUCTIONS

- MISCELLANEOUS DEDUCTIONS:

nterest Expense

2003 2002
$ 4,763,110 $ 4,622,269
10,729,798 9,643,216
1,337,255 1,087,151
1,075,673 466,197
506,715 978,013
167,674 786,506
$ 18,580,225 $ 17,583,352
(5,683) 176,266
$ 18,585,908 $ 17,407,086
$ 4,562,024 $ 3,035,822
1,308,773 1,079,595
4,415,302 3,753,428
1,945,575 1,878,428
3,255,607 3,821,959
658,987 1,022,248
853,291 936,289
$ 16,999,559 $ 15,527,769
$ 1,586,349 $ 1,879,317
243,085 196,312
$ 1343264 $ 1,683,005
493,451 874,922
$ 1,836,715 $ 2,557,927
1,371,408 1,162,970
$ 465,307 $ 1,394,957

, The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AN SUBIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
Net Income $ 465307 $ 1,394,957
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax:
Unrealized Gains on Securities:

Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year $ 202,067 $ (816,256)

Reclassification Adjustment (14,320) -
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) $ 187,747 $ (816,256)
Comprehensive Income $ 653054 §$ 578,701



THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Customers $ 17,818,661 $ 17,234,957
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Employees (12,878,858) (10,928,199)
Dividends and Interest Received 241,229 239,670
Interest Paid (1,373,740) (1,025,362)
Income Taxes Paid - 64,823
Net Cash From Operating Activities $ 3,807,202 $ 5585889
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Sale of Investments $ 488,894 $ -
Proceeds from Sale of Buildings 335,000 -
Proceeds from Salvage of Equipment 18,554 10,203
Cost to Remove (24,062) (42,115)
Investments 28,258 (197,482)
Materials and Supplies 161,793 (215,120)
Loans from Shareholder-Net 97,651 (8,812)
Payment for Purchase of Equipment (3,006,270) (5,812,492)
Net Cash From Investing Activities $ (1,900,182) $ (6,265,818)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Customer Deposits $ (439) $ (2,069)
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings 174,969 1,581,840
Dividends Paid - (7,500)
Payments on Long-Term Capital Lease (219,244) (59,430)
Payments on Long-Term Borrowings (940,498) (924,537)
Net Cash From Financing Activities $  (985212) % 588,304

NEET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ 921808 § (91,625)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,260,034 1,351,659
-2AS3H.AT END OF YEAR $ 2,181,932 $ 1,260,034

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
Increase (Decrease) in Cash

2003 2002
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income $ 465,307  $ 1,394,957
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
From Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization $ 4415302 §$ 3,753,428
Net Loss of Partnership and LLCs - 659,214
Gain on Sale of Ga PCS Mgmt - (1,321,284)
Gain on Sale of Investments (14,320) -
Gain on Sale of Buildings (203,453) -
Building Donations 102,500 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Telecommunications Accounts Receivable (723,675) 47,762
Other Accounts Receivable (29,830) 1,180
Accrued Interest - 245
Prepaid Expenses (71,661) (43,540)
Investments (213,092) (100,223)
‘ Other Assets 124,111 94,963
t  Accounts Payable (184,836) 552,668
! Postretirement Benefits 75,363 407,987
Deferred Revenue 9,848 -
Other Liabilities 55,728 138,532
Total Adjustments $ 3,341,985 $ 4,190,932
Net Cash From Operating Activities $ 3807292 § 5,585,889

S}__JPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF NONCASH

!NVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

iPlant Retired and Charged to Accumulated

$ 571,052 § 233240

‘ N=Cash Salvage of Equipment $ - $ 10,406
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THE RINGGOLD TELEPHONE COMPANY
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the prepar-
ation of these financial statements. The policies conform to generally accepted accounting
principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts

of The Ringgold Telephone Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Ringgold Telephone
Long Distance Inc., Ringgold Telephone PCS Corporation, and Community Messenger Inc.
Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Business - The Ringgold Telephone Company is an alternative regulated public telephone
utility. Its primary business is to provide telecommunications service to the local residents
and businesses in Catoosa County, Georgia. The Company also offers video services to
its customers.

RTC Communications Systems' primary business is the sales, leasing, installation and main-
tenance of telephone equipment. Effective June 30, 2002, the Chattanooga, Tennessee office
was closed and the operations were transferred to The Ringgold Telephone Company. The
results of operations are included as a part of The Ringgold Telephone Company's operations.

Ringgold Telephone Long Distance's primary business is to provide long distance telephone
service for the local area.

Ringgold Telephone PCS's primary business is to hold the investment in a non-affiliated
Company providing personal communication services (PCS).

Community Messenger's primary business is to provide FM paging, data transfer, wireless
€-mail notification, wireless security and fire alarm monitoring, and other premium wireless
information services for the local area.

Books gnd.Records - The Ringgold Telephone Company's accounting system and procedures
are maintained in a manner as prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission
and the Georgia Public Service Commission.

T elecommunications Receivables - Customers are generally extended credit on a short-
Y ‘€M basis; thys, telecommunication receivables do not bear interest. Receivables over
PQY‘d&}yS Past due are reviewed for collectibility. Receivables are written off monthly.
) ctions of receivables previously written off are included in income as received.

by
.‘;x_l

a":Ceffor Doubtful Accounts - The company considers all accounts collectible at year
€tore, no allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained. Interstate telephone

¥ E!es are reported to NECA for reimbursement. The company assumes the loss
>'ate-telephone uncollectibles.



. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-Continued:

Telephone Plant Accounting - Telephone plant is stated at original cost when placed in ser-
vice. When telephone plant is retired, the original cost of the plant is charged against the
accumulated depreciation and the net salvage is credited to the accumulated depreciation.
The cost of maintenance and repairs of telephone plant, including the cost of replacing minor
items not affecting substantial betterments, is charged principally to maintenance expense.

Depreciation and Amortization - Depreciation is provided under the straight-line method for
accounting purposes and generally under accelerated methods for income tax purposes.
Intangtbles are amortized over a five to fifteen year life.

Depreciation is charged directly to operating expenses. Stated as a percentage of telephone
plant, depreciation amounted to 8.19% for 2003 and 7.60% for 2002.

Advertising - The company charges advertising costs to expense as incurred. Advertising
costs amounted to $31,190 for 2003 and $69,662 for 2002.

Revenue Recognition - Telephone revenues are recognized when earned and are primarily
derived from usage of the company's local exchange network and facilities. The company
accrues unbilled revenues earned from the date customers were last billed to the end of
the accounting period. Certain toll and access service revenues are estimated under cost
separation procedures that base revenues on current operating costs and investments in
facilities to provide such services. Certain revenues derived from local telephone, internet
and video services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the following month
when services are provided. Revenues derived from other telecommunications services,
principally network access, long distance and wireless airtime useage, are recognized
monthly as services are provided.

Materials and Supplies - Materials and supplies are related to the construction and main-
tenance of telephone plant, video services, and Inventory held for sale. Materials and sup-
plies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market.

Cash Flows - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the company considers all highly

liquid debt instruments purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
€quivalents.

2 ensn\{e Income - Unrealized gains or losses on the company's available-for-sale
©s are included in other comprehensive income.

I t.e_f S Corporation - The company has elected to be taxed under Subchapter S of the
venue, whereby its income is taxed directly to the shareholder.

9




', Cash:
A summary of cash at December 31 follows:
2003 2002
Working Funds $ 4700 $ 5,500
General Funds 2,177,232 1,254,534
TOTAL $ 2,181,932 $ 1,260,034

The company has on deposit at commercial banks, funds in excess of the amount
insured by the FDIC.

3. Telecommunications Accounts Receivable:

A summary of telecommunications accounts receivable at December 31 follows:

2003 2002
Subscriber Billings $ 328,962 § 340,777
Unbilied Receivables 232,295 218,881
Interexchange Carriers 1,429,999 998,700
TOTAL $ 1,991,256 $ 1,558,358
4. Other Accounts Receivable:
A summary of other accounts receivable at December 31 follows:

i 2003 2002
Trade Receivables $ 13,395 § -
Employees 5,184 8,417
Other 140,063 112,500

TOTAL $ 158,642 $ 120,917

10



. Investments:

Investments are classified as either Held to Maturity, Trading or Available for Sale Securities.

The company does not have any securities that are classified as Trading or Held to Maturity.
Securities investments that the company has the positive intent and the ability to hold to maturity ar
classified as Held to Maturity Securities and recorded at amortized cost in investments.

Securities investments that are not classified as Held to Maturity or Trading are classified as
Available for Sale Securities. Available for Sale Securities are recorded at fair value In invest-
ments on the balance sheet, with the change in fair value during the period excluded from

earnings and recorded as a separate component of equity.

A summary of investments at December 31, 2003 follows:
GROSS GROSS

UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
AMORTIZED HOLDING HOLDING MARKET

Investments Available for Sale: COST GAINS LOSSES VALUE
Arch Wireless, Inc., 2 shares $ 101 § - 9% - 101
US Unwired Inc., 366,900 Shares 917,250 - (583,371) 333,879

Total Investments Available for Sale $ 917351 - _$ (583,371) $ 333,980

A summary of investments at December 31, 2002 follows:

GROSS GROSS
UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
AMORTIZED HOLDING HOLDING MARKET

Investments Available for Sale: COST GAINS LOSSES VALUE
Investment Co. of America, 5,974 Shares $ 167,361 $ - § (27,092) $ 140,269
Washington Mutual Investors Fund,
10,568 Shares 255,008 - (6,557) 248,451
US Unwired Inc., 366,900 Shares 917,250 - (737,469) 179,781
- Gateway Bancshares, 5,000 Shares 50,000 - - 50,000

~Jotdl Investments Available for Sale $ 1,389,619 $ - $ (771,118) $ 618,501

heg?hange in net unrealized holding gain (loss) on securities available for sale that has been

ed as a separate component of stockholders’ equity was $(583,371) for 2003 and
1118) for 2002 .

11



y. Investments-Continued:

Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices. Realized gains and losses are
determined on the basis of specific cost Sales proceeds and realized gains and losses
on securities classified as available for sale were:

2003 2002
Sales Proceeds $ 488,804 $ -
Gross Realized Gains $ 14320 $ -
Gross Realized Losses . $ - $ -

Investments in USCarrier Telecom, LLC:

(2

During 2003, the company changed from the equity to the cost method to account for its invest-
ments in USCarner Telecom, LLC. The change in accounting method has occurred due to the

company's decrease in ownership. The company believes the net carrying value approximates
the investement's fair market value.

USCarrier Telecom, LLC provides for the construction and operation of a fiber optic communica-
tions system in the states of Georgia, Alabama and Florida. The company has a 1.284%
Interest in the LLC. The company has pledged all of its class A units as collateral on the debt

of the USCarrier's long term financing with CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc.

The company has entered into a lease agreement with USCarrier to lease communications
Systems to USCarrier. Total lease income under this agreement was $104,949 for 2003 and
$111,510 for 2002. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has elected to receive
payment of the lease In class A units.

The company made capital contributions to USCarrier of $10,000 per month for 2002, plus
three special capital contributions totaling $52,482. The company made no capital contributions
to USCarrier in 2003, and does not anticipate any future contributions.

}._Tﬁh_e investment is shown on the balance sheet at net investment less accumulated operating
losses as follows:

ACCUMULATED
NET CASH  EARNINGS 2003 2002
ADVANCES-  (LOSSES) TOTAL TOTAL
Carr r Telecom, LLC $ 2,119,194 $(1,870,316) $ 248878 $ 143,929

12



7

. Cash Surrender Value Life Insurance.

The company maintains life insurance Coverage on certain key employees. The coverage
is as follows:

CASH VALUE

INSURED COVERAGE 2003 2002
President $ 840,800 $ 31 4992 $ 283335
The company is owner and beneficiary of the policy.
Other Assets:

2003 2002
License Fees $ 292600 ¢ 319,200
Advances to Data FM 219,778 48,009
Deferred CAD Charges 195,114 312,184
Retirement Annuity 84,429 126,644
Loan Origination Fees 71,652 77,094
Commercial Building 60,000 60,000
Officer Split Dollar Receivable 29,916 20,957
Feasibility Study 136,250 150,000

$ 1,089,739 $ 1,114,088

-term debt to CoBank.



0 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment in service and under construction by major classes at

December 31 follows:

Land
Vehicles and Work Equipment
Buildings

Furniture and Office Equipment
Video Equipment

Central Office Equipment

Toll and Subscriber Carrier
Station Apparatus

Station Connections

Poles, Cables and Wire

Plant Under Construction
Non-Operating Plant

TOTAL

Depreciation for 2003 was $4,415,302 ang for 2002 was $3,753,428.

Individual depreciation rates are as follows:

Vehicles ang Work Equipment
Buildings

Fumiture ang Office Equipment
Video Equipment

Central Office Equipment

Toll ang Subscriber Carrier
Station Apparatus

Station Connectiong

Poles, Cables ang Wire

y e
it

e
i3

2003 2002
497,068 $ 537,271
1,455,613 1,458,509
3,174,476 3,382,332
2,715,223 2,497,188
2,558,156 2,249,709
9,281,658 9,271,341
7,445,907 7,658,228
1,410,063 859,622
386,377 386,377
25,753,803 25,099,580
$ 54,678,344 $ 53,400,157
700,369 20,451
6,442 6,442
—_— 05442
$_ 55,385,155 $ 93,427,050
PERCENT
—=1>ENI
10.00-15.00
2.50
9.00-20.00
10.00-20.00
9.00-10.00
8.60-11.00
4.50-20.00
8.00

2.50-10.00



1. Lease Obligations:

Capital Leases

The company leases postage machine equipment under capital leases expiring in 2005
and 2007. The company also leases video equipment under capital lease expiring in 2009.

expense for 2003 was $36,873 and for 2002 was $30,709.

Following is a summary of property held under capital lease:

2003 2002
Postage Machine & Equipment $ 80,854 $ 68,549
Video Equipment 1,739,000 1,739,000
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (73,620) (36,747)
Net Book Value $ 1,746,234 $ 1,770,802

Minimum future lease payments under capital lease as of December 31, 2003 for the next
six years are:

5 AMOUNT
‘ 2004 $ 333,863
2005 327,300
2006 325,112
2007 315,786
2008 312,677
2009 286,621
Less: Amount Representing Interest (365,639)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ __ 1,535720

,-{_Dje“interest rates on the capital leases vary from 6.40% to 15.00% and are imputed
&d on the lower of the company's incremental borrowing rate at the inception of the

S€ or the lessor's implicit rate of return,

ting Leases

Pany leases vehicles, office and plant equipment under operating leases expiring in
ears through 2008,

15



1. Lease Obligations - Continued:

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

Total minimum future rental payments

Long-Term Debt:

The following is a summary of outstanding long-term debt:

Note payable to CoBank, bearing interest at a

current variable rate of 6.00%,
expected to be refinanced to a
maturity

Note payable to CoBank
fixed rate of 6.50%
July 2017

, bearing interest at
through July 2007: maty

Note payable to finance company;
bearing; payable in monthly install
maturing in November 2006

Note payable to individu
Payable in annual install
Maturing in February 20

al; noninterest beari
ments of $6,000:
09

 Note payabie to shareholder; due on deman

Current Installments

~ecember 31, 2003, there was $1,050

:and interest in
ately $184 30

16

stallments on the above
0 and annual installment

matures July 2004:
ten year term at

noninterest
ments of $770:;

AMOUNT
$ 420,777
354,402
332,022
306,271
145,531
$ 1,559,003
2003 2002
$ 1,449,969 $ 1,300,000
a
res
17,468,063 18,368,322
26,946 36,185
ng,
36,000 42,000
d 88,609 -
$ 19,069,587 3 19,746,507
(1,140,443) (936,934)
$ 17,929,144 $ 18,809,573

,031 in unadvanced loan funds from CoBank.

notes are due in monthly instaliments of
s of $6,000.



i2. Long-Term Debt - Continued:

The company follows the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of property,
plant and equipment constructed for its own use. In 2003, total interest incurred was $1,377,021
of which $5,613 was capitalized. In 2002, total interest incurred was $1,182,356 of which
$19,386 was capitalized. The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of interest eli-
gible for capitalization was 5.08% for 2003 and 5.13% for 2002.

The company was granted approval by the Georgia Public Service Commission on February 5,
2002 to refinance all of its existing long-term debt into a single 15 year note with CoBank. The
new note amount was $19,059,043 and carries a variable interest rate that is determined at
drawdown.

Debt agreements with CoBank contain certain restrictions and financial ratio requirements
which must be met each year. All financial ratio requirements were met for 2003. For 2002,
two financial ratio requirements were not achieved; CoBank waived the requirements.

Maturities of long-term debt for each of the five years succeeding the balance sheet date is
estimated as follows:

YEAR AMOUNT
2004 $ 1,140,443
, 2005 1,185,129
; 2006 1,261,725
2007 1,335,740
2008 1,423,682

’13. Deferred Compensation Plan:

The company has a deferred compensation program for key employees. The company has
purchased individual life insurance contracts with respect to each employee covered by this
pProgram. The expense associated with the deferred compensation plan was $-0- for 2003
and $20,000 for 2002. The contributions are considered a general asset of the corporation
u_n.til remitted to the participant named. The participant benefits are vested. Therefore, a lia-
blllﬁy has been recorded for the future benefit payments. Distribution payments for one retired
employee began in 2000.

Ompany has another deferred compensation program for a key officer. Under this pro-

the Company agrees to pay the covered employee a certain sum within 60 days of retire-

eln death, disability, or the company’s termination of officer's employment without cause.

geelhount is credited to a Deferred Compensation Account on the company books at the end

Year that the officer remains continuously employed by the company, beginning Decem-

002. All amounts credited to the Deferred Compensation Account will become fully

nd payable to the officer or his designated beneficiary upon the Officer's retirement

Ployment with the company for any reason after December 31, 2002. The amount defer-
he Deferred Compensation Agreement was $50,000 for 2003 and $50,000 for 2002.

>Ted Account is an unfunded and unsecured obligation of the company.

17
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Accumulated Postretirement Benefits:

The company provides health and life Insurance benefits and telephone service for its retired
employees. During 2003, the company changed its policy for future retiree benefits. Prior to
2003, substantially all employees were eligible for benefits at retirement. After the change,
employees eligible to retire under the Rule of 85 by December 31, 2010 will be provided
retiree and spousal group health insurance coverage. Employees eligible to retire under the
Rule of 85 by December 31, 2017 will be provided retiree group health insurance coverage
only. No health insurance coverage will be provided for employees or spouses who are
eligible to retire under the Rule of 85 after December 31, 2017. The plan is unfunded.

The benefits are recorded in accordance with FASB Statement 106. The company has elected
to amortize the transition obligation over twenty years. Benefit payments for 2003 and 2002
were $148,040 and $137,544, respectively.

ACCUMULATED
ACCRUED POST- POSTRETIREMENT UNRECOGNIZED
RETIREMENT BENEFIT TRANSITION
BENEFIT COST OBLIGATION OBLIGATION
Beginning of Year $ 2,126,641 $ 2,652,285 § 525,644
Effect of Negative Plan Amendment - (208,058) (208,058)
After Negative Plan Amendment $ 2126641 $ 2,444,227 % 317,586
Recognition of Components of Net
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost: $ 223,403 % 223,403 $ -
Service Cost Not Available Not Available Not Available
Interest Cost Not Available Not Available Not Available
Gains Not Available Not Available Not Available
Amortization of Transition
Obligation Not Available Not Available Not Available
$ 223,403 $ 223,403 $ -
Benefit Payments (148,040) (148,040) -
‘Net Change $ 75,363 $ 75363 § -
-End of Year $ 2,202,004 $ 2,519,590 $ 317,586

-wFor Mmeasurement purposes, a 8.50% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered

|th care benefits was assumed for 2003. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to
)% at year 2005 and remain at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate assump-
has a significant effect on the amounts reported. Increasing the assumed health care cost

: __hted-average discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement bene-
tion was 6.259,

18




{5. Common Stock and Retained Earnings:

There are 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized of which 72,000
shares were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The terms of the mortgage agreement with CoBank require that the payment of dividends
be limited to the previous year's net income.

16. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Changes in the components of other comprehensive income (loss) and in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) for 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

ACCUMULATED
UNREALIZED OTHER
GAINS (LOSSES)ON  COMPREHENSIVE
SECURITIES LOSS
Balance at January 1, 2003 $ (771,118) % (771,118)
Change during 2003 187,747 187,747
Balance at December 31, 2003 $ (583,371) § (5683,371)
ACCUMULATED
UNREALIZED OTHER
GAINS (LOSSES)ON  COMPREHENSIVE
SECURITIES LOSS
Balance at January 1, 2002 $ 45,138 $ 45,138
Change during 2002 (816,256) (816,256)
(\ ‘ .- ~‘l§§lance at December 31, 2002 $ (771,118) $ (771,118)

- Pefision and Savings Plan:

1454
%E‘e'ﬁgmpany has a defined benefit pension plan in effect for all employees at

S Mber 31, 2003 and 2002, which is a part of the industry wide retirement and
gty Program with the National Telephone Cooperative Association (NTCA). It
U|t~iemployer defined benefit plan which constitutes a "master plan” for
e and its member organizations who have adopted the plan.

19
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future service costs on an ongoing basis. Employee contribution balances are
maintained on an iIndividual basijs_ The Company contributes 11.60% of Participating
employee's annua| salary to the plan.
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HAYNES s MOORE, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PO BOX 71 MEMBER,

JIAMES A THRELKELD CPA 701 BROAD STREET SUITE 350 AMERICAN INSTITUTE

OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ROME CEOR IA 30162-0711
R MARK HARRISON CPA GIA 3 CEORGIA SOCIETY o
DAVID R ESTES, CPA TEL (706) 291-4690 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
. CPAMERICA
FAX (706) 235-8876 MEMBER FIRMS THROUCHOUT
www hmht-cpa com THE UNITED STATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INF ORMATION

Board of Directors
The Ringgold Telephone Company
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Gentlemen:

Our report on our audits of the consolidated financial statements of The Ringgold Telephone Company
and subsidiaries for 2003 and 2002 appears on page 1. Those audits were made for the purpose of
forming an opmion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating
information on Schedules 1 through 6 is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the
consolidated financial Statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows of the individual companies. Such mformation has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements, and in our opinion, is fairly

stated in all materal respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 3 1, 2003 and 2002 taken as a whole.
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EXHIBIT G
Capital Expenditures

As noted in item 4.A. of Application, this is not provided as
RTC initially will provide service on a resold and
unbundled network element platform.
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Irrevocable Letter of Credit
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EXHIBIT I

Small and Minority-Owned Telecommunications
Business Participation Plan



RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

SMALL AND MINORITY-OWNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS
PARTICIPATION PLAN

Pursuant to T.C.A. §65-5-212, as amended, RTC Communications, Inc. (RTC)
submuts this small and minority-owned Telecommunications Business Participation Plan
(the “Plan”) along with its Application for a Certificate of Public Convemence and
Necessity to provide competing local exchange services in Tennessee.

I PURPOSE

The purpose of §65-5-212 1s to provide opportunities for small and minority-
owned businesses to provide goods and services to Telecommunications service
providers. RTC 1s commutted to the goals of §65-5-212 and to taking steps to support the
participation of small and minority-owned Telecommunications businesses 1n the
Telecommunications industry. RTC will endeavor to provide opportunities for small and
minonty-owned Telecommunications businesses to compete for contracts and
subcontracts for goods and services. As part of its procurement process, RTC will make
efforts to identify and inform minonty-owned and small businesses that are qualified and
capable of providing goods and services to RTC of such opportunities. RTC’s
representatives have already contacted the Department of Economic and Community
Development, the administrator of the small and minority-owned Telecommunications
assistance program, to obtain a list of qualified vendors. Moreover, RTC will seek to
increase awareness of such opportunities so that compantes not otherwise identified will
have sufficient information to participate in the procurement process.

II. DEFINITIONS

As defined in §65-5-212.

Minority-Owned Business Minority-owned business shall mean a business which
1s solely owned, or at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the assets or outstanding stock of
which 1s owned, by an individual who personally manages and controls daily operations
of such business, and who is impeded from normal entry mto the economic mainstream
because of race, religion, sex or national origin and such busimess has annual gross
receipts of less than four million dollars ($4,000,000).

Small Business. Small Business shall mean a business with annual gross receipts
of less than four million dollars ($4,000,000).



III. ADMINISTRATION

RTC’s Plan will be overseen and administered by the individual named below,
hereinafter referred to as the Administrator, who will be responsible for carrying out and
promoting RTC’s full efforts to provide equal opportunities for small and minority-
owned businesses. The Administrator of the Plan will be:

Michael Wallin, Regulatory Manager
RTC Communications, Inc.

P.O. Box 869

6203 Alabama Highway

Ringgold, GA 30736-0869
Telephone: (706) 965-1721
Facsimile: (706) 965-1720

The Administrator’s responsibilities will include:

1) Maintaining an updated Plan 1n full compliance with §65-5-212 and the rules and
orders of the Tennessee Regulatory Authority.

(2) Establishing and developing polictes and procedures necessary for the successful
implementation of the Plan.

3) Preparing and submitting such forms as may be required by the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority, including the filing of required annual updates.

4) Serving as the primary haison to and cooperate with the Tennessee Regulatory
Authonty, other agencies of the State of Tennessee, and small and minority-owned
businesses to locate and use qualified small and minority-owned businesses as defined 1n
§65-5-212.

(5) Searching for and developing opportunities to use small and minority-owned
businesses and encouraging such businesses to participate in and bid on contracts and
subcontracts.

(6) Providing records and reports and cooperate in any authorized surveys as required
by the Tennessee Regulatory Authonty.

@) Establlsﬁing a record-keeping system to track qualified small and mimority-owned
businesses and efforts to use such businesses.

(8) Providing information and educational activities to persons within RTC and

training such persons to seek out, encourage, and promote the use of small and minority-
owned businesses.



In performance of these duties, the Adminustrator will utilize a number of resources,
including’

Chambers of Commerce
The Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development
The United States Department of Commerce
Small Business Administration
Office of Minority Business
The National Minonty Supplier Development Counsel
The National Association of Women Business Owners
The National Association of Minonty Contractors
Historically Black Colleges, Universities, and Minority Institutions

The efforts to promote and ensure equal opportunities for small and minority-
owned businesses are primarily spelled out in the Administrator’s duties above.
Additional efforts to provide opportunities to small and minority-owned businesses will
include offering, where appropriate and feasible, small and minonty-owned businesses
assistance with technical, insurance, bonding, licensing, production, and deadline
requirements.

IV. RECORDS AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS

RTC will maintain records of qualified small and minority-owned business and
efforts to use the goods and services of such businesses. In addition, RTC will maintain
records of educational and training activities conducted or attended and of the internal
procurement procedures adopted to support this plan.

RTC will submit records and reports required by the Tennessee Regulatory

Authority concerning the Plan. Moreover, RTC will cooperate fully with any surveys
and studies required by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority.

RTC Communications, Inc.

Alice Evitt Ban
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: /0‘/20‘ /0 4/




EXHIBIT J

IntralLATA Toll Dialing Parity
Implementation Plan



RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
INTRALATA TOLL DIALING PARITY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Pursuant to the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) Order 99-54 in
CC Docket No. 96-98 (Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996) RTC Communications, Inc. (“RTC”) hereby submits
its IntraLATA Toll Dialing Panity (1+ presubscription) Implementation Plan (“Plan”).

L. Objective/Purpose

RTC seeks authority from the TRA to provide telecommunications services
within the State of Tennessee as a competing local provider (“CLP”).

RTC’s Implementation Plan would enable Customers to route intraLATA toll
calls (intraLATA 1+ and 0+ calls), plus directory assistance (1+ area code + 555-1212),
without the use of access codes, to the Customer’s pre-selected interexchange carrier
(IXC)

1. Geographic Availability

IntraLATA presubscription (“ILP”) is available in all LATAs where RTC will
provide its local resold and unbundled network element platform (UNE-P) based
telecommunications services within the State of Tennessee ILP will be available in all

exchanges of the underlying local exchange carrier where RTC provides local resale and
UNE-P based services.

III.  Implementation Schedule

RTC intends to offer dialing party for intralLATA toll calls upon the later of: (1)
30 days after the TRA approves RTC’s Plan; or (i1) the commencement of the provision
of local exchange service. Initially, RTC will be offering exchange services as a reseller
and UNE-P based provider, and will rely upon the capabilities of the underlying
incumbent local exchange company (“ILEC”) to provide intraLATA toll dialing parity.
Accordingly RTC’s retail customers may choose any IXC that has established itself as an
access customer under the underlying ILEC’s access tanff.

V. Carrier Selection Process

RTC will implement full 2-PIC (“Primary Interexchange Carrier”) capability for
mterLATA and intraLATA presubscription. The full 2-PIC methodology allows
customers to presubscribe to one carrier for intraLATA toll calls, and to the same or a
different carrier for interLATA toll calls

RTC will ensure that new customers have the opportumity to choose their
intraLATA toll carrier. RTC employees who communicate with the public, accept orders



and serve 1n customer service capacities will explain the availability of 2-PIC equal
access and intraL ATA toll dialing parity. Such employees will also assist customers 1n
making an imtial PIC choice, or in changing a PIC choice for intraLATA and interLATA
toll calls

A. Existing Customers
RTC has no existing local exchange customers 1n Tennessee.
B. New Customers

A new customer contacting RTC to request new local telephone exchange service
will be advised of the opportunity to choose both an intraLATA and interLATA toll
provider. If requested by the customer, RTC will provide a competitively neutral list of
participating telecommunications carriers that provide intraLATA toll service in the
customer’s exchange. A new customer who does not select an intraLATA toll carrier
will be identified as “no-PIC”, and will not be automatically defaulted to a carrier A
“no-PIC” customer will be unable to make intralLATA toll calls on a 1+ or 0+ dialed
basis, and will be required to dial the access code of a carrier (101 XXXX) to place
intralLATA toll calls until the customer chooses an intraLATA toll carrier. New
customers will have thirty (30) calendar days following completion of the service request
to make a PIC choice without charge.

V. Carner Notification

IXCs will be notified via letter that they must contact RTC directly if an end-user
using RTC’s resold or UNE-P based services desires to change to that IXC. RTC will
obtain a list of current IXCs from the TRA for mailing to all currently certificated IXCs.
As areseller, Granite will not have any access services or carrier customers in Tennessee
who need to be informed of the availability of dialing parity. Should RTC provide access
services as a UNE-P or facilities-based provider, RTC’s access carrier customers will be
informed of the availability of dialing parity.

VL. PIC Change Charges

The charge for a PIC change will be stated in RTC’s tanff, and will be filed with
the TRA.

VII.  Anti-Slamming Procedures

RTC will establish procedures for handling PIC change orders consistent with
TRA requirements RTC will work with IXCs and any customer who has been slammed
in order to quickly resolve any disputes. RTC will ensure that the customer’s PIC

selection 1s changed back to 1ts carrier of choice, without charge to the customer, as soon
as possible



VIII Non-Discriminatory Access

RTC will provide non-discriminatory access to customers for telephone numbers,
operator services, directory assistance and directory listings



EXHIBIT K

Certificate of Service

Incumbent Local Exchange Service Providers



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This 1s to certify that on October 20, 2004, a copy of the Application of RTC
Communications, Inc. for a Certificate to Provide Competing Local Telecommunications

Services, without exhibits, was sent via first class mail, postage prepaid to the attached
service list.

M\p&—a\#
JohhBecdi, John Staurulakis, Inc.

For RTC Communications, Inc.




LISTING
INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE PROVIDERS
CERTIFICATED IN TENNESSEE
(FACILITIES -BASED)

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

ARDMORE TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P.O Box 549

517 Ardmore Avenue

Ardmore, TN 38449

(205) 423-2131

(205) 423-2208 (Fax)

BELLSOUTH

333 Commerce Street
Nashwille, TN 37201-3300
(615) 214-3800

(615) 214-8820 (Fax)

CENTURY TELEPHONE OF ADAMSVILLE
P.O. Box 405

116 N Oak Street

Adamsville, TN 38310

(901) 632-3311

(901) 632-0232 (Fax)

CENTURY TELEPHONE OF CLAIBORNE
P.O. Box 100

507 Main Street

New Tazewell, TN 37825

(423) 626-4242

(423) 626-5224 (Fax)

CENTURY TELEPHONE OF OOLTEWAH—COLLEGEDALE INC.
P.O Box 782

5616 Main Street
Ooltewah, TN 37363
(423) 238-4102
(423) 238-5699 (Fax)

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF TENNESSEE
PO Box 770

300 Bland Street
Bluefield, WV 24701
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LISTING g
INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE PROVIDERS
CERTIFICATED IN TENNESSEE
(FACILITIES-BASED)

7)
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10)

11)

12)

13)

CITIZENS COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY OF THE VOLUNTEER STATE

PO Box 770
300 Bland Street
Bluefield, WV 24701

LORETTO TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P O Box 130

Loretto, TN 38469

(931) 853-4351

(931) 853-4329 (Fax)

MILLINGTON TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P.O. Box 429

4880 Navy Road

Millington, TN 38083-0429

(901) 872-3311

(901) 873-0022 (Fax)

SPRINT-UNITED

112 Sixth Street
Bristol, TN 37620
(423) 968-8161
(423’) 968-3148 (Fax)

IDS TELECOM-CONCORD TELEPHONE EXCHANGE, INC.
P.O. Box 22610

701 Concord Road
Knoxville, TN 37933-0610
(423) 966-5828

(423) 966-9000 (Fax)

TDS TELECOM-HUMPHREYS COUNTY TELEPHONE COMPANY
P.O. Box 552

203 Long Street

New Johnsonville, TN 37134-0552
(931) 535-2200

(931) 535-3309 (Fax)

TDS TELECOM-TELLICO TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P.O Box 9




LISTING
INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE PROVIDERS
CERTIFICATED IN TENNESSEE
(FACILITIES-BASED)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

-~

102 Spence Street

Tellico Plamns, TN 37385-0009
(423) 671-4600

(423) 253-7080 (Fax)

TDS TELECOM-TENNESSEE TELEPHONE COMPANY
PO Box 18139

Knoxville, TN 37928-2139
(423) 922-3535
(423) 922-9515 (Fax)

TEC-CROCKETT TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
PO.Box 7

Friendship, TN 38034
(901) 677-8181

TEC-PEOPLE’S TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P.0. Box 310

Erin, TN 37061

(931) 289-4221

(931) 289-4220 (Fax)

TEC-WEST TENNESSEE TELEPHONE COMPANY, INC.
P.O Box 10

244 E. Main Street
Bradford, TN 38316
(901) 742-2211
(901) 742-2212 (Fax)

UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY
P.O. Box 38

120 Taylor Street

Chapel Hill, TN 37034

(931) 364-2289

(931) 364-7202 (Fax)
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Numbering Issues



RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NUMBERING ISSUES

What 1s your company’s expected demand for NXXs per NPA within a year of
approval of your application?

Response. As RTC will be providing service via resale and utilizing
unbundled network platform, RTC does not expect to demand any
NXXs during the first year of service following approval of its
application.

How many NXXs do you estimate that you will request from NANPA when you
establish your service footprint?

Response: In the event that RTC purchases or builds transmission and other
facilities at a time 1 the future, necessitating a demand for NXXs,
RTC estimates that the maximum number of NXXs 1t may request
for service m the BellSouth territory is ten (10).

When and 1n what NPA do you expect to establish your service footprint?

Response: RTC imtially will provide local service throughout the area
currently served by BellSouth

Will the company sequentially assign telephone numbers within NXXs?

Response: In the event that RTC’s operations necessitate obtaining telephone
numbers, it will assign such numbers sequentially within NXXs.

What measures does the company intend to take to conserve Tennessee
numbering resources?

Response: RTC will obtain 1ts numbers from BellSouth and thus will not over
utilize Tennessee’s numbering resources.

When ordering new NXXs for growth, what percentage fill of an existing NXX
does the company use to determine when a request for a new NXX will be
mnitiated”?

Response: As RTC will be obtaining telephone numbers from BellSouth, this
question does not apply.
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Tennessee Specific Operational Issues



RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

TENNESSEE SPECIFIC OPERATIONAL ISSUES

How does the company ntend to comply with TCA §65-21-114? In its
description, please explain technically how the company will not bill for
countywide calls within Tennessee.

Response- RTC maintains the rate center database for the state of Tennessee,
which jurisdictionalizes all Tennessee intraLATA calls. RTC will
utilize the rate center database 1n determining which calls are to be
billed to its customers.

Is the company aware of the Tennessee County Wide Calling database maintained
by BellSouth and the procedures to enter your telephone numbers on the
database?

Response: Yes, RTC 1s aware of the Tennessee County Wide Calling
database and will work with BellSouth, if necessary, to ensure that
its telephone numbers are entered onto the database.

Is your company aware of the local calling areas provided by the Incumbent Local
Exchange Carriers 1n your proposed service areas?

Response: Yes, RTC is aware of the local calling areas provided by
BellSouth, which will be RTC’s underlying carrier.

Explain the procedures that will be implemented to assure that your customers
will not be billed long distance charges for calls within the metro calling areas.

Response: RTC maintains the rate center database for the state of Tennessee,
which jurisdictionalizes all Tennessee intraLATA calls. RTC will
utilize the rate center database i determining which calls are to be
billed to 1ts customers.



Please provide the name and telephone number of an employee of your company
that will be responsible to work with the TRA on resolving customer complaints.
Response: Michael Wallin
Regulatory Manager
RTC Communications, Inc.
P.O. Box 869
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, GA 30736-0869
Telephone: (706) 965-1721
Facsimile: (706) 965-1720

Does the company intend to telemarket its services in Tennessee? If yes, 1s the
company aware of the telemarketing statutes and regulations found in TCA §65-
4-401 et seq and Chapter 1220-4-11?

Response: RTC does not intend to telemarket its services in Tennessee at this
time. Should RTC conduct telemarketing in Tennessee at any time
in the future, 1t will abide by all applicable TRA regulations.
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Before the
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF

RTC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

FOR A CERTIFICATE TO PROVIDE COMPETING
LOCAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

PRE-FILED TESTIMONY OF PHILIP ERLI

I, Phulip Erli, do hereby testify as follows in support of the application of RTC
Communications, Inc. (RTC) for a Certificate of convenience and necessity as a
competing telecommunications services provider to provide telecommunications services
throughout the State of Tennessee.

Q:
A:

Please state your full name, business address, and position.

My full name is Philip Erli. Tam Executive Vice President of Ringgold
Telephone Company and Board Member of RTC Communications, Inc., address
6203 Alabama Highway, Ringgold, GA 30736-0869.

Please briefly describe your duties.

I am responsible for the management and the daily operations of RTC
Communications, Inc. and 1ts affiliates.

Please describe your business experience and educational background

As Executive Vice President for Ringgold Telephone Company (parent company
of applicant) and Board Member of RTC Communications, Inc., I have a wide
variety of expenence in the telecommunications industry spanning 31 years,
including management, communications consulting, marketing, busimess
planning, sales and regulatory positions. I am a graduate of Indiana State

University with a BS degree in finance, and earned an MBA from Indiana
University



Are all statements in RTC Communications, Inc.’s Application true and correct to
the best of your knowledge, information and belief?

Yes.

Please describe the current corporate structure of RTC Communications, Inc.

RTC Communications, Inc. 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Ringgold Telephone
Company, an incumbent local exchange carrier in Georgia. All of the officers of
RTC Communications, Inc. are also employees of Ringgold Telephone Company.
In addition, all of the officers of RTC Communications, Inc. are associated with
Ringgold Telephone Long Distance, a toll reseller that provides service in
Georgia and Tennessee, and Ringgold Telephone PCS Corporation, a holding
company for assets received from the sale of the GA PCS wireless company.

Does RTC Communications, Inc. possess the requisite managerial, financial, and
technical abilities to provide the services for which 1t has applied for authority?

Yes.

Please describe RTC’s financial qualifications.

RTC’s financial statements have been submitted to the Authority with its
application as Exhibit F. The Company’s financial position clearly demonstrates
the Company’s ability to support its operations and serve the public in the State of
Tennessee. As RTC proposes to provide local services utilizing UNE-P, its own
facilities and as a reseller of local and interexchange telecommunications services,
RTC’s habulities to its underlying carriers would be incurred upon the rendering
of service. RTC does not initially plan to construct facilities. The Company will,
therefore, require no additional capitalization nor resource expenditure to expand
its operations in Tennessee.

Please describe RTC’s managerial and technical qualifications.

RTC Communications, Inc. possesses the technical capabihity and managerial
qualifications to provide reliable competitive local exchange service 1n the State
of Tennessee. Professional biographies of RTC’s key personnel submitted with
the Application demonstrate staff 1s well qualified to execute RTC’s business
plans, and have extensive managerial and technical experience 1n the
telecommunications industry.



What services will RTC offer?

RTC proposes to offer a variety of competitive local exchange services, including
basic service, custom calling features and intraLATA toll services utilizing
incumbent local exchange carrier unbundled network elements and RTC facilities.

Will RTC offer service to all consumers within its service area?

Yes. RTC will provide telephone exchange services to residential and business
customers in Tennessee.

Does RTC plan to offer local exchange telecommunications services in areas
served by any incumbent local exchange telephone company with fewer than
100,000 total access lines?

No.

Will the granting of a certificate of convenience and necessity to RTC serve the
public interest?

Yes. RTC’s proposed services will afford customers competitive services and
rates. The provision of these services will enhance the competitive environment
that is being encouraged in the telecommunications industry by the State of
Tennessee and the Federal Government (the Telecommunications Act of 1996,
and the Federal Communications Commission).

Does RTC intend to comply with all TRA rules, statutes and orders pertaining to
the provision of telecommunications services in Tennessee, including those for
disconnection and reconnection of service?

Yes.

Has any state ever denied RTC or one of 1its affiliates authorization to provide
intrastate service?

No.

Has any state ever revoked the certification of RTC or one of its affiliates?

No



Has RTC or one of its affiliates ever been investigated or sanctioned by any

regulatory authonty for service or billing irregularities?

No.
Who is knowledgeable about RTC’s operations and will serve as RTC’s

regulatory and customer service contact?

Michael Wallin, Regulatory Manager of RTC Communications, Inc

Please explain 1n detail RTC’s proposed procedures for responding to information

requests from the TRA and 1ts staff.
TRA staff may reach Michael Wallin via phone at (706) 965-2345, via facsimile
at (706) 965-1720, or by letter at 6203 Alabama Highway, Ringgold, GA 30736-

0869.
Does this conclude your testimony?

: Yes.
I swear that the foregoing testimony is true and correct to the best of my knowledge

24

Phifip Erli U
Board Membeér, RTC Communications, Inc
Executive Vice President, Ringgold Telephone Company

Subscnbed and sworn to me this Ji-,_&day of /»"JO b@r

Notar\ Pubhc W ?“- { M%A’
State of Georgla
-County of CDA'OOSO\/
mmission Expires Jaruary 10,2005

My commission expires_Ny Co

, 2004.
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R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tanff No 1
Orniginal Page No. 1

RT C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF INTRASTATE CHARGES
APPLYING TO COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES WITHIN

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE

This tanff contans the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furmishing of service and
facthities for telecommunications services provided by R T C Communications, Inc. (Company) with
principal offices at 6203 Alabama Highway, Ringgold, Georgia 30736 This tanff applies to services
furnished within the State of Tennessee This taniff 1s on file with the Tennessee Regulatory Authorty

(TRA) and copies may be nspected, during normal business hours, at the Company's principal place of
business.

Issued ISSDATE Effective: EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEX

SECTION 1 — APPLICATION OF TARIFF

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS

SECTION 3 — GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION 4 — SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES
SECTION 5 - LOCAL CALLING AREAS

SECTION 6 — NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES
SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES

SECTION 9 — SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS

SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN)

RATE SCHEDULES

Tennessee R.A. Tanff No 1
Ornigmal Page No. 2

Issued ISSDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Effecive. EFFDATE



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

(©)
O
@

M)

R)
(M

EXPLANATION OF NOTES

Indicates Changed Regulation

Indicates Discontinued Rate or Regulation
Indicates Rate Increase

Indicates Move n Location of Text
Indicates New Rate or Regulation

Indicates Rate Reduction

Tennessee R.A. Tanff No 1
Ornigmal Page No. 3

Indicates Change of Text Only, With No Change 1n Rate or Regulation

Issued ISSDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Effective EFFDATE



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Tennessee R A. Tanff No. 1
Original Page No. 4

INDEX
A
Section Page

Access to Customer's Premises. .. oo oceevvee oo e e e e e e, 3 20
Application of Tanff vt e 1 2
Application of Rates..... ..... .. ... e e e e 4 e 3 29
Avallabihty .. ... ... C e e e e e 1 2

B
Basic Busmess Line Service .. ... ... ... .... v e e e v e e s 6 8
Busmess Network Switched Service...... . .... ... 6 6
Issued. ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer

R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1
Ornigmal Page No 5

INDEX (Cont'd)
C
Section Page
Changes - Telephone Number .. ... oo o vt s et e 3 28
Charges Associated with Premises Visit ... .. .. o .. 4 3
Charges for Service - Responsibility for ...... . ... ..... 3 9
Connection Charges... .. .o vt v ve s e e 4 2
Customer Provided Equipment, Liability for ... ... .. .o o . 3 5
Issued- ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
Original Page No 6

INDEX (Cont'd)
D
Section Page
Deposits . . ... e e e e e e e e s s 3 9
Deposits - Business............ ... e e e e 3 28
Directory Assistance ServiCe . ... . ot ceceivs + e e e e e 7 6
Directory Listings ........ .. ... s 7 17
Dishonored Checks, BUSINEss. . ... cooceveeecer e et e 3 28
E
Explanation of TErms ... .. ooer v v v+ i e e e e 2 1
F
Features ... ......... . .. Lo L Lo . 7 10
FlatRate Service ...... . ... ... . e e e 6 4
G
General Rules And Regulations .. ...... ... .coeies e v, e e e e e 3 1
H
(Reserved for future use)
Issued: ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R.A. Tarniff No. 1
Orniginal Page No 7

INDEX (Cont'd)
I
Section Page
Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements.. . ... oo cove oo e oo e o 9 4
Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN).. ... et veee o o e e e 10 2
J
(Reserved for future use)
K
(Reserved for future use)
Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tariff No. 1

INDEX (Cont'd)
L
Late Payment Charges .. ........ oceeeee e Ve e e e B
Limitations on Liability . ... o0 L. s o e e e,
Local Calling Areas. ... ... ... C e e e e e v e e
M
Mmimum Pertod of Service. ...« s e
N
Nonpayment-Suspension or Termination for
- Residential Requirements .. ... e .
Non-Routine Installation and/or Mamtenance...... ... .. covvee + covvvveeee oo o
o
Obligat1on of COMPANY ..ccccoee oo cocvviieieies cives ceeeceeerees oveens eee v

Onginal Page No. 8

Section Page
3 19
3 5
5 2
3 8
3 22
9 4
3 4

Issued. ISSDATE
Alce Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Effective EFFDATE



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

INDEX (Cont'd)

Tennessee R A. Tariff No 1

Orniginal Page No 9

Section Page
Payment of Charges.. ... ... i e e e e, 3 18
Payment for Services Rendered .. . ... oo e i e e e e, 3 9
PBX Trunk Service .. . . oot v e e o e e, 6 9
Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC) Change Charge . .... 4 3
Primary Rate Interface (PRI) ... e e e e e e 10 8
Private Line Service ... 8 1
Promotional Trals.. .. .. ... i vt et e e e e, 7 3
R
Remote Call Forwarding ... i i e e e e e e 7 8
Residence Service-Suspensionof . ... .. .. ... . .. .. 3 22
Residential Network Switched Service. .. ..... 6 2
Responsibility for All Charges 3 9
Restoration Charge. ..... . ... . o e 4 3
Return Check Charge ... ... . ... . . o v s e e 3 19
Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC

INDEX (Cont'd)

Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1

Ornginal Page No. 10

Section Page

Service TEITItOrY... .. oo v oviee eeeeees e v e C e 1 2
Service and Promotional Trlals ........................ v e e i e 7 3
Special Arrangements.... o s ceiiee e e e e e 9 1
Special Construction. ... e e e e e e 9 2
Supplemental Services... ... ........ i e 7 1
SUTChArges.. ... ... 0 e e e e e e e e e e e e 3 21
Suspended Service

Suspension - Elderly, Blind or Disabled (Residential) .. ... ... .. ... .o 3 30

Suspension or Termmation of Service. . ........ .. 3 22

T
Telephone Number Changes, Business.. ... ... ... ... .. 3 28
Telephone Number Changes, Residential . .. ........ ... 3 29
Telephone Surcharges. ... . ... . 3 21
Termination Liability for Spemal Constructlon ................................. 9 3
Termmation of SETVICE ... ... oo ittt e e e e e 3 22
Terms - Explanation of ... oo cee vt e e e e e e e e 2 1
Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Commumecations, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A Tanff No. 1
Origmal Page No. 11

INDEX (Cont'd)
U
Section Page

Umiversal Service Fund (USF).... .. .oee ceeer e e, C v e 3 32
Use and Ownership of EQUIPMENt .........ccovevevvivieins covvveee e v et e e e, 3 6
Use of Facilities and Services. .. ... e e e ov v e 3 4
Use of Facilities of Other Companies. ... ..... e e e e eeee e 3 5
Useof Service . ... .. ... . L e e e 3 6

\Y%
(Reserved for future use)

w
(Reserved for future use)

X
(Reserved for future use)

Y
(Reserved for future use)

Y
(Reserved for future use)
Issued ISSDATE Effective: EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Commumcations, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1

Section 1
Onginal Page No 1

CONTENTS

SECTION 1 — APPLICATION OF TARIFF

Page
1.1 Application of Tariff.. ... ... . i il e e e e e 2
111 Service Terntory. . ..o v s e e C e e e .2

Issued ISSDATE

Effecive EFFDATE
Alice Ewvitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer

R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1

Section 1
Oniginal Page No 2

SECTION 1 - APPLICATION OF TARIFF

11 APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This Tanff sets forth the regulations and rates applicable to services provided by R T C
Communications, Inc. as follows:

The furmishing of intrastate communications services by virtue of one-way and/or two-way
information transmission between points within the State of Tennessee

1.1.1  Service Territory

R T C Communications, Inc will provide service in the following areas where technically
feasible and facilittes permit

All BellSouth exchanges 1n the State of Tennessee

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chtef Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R A Tariff No 1

Section 2
Oniginal Page No 1

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS

ANALOG

A transmission method employing a continuous (rather than a pulsed or digital) electrical signal that varies

n amplitude or frequency 1n response to changes of sound, light, position, etc , impressed on a transducer 1n
the sending device.

APARTMENTS

A building or group of buildings used primarily to provide complete residential apartments but not lodging
on a day-to-day basts.

AUTHORIZED USER

A person, corporation or other entity who 1s authonized by the Company's customer to utilize service
provided by the Company to the customer The customer 1s responsible for all charges mncurred by an

Authorized User
ATTENDANT

An operator of a PBX console or telephone switchboard.

AUTOMATIC NUMBER IDENTIFICATION (“ANI")

\

A system whereby the calling party's telephone number 1s identified and sent forward with the call record
for routing and billing purposes. E911 Service makes use of this system.

Issued ISSDATE Effective: EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy :

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tariff No. 1
Section 2
Onigimal Page No 2

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

BIT
The smallest umt of information n the binary system of notation.
BUILDING

A structure enclosed within exterior walls or fire walls, built, erected and framed of component structural
parts and designed for permanent occupancy

CENTRAL OFFICE

An operating office of the Company where connections are made between telephone exchange hnes

CENTRAL OFFICE LINE

A line providing direct or indirect access from a telephone or switchboard to a central office Central office
lines subject to PBX rate treatment are referred to as central office trunks

CHANNEL

A point-to-pomt bi-directional path for digital transmission. A channel may be furmished in such a manner
as the Company may elect, whether by wire, fiber optics, radio or a combination thereof and whether or not
by means of single physical facility or route. One 1 544 Mbps Service 1s equivalent to 24 channels.

CHANNEL SERVICE UNIT (“CSU”)

The equipment located at the customer's premises which terminates each 1.544 Mbps Digital Loop and
performs such functions as proper termination of facilities, regeneration of signals, recognition and
correction of signal format errors and provides remote loop-back capability.

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No 1
Section 2
Orniginal Page No. 3

SECTION 2 - EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

COLLEGE

An establishment for higher education authorized to confer degrees where lodging for the students i1s
maintained on the premises

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS

Channels and other facilities which are capable of two-way communications between subscriber-provided
terminal equipment or Telephone Company stations, even when not connected to exchange and message toll
communications service.

COMPANY
R T C Communications, Inc , unless otherwise clearly indicated from the context.
COMMISSION

The Tennessee Public Service Commussion.

CUSTOMER

The person, firm, corporation, or other entity which orders service pursuant to this Tariff and utilizes service
provided under Tanff by the Company A customer 1s responsible for the payment of charges and for
comphiance with all terms of the Company's Tanff.

CUSTOMER PREMISES EQUIPMENT (CPE)

Equipment provided by the customer for use with the Company's services. CPE can include a station set,
facsimle machine, key system, PBX, or other communication system.

Issued ISSDATE Effecive EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R.A Tariff No 1
Section 2
Original Page No. 4

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

DEMARCATION POINT
The physical dividing point between the Company's network and the customer.

DIGITAL

A method of storing, processing and transmtting information through the use of distinct electronic or
optical pulses that represent the binary digits (bits) 0 and 1 Digital transmission/switching technologies
employ a sequence of discrete, individually distinct pulses to represent mformation, as opposed to the
continuously vaniable signal of analog technologies

DIRECT INWARD DIAL (“DID”)

A service attribute that routes incomung calls directly to stations, by-passing a central answer point

DIRECT OUTWARD DIAL (“DOD™)

A service attribute that allows individual station users to access and dial outside numbers directly

DUAL TONE MULTI-FREQUENCY (“DTMF”)

The pulse type employed by tone dial station sets. (Touch tone)

Issued ISSDATE Effectiver EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
Section 2
Origmal Page No 5

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

E911 SERVICE DISTRICT

The geographic area mn which the government agency will respond to all E911 calls and dispatch
appropriate emergency assistance.

ERROR

A discrepancy or unintentional deviation by the Company from what 1s correct or true. An “error”, can also
be an omission 1n records.

EXCHANGE

An area, consisting of one or more central office districts, withmn which a call between any two ponts 1s a
local call.

EXCHANGE ACCESS LINE
A central office line furmshed for direct or indirect access to the exchange system.

EXCHANGE SERVICE

The provision to the subscriber of access to the exchange system for the purpose of sending and recerving
calls. This access 1s achieved through the provision of a central office line (exchange access line) between
the central office and the subscriber's premuses.

Issued ISSDATE Effecive EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc

6203 Alabama Highway

Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R.A. Tariff No. 1
Section 2
Oniginal Page No. 6

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

FINAL ACCOUNT
A customer whose service has been disconnected who has outstanding charges still owed to the Company.
FLAT RATE SERVICE

The type of exchange service provided at a monthly rate with an unlimited number of calls within a
specified primary calling area.

HOSPITAL

An establishment for treatment of human patients by members of the medical profession where lodging for
the patients 1s maintamed on the premises.

HOTEL
An establishment offering lodging with or without meals to the general public on a day-to-day basis.

INTERFACE

That point on the premises of the subscriber at which provision 1s made for connection of facilities provided
by someone other than the Company to facilities provided by the Company.

INTEROFFICE MILEAGE

The segment of a line which extends between the central offices serving the oniginating and termiating
points.

INTERRUPTION

The mability to complete calls, either incoming or outgoing or both, due to Company facilities malfunction
or human errors

Issued ISSDATE Effective: EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A. Taniff No 1
Section 2
Oniginal Page No. 7

SECTION 2 — EXPLANATION OF TERMS (Cont'd)

JOINT USER

A person, firm, or corporation which uses the telephone service of a subscriber as provided m Section 1 of
the Tanff.

KILOBITS PER SECOND (KBPS)

One thousand bits per second.

LATA

Local Access and Transport Area. The area within which the Company provides local and long distance
(“mntraLATA”) service. For call to numbers outside this area (“interLATA”) service 1s provided by long
distance companies

LINK

The physical facility from the network interface on an end-user's or carrier's premuses to the point of
mterconnection on the main distribution frame of the Company's central office.

LOCAL CALL
A call which, 1f placed by a customer over the facilities of the Company, 1s not rated as a toll call

LOCAL CALLING AREA

The area, consisting of one or more central office districts, within which a subscriber for exchange service
may make telephone calls without a toll charge.

LOCAL SERVICE

Telephone exchange service within a local calling area
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LOOP START

Describes the signaling between the termnal equipment or PBX/key system 1nterface and the Company's
switch. It 1s the signal requesting service.

LOOPS

Segments of a line which extend from the serving central office to the onginating and to the termmating
point.

MEGABITS PER SECOND (MBPS)
One mullion bits per second.

MOVE

The disconnection of existing equipment at one location and reconnection of the same equipment at a new
location m the same building or mn a different building on the same premuses.

MULTI-FREQUENCY (“MF”)

An mter-machine pulse-type used for signaling between telephone company switches, or between telephone
company switches and PBX/key systems.

MULTILINE HUNT

A method of call signaling by which a call placed to one number 1s subsequently routed to one or more
alternative numbers when the called number 1s busy.
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NODE

The location to which digital channels are routed and where access 1s provided to such lines and associated
equipment for testing

PBX
A private branch exchange

PORT

A connection to the switching network with one or more voice grade communications channels, each with a
unique network address (telephone number) dedicated to the customer. A port connects a link to the public
switched network.

PREMISES

The space occupied by a customer or authorized user 1n a building or buildings or contiguous property not
separated by a public nght of way.

PRIVATE BRANCH EXCHANGE SERVICE

Service providing facilities for connecting central office trunks and tie hnes to PBX stations, and for
interconnecting PBX station hines by means of a switchboard or dial apparatus.

PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT (“PSAP”)

An answering location for E911 calls ongmating 1n a given area A PSAP may be designated as primary or
secondary, which refers to the order i which calls are directed for answering. Primary PSAPs respond first;

secondary PSAPs receive calls on a transfer basis only and generally serve as a centralized answering
location for a particular type of emergency call

REFERRAL PERIOD

The time frame during which calls to a number which has been changed will be sent to a recording which
will inform the caller of the new number
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SAME PREMISES

All space n the same building 1n which one subscriber has the right of occupancy, and all space in different
buildings on contiguous property when occupied solely by the same subscriber. Foyers, hallways and other
space for the common use of all occupants of a building are considered the premuses of the operator of the
building.

SERVING CENTRAL OFFICE

The central office from which local service 1s furnished.

STATION

Each telephone on a line and where no telephone associated with the line 1s provided on the same prenuses
and n the same building, the first termination 1n station key equipment or a jack for use with a portable
telephone

SUSPENSION

Suspenston of service for nonpayment 1s interruption of outgoing service only. Suspension of service at the
subscriber's request 1s mterruption of both incoming and outgoing service.

SYNCHRONOUS

Transmussion n which there 1s a constant time mterval between bits, characters or events
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T-1 SYSTEM

A type of digital carmer system transmutting voice or data at 1 544 Mbps. A T-1 carrier can handle up to 24
multiplexed 64 Kbps digital voice/data channels. A T-1 carrier system can use metallic cable, microwave
radio or optical fiber as transmussion media

TELEPHONE CALL

A voice connection between two or more telephone stations through the public switched exchange system
TERMINATION OF SERVICE

Discontinuance of both incoming and outgoing service.

TIE LINE

A dedicated line connecting two switchboards or dial systems.

TOLL CALL

Any call extending beyond the local exchange of the oniginating caller which 1s rated on a toll schedule by
the Company

TWO-WAY

A service attribute that includes DOD for outbound calls and can also be used to carry inbound calls to a
central pont for processing

USER

A customer, jomnt user, or any other person authorized by a customer to use service provided under this
Tanff
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3.1 USE OF FACILITIES AND SERVICE

311

Obligation of the Company

In furmishing facilities and service, the Company does not undertake to transmit messages,
but furnishes the use of 1ts facilities to 1ts customers for communications.

The Company's obligation to furnish facilities and service 1s dependent upon 1ts ability
(a) to secure and retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable facilities and rights for the
construction and maintenance of the necessary circuits and equipment; (b) to secure and
retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable space for its plant and facilities in the
building where service 1s or will be provided to the customer, or (c)to secure
retmbursement of all costs where the owner or operator of a building demands relocation or
rearrangement of plant and facilities used in providing service therein

The Company shall not be required to furnish, or continue to furmsh, facilities or service
where the circumstances are such that the proposed use of the facilities or service would
tend to adversely affect the Company's plant, property or service.

The Company reserves the nght to refuse an application for service made by a present or
former customer who 1s indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant
to this Tanff until the indebtedness 1s satisfied.
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3.1 USE OF FACILITIES AND SERVICE (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Limitations on Liability

a.

Indemnification by Customer

The customer and any authorized or jomnt users, jomtly and severally shall
indemmify, defend and hold the Company harmless against claims, loss, damage,
expense (including attorneys' fees and court costs) for libel, slander, or
infringement of copyright arising from the material transmitted over 1ts facilities;
aganst claims for infringement of patents anising from combining with, or using n
connection with, facilities of the Company, equipment and systems of the
customer; and against all other claims arising out of any act or omussion of the
customer n connection with facilities provided by the Company or the customer
In the event any such infringing use 1s enjoned, the customer, authorized user or
joint user at its option and expense, shall obtain immediately a dismissal or stay of
such mjunction, obtain a license or other agreement so as to extinguish any claim
of infringement, or termunate the claimed nfringing use or modify such
infringement.

Customer-Provided Equipment

The service and facilities furnished by the Company are subject to the following
hmitations: the Company shall not be liable for damage arising out of nustakes,
omussions, interruptions, delays, errors or defects in transmssion or other mnjury,
mcluding but not limited to njunes to persons or property from voltages or
currents transmutted over the facilities of the Company caused by customer-
provided equipment or premuses wire.

Use of Facilities of Other Companies

When the facilities of other companies are used 1n establishing a connection, the
Company 1s not liable for any act, error, omussion, or interruption caused by the
other company or their agents or employees. This includes the provision of a
signaling system database by another company.
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31 USE OF FACILITIES AND SERVICE (Cont'd)
31.3 UseOf Service

Any service provided under this Tariff may be resold to or shared (jointly used) with other
persons at the customer's option The customer remains solely responsible for all use of
service ordered by 1t or billed to 1ts telephone number(s) pursuant to this Tanff, for
determining who 1s authorized to use 1ts service, and for promptly notifying the Company
of any unauthonzed use. The customer may advise its customers that a portion of 1ts
service 1s provided by the Company, but the customer shall not represent that the Company
jointly participates with the customer in the provision of the service.

3.14  Use and Ownership of Equipment

The Company's equipment, apparatus, channels and lines shall be carefully used.
Equipment furmished by the Company shall remain 1ts property and shall be returned to the
Company whenever requested, within a reasonable penod following the request, 1n good
condition, reasonable wear and tear accepted The customer is required to reimburse the
Company for any loss of, or damage to, the facilities or equipment on the customer's
premuses, mncluding loss or damage caused by agents, employees or independent contractors
of the customer through any neghgence

3.1.5 Durectory Errors

In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct and except for the allowances
stated below, no hability for damages ansing from errors or mistakes in or omissions of
directory listings, or errors or mustakes in or omussions of lhistings obtamable from the

directory assistance operator, including errors 1n the reporting thereof, shall attach to the
Company

An allowance for errors or mistakes in or omussions of published directory listings or for
errors or mustakes 1 or omussions of listings obtamable from the directory assistance
operator shall be given as follows:

a Free Listings: For free or no-charge published directory listings, credit shall be
given at the rate of two times the monthly taniff rate for an additional or charge
listing for each individual, auxihary or party line, PBX trunk affected, for the life

of the directory or the charge period during which the error, mistake or omuission
occurs.
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3.1 USE OF FACILITIES AND SERVICE (Cont'd)

315 Directory Errors

b.

Charge Listings: For additional or charge published directory listings, credit shall
be given at the monthly tanff rate for each such hsting for the life of the directory
or the charge period during which the error, mistake or omission occurs.

Operator Records' For free or charge listings obtainable from records used by the
directory assistance operator, upon notification to the Company of the error,
mustake or omussion mn such records by the subscriber, the Company shall be
allowed a period of three business days to make a correction If the correction 1s
not made n that time, credit shall be given at the rate of 2/30ths of the basic
monthly rate for the line or lines 1n question for each day thereafter that the records
remain uncorrected.

Credit Limutation: The total amount of the credit provided for the preceding
paragraphs a, b, and c shall not exceed, on a monthly basis, the total of the charges
for each charge histing plus the basic monthly rate, as specified in paragraph 3, for
the line or lines 1n question

Defimitions: As used n Paragraphs a, b, ¢, and d above, the terms "error,"
"mustake" or "omussion" shall refer to a discrepancy in the directory listing or
directory assistance records which the Company has failed to correct and where the
error affects the ability to locate a particular subscriber's correct telephone number.
The terms shall refer to addresses only to the extent that an error, mistake or
omission of an address places the subscriber on an incorrect street or m an
mcorrect community.

Notice: Such allowances or credits as specified in Paragraphs a, b, and ¢ above,
shall be given upon notice to the Company by the subscriber that such error,
mustake or omussion has occurred; provided, however, that when 1t 1s
admimistratively feasible for the Company to have knowledge of such error,
mustake or omission, the Company shall give credit without the requirement of
notification by the subscribers.
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3.2 MINIMUM PERIOD OF SERVICE

The mimimum penod of service 1s one month except as otherwise provided n this Taniff. The
customer must pay the regular tariffed rate for the service they subscribe to for the mmimum period
of service. If a customer disconnects service before the end of the mmmimum service perod, that
customer 1s responsible for paying the regular rates for the remainder of the munimum service
period When the service 1s moved within the same building, to another building on the same
prenuses, or to a different premises entirely, the period of service at each location 1s accumulated to
calculate 1f the customer has met the minimum period of service obligation

If service 1s terminated before the end of the minimum period of service as a result of condemnation
of property, damage to property requinng the premises to be abandoned, or by the death of the
customer, the customer 1s not obligated to pay for service for the remainder of the muimmum penod.

If service 15 switched over to a new customer at the same premuses after the first month's service, the
minimum period of service requirements are assigned to the new customer 1if the new customer
agrees In wnting to accept them. For facilities not taken over by the new customer, the original
customer 1s responsible for the remaining payment for the mimimum service period 1n accordance
with the terms under which the service was ongimally furnished.
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SECTION 3 - GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED
3.3.1 Responsibility for All Charges

Any applicant for facilities or service may be required to sign an application form
requesting the Company to furmish the facilities or service in accordance with the rates,
charges, rules and regulations from time to time in force and effect. The customer 1s
responsible for all local and toll calls originating from the customer's premises and for all
calls charged to the customer's line where any person answering the customer's line agrees
to accept such charge.

33.2 Apphcant or Customer Deposit
a. Defimtion of Applicant and Customer

For purposes of this subsection, an applicant 1s defined as a person who applies for
service for the first time or reapplies at a new or existing location after
discontinuance of service. Customer 1s defined as someone who 1s currently
receiving service

b. Establishment of Credit

1. The Company may require a permanent residential applicant for service to
satisfactorily establish credit, but such establishment of credit will not
relieve the customer from prompt payment of bills Credit history shall be
apphed equally for a reasonable penod of time to a spouse or former
spouse who shared telephone service Credit history applies equally to
both, without modification.

2, A residential applicant will not be required to pay a deposit subject to the
following rules.

a) If the residential applicant has been a customer of any Company
for the same kind of service within the last three (3) years and 1s
not delinquent in payment of any such telephone service account,
and duning the last twelve (12) consecutive months of service, did
not have more than one occasion in which a hll for such
telephone service was paid after becoming delinquent, and never
had service disconnected for nonpayment  Applicants are

encouraged to obtain a letter of credit from their previous serving
Company
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)

332 Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)

b.

Establishment of Credit (Cont'd)

2

D

2

€)

(Cont'd)

b) If the residential applicant furnishes in writing a satisfactory
guarantee to secure payment of bills for the service required.

The thard party guarantor must be a customer of the Company and must
have been a customer of the Company for at least one (1) year, and have
established satisfactory credit in which no balance has been camed
forward, and without having service disconnected for nonpayment of
account, and without having more than two (2) occasions in which a bill
was delinquent 1n the past twelve (12) consecutive months.

The guaranty contract shall be on a form provided by the Company which
shall include the Company's night to transfer charges from a defaulted bill
of the customer from whom a deposit or Contract of Guaranty was
required, to the guarantor's account or accounts and the further nght to
suspend the guarantor's service as provided in this Tanff

Unless otherwise agreed to by the guarantor, the guarantee shall be for the
amount of the deposit the Company would normally seek on the applicant's
account. The amount of the guarantee shall be clearly indicated on any
documents or contracts of guaranty signed by the guarantor.
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)

332 Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)
b Establishment of Credit (Cont'd)
2. (Cont'd)

c) If the residential applicant demonstrates a satisfactory credit rating
by appropriate means including, but not limited to, the production
of generally acceptable credit cards, letters of credit reference, the
names of credit references which may be quckly and
mexpensively contacted by the Company, or by ownership of
substantial equity

d) All applicants for permanent residential service who are sixty-five
(65) years of age or older will be considered as having established
credit 1f such applicant does not have an outstanding account
balance with the Company or another telephone Company for the
same telephone service which accrued within the last five (5)

years

3. An applicant for business service may be required to make a deposit if the
credit of the applicant for service has not been established satisfactonily to
the Company.

4, Every applicant who has previously been a customer of the Company and

whose service has been discontinued for nonpayment of bills shall be
required to pay all amounts due the Company, or execute a deferred
payment agreement 1f offered, and re-establish credit before service 1s
rendered by the Company
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)

3.3.2  Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)

C

Interest on Deposits

1.

The Company shall pay interest on deposits at the rate of seven percent
(7%) per annum Interest on deposits shall accrue annually and, if
requested, shall be annually credited to the customer by deducting such
interest from the amount of the next bill for service following the accrual
date.

After the customer has paid for twelve (12) consecutive bills for service
without having had service discontinued for nonpayment or had more than
one occasion mn which a bill was not paid within the period prescribed by
the regulations of the Company on file with the Commuission, and the
customer 1s not then delinquent 1n the payment of his bills, the Company
shall annually and automatically refund the deposit plus accrued interest.
Deposits maturing under this Section for refund and falling on other than
the Company's normal annual refund date will be promptly returned to the
customer upon request If the customer has had service discontinued for
nonpayment of his bill or had more than one past due bill for such period,
the Company shall thereafter review the account every twelve (12) billings
and shall promptly and automatically refund the deposit plus accrued
interest after the customer has not had service discontinued for
nonpayment of bill or had more than one such past due bill during the
twelve (12) billings prior to any review and 1s not then delinquent 1n the
payment of his bills.
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)

3.32  Apphcant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)

d Deposit Required

1. When a permanent residential or business applicant does not meet the
conditions listed m Section 33.2b., a deposit will be required by the
Company subject to the following rules’

2 Initial Deposit

a) The required imtial deposit shall not exceed an amount equivalent
to two and one-half months local service and the estimated call
messages during a like period.

b) The Company may require an mitial deposit from residential
customers 1f the customer has been delinquent 1n paying a bill for
telephone service on more than one occasion during the last
twelve (12) consecutive months of service or 1f the customer's
service was disconnected for nonpayment. The customer may
furnish a satisfactory written guarantee to secure payment of bills,
nstead of paying a cash deposit.
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)
3.32  Apphcant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)
e. Information Provided With Deposits
At the time a deposit 1s required, the Company shall provide written mformation
about deposits to applicants for, or customers of, business or residential service

Thus information wall include:

1. The circumstances under which the Company may require a deposit, or
request an additional deposit;

2. How a deposit 1s calculated;

3. The amount of interest paild on a deposit and how this interest 1s
calculated; and

4. The time frame and requirement for return of the depostt to the customer
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)
3.32 Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)

f. Interest on Deposits

Payment of interest to the customer shall be made annually 1if requested by the
customer, or at the time the deposit 1s returned or credited to the customer's
account. The rate of interest to be paid on Customer deposits shall be paid at the
rate prescribed by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, payable annually for the
time such deposits were held by the Company and the Customer was served by the
Company Such interest shall be calculated to December 1 of each year.

g Records of Deposits
1. The Company will keep records to show )
a) The name and address of each depositor,
b) The amount and date of the deposit; and
c) Each transaction concerning the deposit.
2. The Company will 1ssue a receipt of deposit to each apphcant from whom

a deposit 1s received and will provide means whereby a depositor may
establish his claim 1f the receipt 1s lost.

3 A record of each unclaimed deposit will be maintained for four (4) years,
during which time the Company will make a reasonable effort to return the
deposit
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)

33.2 Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)

h.

Refund of Deposit.

1.

If service 1s not connected or after disconnection of service, the Company
will promptly and automatically refund the customer's deposit plus accrued
interest or the balance, i1f any, in excess of the unpaid bills for service
furnmished A transfer of service from one premises to another within the
service area of the Company shall not be deemed a disconnection where
refund of the deposit 1s concerned.

When the customer has paid bills for service for twelve (12) consecutive
residential billings or for twelve (12) consecutive business billings without
having service disconnected for non-payment of bill and without having
more than two occasions in which a bill was delinquent, and when the
customer is not delinquent in the payment of the current bills, the
Company will promptly and automatically refund the deposit plus accrued
pro rated interest for the year at a rate prescribed by the Tenneessee
Regulatory Authority 1n the form of cash or a credit to a customer's bill, or
vold any guarantee of payment and return any documents or contracts of
guarantee to the guarantor. If the customer does not meet these refund
cnteria the deposit or contract of guarantee may be retamned.
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont’d)
33.2  Applicant or Customer Deposit (Cont’d)
1. Complaint by Applicant or Customer
The Company directs 1ts employees engaged 1n mitial contact with an applicant or
customer seeking to establish or re-establish credit, to inform the customer, 1f

dissatisfaction 1s expressed with the Company's decision, of the customer's right to
file a complaint with the Commussion
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont'd)

333

Payment of Charges

Charges for facihities and service, other than usage charges, are due monthly 1n advance.
All other charges are payable upon request of the Company Bills are due on the due date
shown on the bill and are payable at any business office ot the Company, by U.S. Mail, or
at any location designated by the Company If objection 1s not received by the Company
within three months after the bill 1s rendered, the 1items and charges appearing thereon shall
be determined to be correct and binding upon the customer. A bill will not be deemed
correct and binding upon the customer 1f the Company has records on the basis of which an
objection may be considered, or 1f the customer has 1n his or her possession such Company
records. If objection results in a refund to the customer, such refund will be with interest at
the greater of the unadjusted customer deposit rate or the applicable late payment rate, 1f
any, for the service classification under which the customer was billed Interest will be
paid from the date when the customer overpayment was made, adjusted for any changes in
the deposit rate or late payment rate, compounded monthly, until the overpayment 1s
refunded. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no nterest will be paid by the Company on
customer overpayments that are refunded within 30 days after the overpayment 1s recerved
by the Company.

Where an objection to the bill involves a superseded service order, the items and charges
appearing on the bill shall be deemed to be correct and binding upon the customer 1f
objection 1s not recerved by the Company within two months after the bill 1s rendered.
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33 PAYMENT FOR SERVICE RENDERED (Cont'd)

334 Return Check Charge

When a check which has been presented to the Company by a customer in payment for
charges 1s returned by the bank, the customer shall be responsible for the payment of a
Returned Check Charge of $25 00.

3.35 Late Payment Charges

a.

Payment will be due as specified on the Customer bill Commencing after that due
date, a late charge of up to the highest interest rate allowable by law will be applied
to all amounts past due.

Collection procedures and the requirement for a deposit are unaffected by the
application of a late payment charge The late payment charge does not apply to
unpaid balances associated with disputed amounts Undisputed amounts on the

same bill are subject to the late payment charge 1f unpaid and carred forward to
the next bill

Service may be denied or discontinued at the Company's discretion for nonpayment
of amounts due the Company past the due date as specified in 3.3.3. Restoration of

Service will be subject to all applicable installation charges.

Late payment charges do not apply to final accounts.
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SECTION 3 — GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

3.4 ACCESS TO CUSTOMER'S PREMISES

The customer shall be responsible for making arrangements or obtamning permussion for safe and
reasonable access for Company employees or agents of the Company to enter the premuses of the
customer or any jomnt user or customer of the customer at any reasonable hour for the purpose of
mspecting, repairing, testing or removing any part of the Company's facilities.
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35 TELEPHONE SURCHARGES

All state and local taxes (including but not linuted to franchise fees, excise tax, sales tax,
municipal utilities tax) are listed as separate line items and are not included 1n the quoted rates.
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3.6 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE
3.6 1 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment
a Non-payment Service Interruption

In the event of a proposed disconnection of Residential Basic Local Service only,
the following procedures shall apply

1. No Basic Residential Service shall be disconnected for Local Service
Charge until at least 29 days from the date of the bill

2. No Residential Service can be disconnected for Local Service Charges
unless the utility has given the affected customer a wrtten notice of the
proposed disconnection at least five (5) days before the proposed date of
disconnection. The notice must include

a) The final payment date of the amount due;

b) The reason for the disconnection, including the unpaid balance
due;

c) A telephone number which the customer may call for information

about the proposed disconnection, and

d) The procedure for medical emergencies, as heremafter described.

3. If contact with the customer was not previously made and notice of the
disconnection was by mail or by leaving 1t at the premuses, the utility must
make a good faith effort to contact the customer at least two (2) days
before the proposed disconnection.
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3.6 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

3.6.1 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment (Cont'd)

a.

Non-payment Service Interruption (Cont'd)

4.

Service shall not be disconnected for nonpayment of local service charged
to a residential customer who has a serious illness which would be
aggravated by said discontinuation, provided that the customer notifies the
utihity of this condition mn writing, or orally and within ten (10) days of
giving such nitial notice furmishes to the utility a written statement from a
physician, county board of health, hospital, or clinic 1dentifying the 1llness
and 1ts expected duration, and certifying that the 1llness would be
aggravated by such discontmuance. In such event, the proposed
disconnection shall be held 1n abeyance for the shorter of either the length
of the illness or one month from the date of such mitial notice, and the
customer may renew the postponement period one additional time by
repeating the aforementioned procedure. If there 1s a dispute regarding the
existence of a serious 1llness, the case may be referred to the Commssion
for final determination

a) The Company may impose toll restriction to a residential customer
who has an illness, as specified above, until payment of all
charges has been made.

Unless disputed, the invoice shall be deemed to be correct and payable
i full by the Customer If the Customer 1s unable to resolve any dispute
with the Company, then the Customer may file a complaint with the
Tennessee Regulatory Authorty. ‘

Tennessee Regulatory Authority
460 James Robertson Parkway
Nashville, TN 37243-0505
615-741-2904

After receipt of a complaint made through the Tennessee Regulatory
Authority, the Company must file a written response within ten (10)
working days with the Consumer Services Division of the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority

If the dispute 1s resolved 1n favor of the Customer and the Customer has
withheld the disputed amount, no interest, credits or penalties will apply

Issued ISSDATE

Effective. EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A. Tanff No 1

Section 3
Orngmal Page No. 24

SECTION 3 — GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

3.6 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

3.6.1 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment (Cont'd)

a.

Non-payment Service Interruption (Cont'd)

6

No consumer may be disconnected for unpaid Residential Local Service 1f
the consumer notifies the Company between the date of receiving a
notification of the proposed disconnection of service and the date set for
disconnection and agrees to pay the unpaid balance for service previously
provided n equal mstallments over the three consecutive billing months
immediately following saird notice Further, the consumer agrees to pay
future bills and the installments by the date due However, 1f a consumer
has received a notice of tent to disconnect, at any time prior to the time
when the consumer 1s once again current in his billings for service
previously provided, 1f the consumer makes toll calls exceeding $10 00 1n
any thirty (30) day period, the telephone company shall have the nght to
immediately and without further notice, disconnect telephone service to
that consumer. Similarly, 1f the consumer fails to make any agreed upon
payment as set forth immediately above, the Company may disconnect
service without further notice

If a customer's check 1s returned for insufficient funds or dishonored by the
bank, this constitutes an automatic waiver of the written notice
requirements.
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36 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

361 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment (Cont'd)

b

Disconnection With Notice

Telephone service may be disconnected after proper notice for any of the following

reasons’

1.

3.

Failure to pay a delinquent account or failure to comply with the terms of a
deferred payment agreement including only the carnage charges of an
interexchange carrier when the Company bills for those carriers.

Violation of the Company's rules pertamning to the use of service mn a
manner which mterferes with the service of others or the operation of
nonstandard equipment when a reasonable attempt has been made to notify
the customer and the customer 1s provided with a reasonable opportunity
to remedy the sttuation.

Failure to comply with deposit or guarantee arrangements where required.

Telephone service may be disconnected without notice under either of the
following conditions:

1.

Where a known dangerous condition exists for as long as the condition
exists. Where reasonable given the nature of the hazardous condition, a
written statement providing notice of disconnection and the reason
therefore shall be posted at the place of common entry or upon the front
door of each affected residential unit as soon as possible after service has
been disconnected

Where service 1s connected without authority by a person who has not
made application for service, or who has reconnected service without
authonty following termination of service for nonpayment, or 1n nstances
of tampering with the Company's equipment or bypassing the same.
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36 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

361 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment (Cont'd)

d.

Insufficient Grounds for Disconnection

Telephone service may not be disconnected for any of the following reasons:

1.

6.

Dehnquency in payment for service by a previous occupant of the
premises

Failure to pay for merchandise or charges for non-utility service purchased
from the Company

Failure to pay for a different type or class of telephone service unless
charges for such service are included on the same bill

Failure to pay the account of another customer as guarantor thereof, unless
the Company has i wnting the guarantee as a condition precedent to
services.

Failure to pay charges ansing from an underbilling occurring due to any
musapplication of rates more than six (6) months prior to the current
billing

Failure to pay charges for calls to pay-per-call information services.

Disconnection on Holidays or Weekends

Unless a dangerous condition exists or unless the customer requests disconnection,
service shall not be disconnected on a day, or on a day immediately preceding a
day, when personnel of the Company are not available to the public for the purpose
of making collections and reconnecting services.

Abandonment of Service

The Company may not abandon a customer or a certified service area without
written notice to 1ts customers theremn and all similar neighboring companies and
without approval from the Commussion
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36 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

3.6.2 Termnation of Service

Termination of Service by the Company

Service may be refused or discontinued for any of the reasons histed below.

1.

6

In the event of customer use of equipment in such a manner as to
adversely affect the equipment or the Company’s service to others.

In the event of tampering with the equipment furnished and owned by
the Company.

For violation of or noncompliance with the Commission’s Regulations
Governing Service Supplied by Telephone Utilities, or for violation of or
non-compliance with the Company’s rules on file with the Commussion

For failure to comply with mumcipal ordinance or other laws

For failure of the customer to permit the Company reasonable access to
1ts equipment.

For nonpayment of bill.

Termination of Service by the Customer

Service may be terminated at any time upon reasonable notice from the customer to
the Company Upon such termination, the customer shall be responsible for the
payment of all charges due This includes all charges due for the period of service
that has been rendered plus any unexpired portion of a mimimum service period
and applicable Termination Charges.
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SECTION 3 — GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

37 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO BUSINESS CUSTOMERS (Cont'd)

3.7.1 Telephone Number Changes

When a business customer requests a telephone number change, the referral period for the
disconnected number 1s 180 days.

The Company reserves all rights to the telephone numbers assigned to any customer. The
customer may order a Custormzed Number where facihities permut for an additional charge
as specified i Section 4 of this Tanff.

When service m an existing location 1s continued for a new customer, the existing
telephone number may be retamned by the new customer only 1if the former customer

consents 1n writing, and if all charges against the account are paid or assumed by the new
customer.

372 Deposits

Deposits will be returned to a busimess customer upon cancellation of service or after one
year, whichever event occurs first, unless the customer 1s delinquent in payment, in which
case the Company will continue to retain the deposit until the delinquency 1s satisfied If a
service 1s mvoluntarily discontinued, the deposit 1s applied against the final bill, and any
balance 1s returned to the customer.

3.7.3 Dishonored Checks

If a business customer who has received a notice of discontinuance pays the bill with a
check that 1s subsequently dishonored, the account remains unpaid and the Company is not
required to 1ssue any additional notice before disconnecting service.
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38 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS

3.8.1 Application of Rates

Residential rates as described in Section 6 apply to service furnished n private homes or
apartments (including all parts of the customer's domestic establishment) for domestic use.
Residential rates also apply mn college fratermity or sorority houses, convents and
monasteries, and to the clergy for domestic use 1n residential quarters

Residential rates do not apply to service in residential locations 1f the listing indicates a
business or profession. Residential rates do not apply to service furnished 1n residential
locations if there 1s an extension line from the residential location to a business location
unless the extension line 1s hmited to incoming calls

The use of residential service and facilities 1s restricted to the customer, members of the
customer's domestic establishment, and joint users

382 Telephone Number Changes

When a residential customer requests a telephone number change, the referral period for
the disconnected number 1s 90 days

The customer may order a Customized Number where facilities permut for an additional
charge as specified in Rate Schedule of this Tanff.

When service 1n an existing location 1s continued for a new customer, the existing number
may be retained by the new customer only 1f the former customer consents in wniting, and
if all charges against the account are paid or assumed by the new customer.
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SECTION 3 — GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

38 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS (Cont'd)
3.8.3 Suspension or Terminatton - Elderly, Blind or Disabled

An additional 20 days will be allowed before suspension or termination may occur

when-

a. the customer 1s known to or identified to the Company as being blind or
disabled,

b. the customer 1s 62 years of age or older, and all other residents of the
customer's household are: under 18 years of age, over 62 years of age,
blind or disabled.

In cases where service has been suspended or termmated and the Company
subsequently learns that the customer 1s entitled to the protection established
herein, the Company shall within 24 hours of such notification restore service for
an additional 20 days and make a diligent effort to contact in person an adult
resident at the customer's premises for the purpose of devising a payment plan
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3.9 AUTOMATIC NUMBER IDENTIFICATION

39.1 Regulations

The Company will provide Automatic Number Identification (ANI) associated with an
Infrastate service, by tanff, to any entity (ANI recipient), only under the following terms
and conditions:

The ANI recipient or its designated billing agent may use or transmit ANI
information to third parties for billing and collection, routing, screening, ensuring
network performance, and completion of a telephone subscriber's call or
transaction, or for performing a service directly related to the telephone
subscriber's original call or transaction, or for performuing a service directly related
to the telephone subscriber's original call or transaction

The ANI recipient may offer to any telephone subscriber with whom the ANI
recipient has an established customer relationship, a product or service that 1s
directly related to products or service previously purchased by the telephone
subscriber from the ANI recipient

The ANI recipient or 1ts designated billing agent 1s prohibited from utihzing ANI
information to establish marketing lists or to conduct outgoing marketing calls,
except as permitted by the preceding paragraph, unless the ANI recipient obtains
the prior wnitten consent of the telephone subscriber permitting the use of ANI
mformation for such purposes The foregoing provisions notwithstanding, no ANI

recipient or 1ts designated billing agent may utilize ANI information 1f prohibited
elsewhere by law.

The ANI recipient or 1ts designated billing agent 1s prohibited from reselling, or
otherwise disclosing ANI information to any other third party for any use other
than those listed above, unless the ANI recipient obtains the prior written consent
of the subscriber permitting such resale or disclosure.

Telephone Corporations must make reasonable efforts to adopt and apply

procedures designed to provide reasonable safeguards against the aforementioned
abuses of ANI
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39 AUTOMATIC NUMBER IDENTIFICATION (Cont'd)
3.9.1 Regulations (Cont'd)

f. Violation of any of the foregoing terms and conditions by any ANI recipient other
than a Telephone Corporation shall result, after a determination through the
Commussion's complaint process, in suspension of the transmmssion of ANI by the
Telephone Corporation until such time as the Commussion receives written
confirmation from the ANI recipient that the violations have ceased or have been
corrected. If the Commussion determines that there have been three or more
separate violations 1 a 24 month period, delivery of ANI to the offending party
shall be terminated under terms and conditions determined by the Commission

3.10 UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND (USF)

The company agrees to comply with and participate in the requirements of the USF, developed by
the Tennessee Public Service Commuission
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3.11  ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS
. 3.11.1 Telecommunications Relay Service

The Tennessee Telecommunications Relay Service (TRS) 1s a relay telecommumnications
service for the deaf, hearing and/or speech disabled population of the state of Tennessee.
The service permits telephone communications between individuals with hearing and/or
speech disabilities who must use a text telephone and individuals with normal hearing
and speech as provided 1n the tariff filed by AT&T Communications of Tennessee, Inc.

BellSouth serves as administrator of the funding mechanism and each
telecommumcations provider 1s assessed based upon gross revenues.

The following calls may not be placed through the Tennessee Relay Center

a. Calls to 700 numbers,
b Calls to time or weather recorded messages,
c. Calls to other informational recordings;
d Operator handled conference service and other teleconference calls
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3.11  ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS (Cont’d)
3.112 Link-Up America

Link-Up Tennessee 1s offered 1n all exchanges to provide subsidized assistance to
qualifying applicants It 1s intended to preserve and promote subscribership among low-
mcome households by providing a credit to the installation and service charges
applicable to the provisioning of residence service

a Regulations

1. Persons wishing to qualify for the credit must meet state certification
criteria for eligibility. This credit 1s available only to residence
customers, and will be applied to the non-recurring charges for the
establishment of service for a single-telephone line per household at the
principal place of residence

2. The subscriber must not be a dependent for federal income tax purposes,
unless the customer 1s more than 60 years of age

3. The customer must meet the requirements of a state established income
test
b. Rates and Charges

A non-recurring credit 1 the amount of one-half (maximum of $30.00) of the
installation and connection charges will be applied to the customers total
nonrecurring nstallation and connection charge.
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3.11  ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS (Cont’d)

3.11.3 Lifeline Assistance Program

The Lifeline Assistance Program adopted by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
provides for a federal credit equal to 100 percent of the Interstate subscriber Line Charge
or its equivalent state provided subsidy The program 1s available only 1n conjunction
with residence individual hine service The federal and state credits are applied to the
local service bills for qualified residential recipients of Aid to Farmlies with Dependent
Children (AFDC), Supplemental Security Income (SSI), food Stamps, or Medicaid.

a.

Application and Regulations

Guidelines for implementation of this program are as follows

1.

Certtfication Procedures All applications for this service will be verified
with the state agency responsible for administration of the programs
mentioned preceding

Processing Procedures. The Company will process all applications and
apply the appropriate credit on the customer's monthly bill A secondary

service charge 1s not applicable for existing customers subscribing to
Lifeline.

Verification Procedures. The Company will reconcile and confirm
eligibility semi-annually by providing the agency involved with a
computer tape (directly or though a third-party) of all credit recipients A
verification of eligible recipients will be made. The credit will be
discontinued on the bill following written notification to the customer of
meligibility. The mehgible customer's service will be converted to flat
rate, unless otherwise requested by the customer.
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311  ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS (Cont’d)

3.11.3 Lifeline Assistance Program (Cont’d)

To participate n the Lifeline Assistance Program, qualified residential customers will be
required to subscrnibe to Basic Access Service as defined 1n this Tanff

b Rates and Charges
1 Lifeline Residence Individual Line Service - Credit:
Monthly Rate
Federal Lifeline Credit $6 00
State Lifeline Credit $3.50

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

4.1 General ..

CONTENTS

Tennessee R.A. Tanff No 1

SECTION 4 - SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES

42 Applicable Service Connection Charges .

4.3 Maintenance of Service Customer Owned .

44 Rates and Charges ...

Section 4
Original Page No 1

Page

Issued ISSDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736

Effective: EFFDATE



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1

Section 4
Original Page No. 2

SECTION 4 — SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES

4.1 GENERAL

411 The term “Service Connection Charge” 1s used to define the charge applying to the
establishment of service for a customer.

412 Service connection charges do not apply to private line facilities, 1 e , circuits not
connected with the central office for exchange or toll service; but installation charges are
applied 1n accordance with the provisions and rates specified elsewhere in this tanff.

413 Service connection charges may be payable at the time of application for the particular
service or facility, and prior to the establishment of service Service may be established
1n advance of the payment of the service connection charges for addition to the services
of existing and also 1n the case of service for departments and agencies of Federal, State,
County, and Municipal Governments

42 APPLICABLE SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES

The service connection charges specified 1n the Tanff do not contemplate work being performed

by Company employees at a time when overtime wages apply due to the request of the subscriber

nor do they contemplate work begun being interrupted by the subscriber If the subscriber
requests overtime labor being performed or interrupts work once begun, a charge 1n addition to
the specified charges will be made equal to the additional cost involved

Service charges are not applicable to removal of service or equipment

421 Service Order Charge: Receiving, recording, and processing information necessary to
execute a customer’s request for service or change 1n service.

422 Central Office Line Connection Charge Performing all or part of the work associated
with the connection of a central office access hine. This includes connections or changes
n the central office, cable, or drop wire up to the network nterface.
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SECTION 4 - SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES (Cont'd)

42 APPLICABLE SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES (Cont’d)

423

424

425

42.6

427

Outside Line Work: Work done 1n providing the circuit from the central office to the
protector on the subscriber’s premises; making and changing connections 1n distribution
facilities between the central office and the subscriber’s premises access point, including
necessary cable cross connecttons and connecting and disconnecting the drop and block
wirng.

Premise Visit Charge. Traveling to the customer’s premises to perform any work
involving line connection, to the network interface

PIC Service Order Charge: Receiving and processing a request for an intrastate PIC
change from an existing customer.

Restoration Charge. Restoring service after a temporary disconnection.

Number Change Charge Recerving and processing a subscriber request for a change of
telephone number

43 MAINTENANCE OF SERVICE CHARGE, CUSTOMER OWNED EQUIPMENT

The customer shall be responsible for the payment of Company charges for visits by the Company
to the customer’s premuses where a service difficulty of trouble report results from customer-

provided equipment and facilities. Repairs to CPE at the customer’s request will be done on a
deregulated bass.

44 RATES AND CHARGES

Service Connection Charges are contained 1n the Rate Schedule at the end of this taniff,
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51 WITHIN THE BASE RATE AREA COMPRISING *

5.2 LOCAL CALLING AREA*

Exchange Exchanges in Local Calling Area
Chattanooga Apison, Chickamauga, GA, Collegedale, Georgetown, High

Point, GA, Kensington, GA, LaFayette, GA, Noble, GA,
Ooltewah, Ringgold, GA, Rising Fawn, GA, Rossville, GA
and vicinity which 1s part of the Chattanooga exchange,
Soddy-Daisy, Trenton, GA, Villanow, GA, WestBrow, GA.
Tennessee subscribers also recerve local calling to
Charleston, Cleveland, College Station, Dayton, Decatur,
Dunlap, Fall Creek Falls, Jasper, Nine Mile, Pikeville, South
Pittsburg, Spring City and Whitwell.

*  The base rate areas and local calling areas will be updated as R T C Communications, Inc prepares to

enter new arcas. These updates will be sent to the Tennessee Public Service Commussion for approval.
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES

61 RESIDENTIAL NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICE

Residential Network Switched Service provides a residential customer with a connection to the
Company's switching network which enables the customer to:

a place and receive calls from other stations on the public switched telephone
network,

b. access the Company's local calling service;

c. access the Company's operators and business office for service related assistance;

access toll-free telecommunications services such as 800 NPA, and access 911
service for emergency calling, and

d access the service of providers of interexchange service. A customer may
presubscribe to such provider's service to onginate calls on a direct dialed basis or
to recerve 800 service from such provider, or may access a provider on an ad hoc
basis by dialing the provider's Carrier Identification Code (101XXXX)

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1
Section 6
Oniginal Page No. 3
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61 RESIDENTIAL NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICE (Cont'd)
6 1.1 Residential Service Descriptions
The following Residential Network Switched Service Options are offered.
Residential Flat Rate Service
All Residential Network Switched Service may be connected to customer-provided
termuinal equipment such as station sets or facsimile machines. Service may be arranged for
two-way calling, inward calling only or outward calling only. Charges for Residential

Network Switched Service nclude a nonrecurring service connection charge and a monthly
recurring charge for each line
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

6.1 RESIDENTIAL NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICE (Cont'd)

6.1.1 Residential Service Descriptions (Cont'd)

a.

Flat Rate Service

1.

Description

Flat Rate Service provides the customer with a single, analog, voice-grade
telephonic communications channel that can be used to place or receive
one call at a time. Service to poimts within the local calling area 1s
included 1n the charge for Flat Rate Service. Local calling areas are as
specified 1n Section 5.

Each Flat Rate Service line corresponds to a single, analog, voice-grade
channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a time  Flat Rate
Service lines are provided for connection to a single, customer-provided
station set or facsimle machine.

Each Flat Rate Service Line has the following characteristics:

Terminal Interface. 2-wire

Signaling Type: Loop Start

Pulse Type- Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (DTMF)
Directionality Two-way, In-Only, or Out-Only, as specified by

the customer.
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

6.1 RESIDENTIAL NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICE (Cont'd)
611 Residential Service Descriptions (Cont'd)
b. Rates and Charges
Rates and charges for Restdential Network Switched Services are contained in the

Rate Schedule at the end of this taniff. In addition to the basic charges for

Residential service, connection charges apply as described n Section 4 of this
tanff.
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62 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES

Business Network Switched Service provide a business customer with a connection to the
Company's switching network which enables the customer to-

a

place and receive calls from other stations on the public switched telephone
network,

access the Company's local calling service;

access the Company's operators and business office for service related assistance,
access toll-free telecommunications service such as 800 NPA, and access 911
service for emergency calling; and

access the service of providers of interexchange service A customer may
presubscribe to such provider's service to ongmate calls on a direct dialed basis or
to recerve 800 service from such provider, or may access a provider on an ad hoc
basis by dialing the provider's Carrier Identification Code (101 XXXX).

Business Network Switched Service 1s provided via one or more channels termunated at the
customer's premises  Each Business Network Switched Service channel corresponds to one or more
analog, voice-grade telephonic communications channels that can be used to place or receive one

call at a time.

Connection charges as described in Section 4 apply to all service on a one-time basis unless waived
pursuant to this Tanff.
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62 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont’d)
6.2.1 Busmess Service Descriptions
The following Business Access Service Options are offered.

Basic Business Line Service
PBX Trunks

Basic Business Line Service and Analog PBX trunks are offered on a flat rate basis only.
All Business Network Switched Service may be connected to customer-provided terminal

equipment such as station sets, key systems, PBX systems, or facsimile machines. Service
may be arranged for two-way calling, nward calling only or outward calling only
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SECTION 6 — NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

6.2 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

6.2.1 Busmess Service Descriptions (Cont'd)

a

Basic Business Line Service

1.

General

Basic Busmess Line Service provides a customer with a one or more
analog, voice-grade telephonic communications channel that can be used
to place or recerve one call at a time. Local calling service 1s available on
a flat rate basis. Basic Busimness Lines are provided for connection of
customer-provided single-line terminal equipment such as station sets or
facsimile machines

Each Basic Business Line has the following characteristics

Termunal Interface. 2-wire

Signaling Type- Loop start

Pulse Types: Dual Tone Multifrequency (DTMF)
Directionality: Two-Way, In-Only, or Out-Only, at the

option of the customer
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

6.2 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)
622 PBX Trunk Service
a. General

Analog PBX trunks are provided for connection of customer-provided PBX
terminal equipment. Analog trunks are delivered on an individual line basis. All
trunks are equipped with multilime hunting
DID service allows callers to reach the called party without gomng through a PBX
attendant. DOD service allows end users to dial outside of a PBX system without

going through the PBX attendant to get access to an outside line.

For DID configured PBX trunks additional charges apply for Direct Inward Dial
Station numbers.

Each Analog Trunk has the following characteristics

Terminal Interface: 2-wire or 4-wire, as required for the
provision of service

Signaling Type: Loop, Ground, E&M 1, I, III
Pulse Type: Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (DTMF)
Directionality: In-Coming Only (DID), Out-Going Only

(DOD), or Two-Way
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

62 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)
622 PBX Trunk Service (Cont'd)
b Flat Rate Analog PBX Trunks
1 Description
Flat Rate Analog PBX Trunks provide the customer with a single, analog,
voice grade telephonic communications channel which can be used to
place or receive one call at a ttime.  Local calls on two-way trunks and

DOD trunks are billed on a message rate basis DID trunks are arranged
for one-way inward calling only.
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SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)

62 BUSINESS NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)
6.2.2 PBX Trunk Service (Cont'd)
b Flat Rate Analog PBX Trunks (Cont'd)
2 Recurring and Nonrecurring Charges

Charges for each Message Rate PBX Trunk include a monthly recurring
Base Service Charge Local calling areas are as specified in Section 5.
Rates and Charges for Flat Rate PBX trunks and DID trunks are contained
in the Rate Schedule at the end of this tanff In addition to the recurring
charges described above, connection charges apply as described 1n Section
4 of this tariff

63 RATES AND CHARGES

Rates and charges for Network Switched Services are contained 1n the Rate Schedule at the end of
this tanff
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7.1 SERVICE AND PROMOTIONAL TRIALS

711 General

The Company may establish temporary promotional programs wherem 1t may waive or
reduce nonrecurring or recurring charges, to introduce a present or potential customer to a
service not previously subscribed to by the customer.

7.1.2  Regulations

a.

Approprate notification of the Trial will be made to all eligible customers and to
the Commussion Tnal and promotional arrangements will be filed with the
Commussion when so required. Appropnate notification may mclude direct mail,
bill 1nserts, broadcast or print media, direct contact or other comparable means of
notification

During a Service Tnal, the service(s) 1s provided automatically to all ehgible
customers, except those customers who choose not to participate Customers will
be offered the opportunity to decline the trial service both in advance and during
the tnal. A customer can request that the designated service be removed at any
time during the trial and not be billed a recurring charge for the period that the
feature was 1n place At the end of the tnal, customers that do not contact the
Company to indicate they wish to retain the service will be disconnected from the
service at no charge.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.1 SERVICE AND PROMOTIONAL TRIALS (Cont'd)

7.12  Regulations (Cont'd)

C.

During a Promotional Tnal, the service 1s provided to all ehigible customers who
ask to participate. Customers will be notified in advance of the opportunity to
receive the service in the tnal for free A customer can request that the service be
removed at any time during the trial and not be billed a recurring charge for the
period that the service was in place At the end of the tnal, customers that do not
contact the Company will be disconnected from the service.

Customers can subscribe to any service listed as part of a Promotional Trial and not
be billed the normal Connection Charge The offering of this tnal period option 1s

limited n that a service may be tried only once per customer, per premuses.

The Company retains the rnight to limit the size and scope of a Promotional Tnial
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.2 SEASONAL AND VACATION SERVICE
721 General
Seasonal and Vacation Service is basic local exchange service temporarily suspended at the
request of the customer This service 1s provided to customers mn all the Company’s
exchanges
7.22 Regulations
a Service may be suspended for a mimimum of 30 days and a maximum of 180 days,
and only once during a twelve (12) month period.
b Regular service charges will apply for the suspension and subsequent reconnection
of service
723 Conditions
Seasonal and Vacation service will be furnished at the Company’s discretion under the
following conditions:
a. Service 1s available to all classes and grades of exchange service where the usage 1s
of a seasonal nature.
b. During the period when the customer 1s billed at the reduced rate, the Company
will provide for no mstallations, moves, changes or maintenance
7.24 Rates and Charges
Rates and charges for Seasonal and Vacation Service are contained 1n the Rate Schedule at
the end of this tanff
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73 DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE SERVICE
7.3.1  General

A customer may obtain assistance, for a charge, mn determming a telephone number by
dialing Directory Assistance Service A customer can also receive assistance by writing
the Company with a hist of names and addresses for which telephone numbers are desired

7.3.2  Regulations

A Directory Assistance Charge applies for each telephone number, area code, and/or
general information requested from the Directory Assistance operator except as follows:

a, Requests 1n which the Directory Assistance operator provides an mcorrect number.
The customer must inform the Company of the error 1n order to receive credit.

7.3.3  Rates and Charges

The Directory Assistance Charge 1s contained 1n the Rate Schedule at the end of this tariff.
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74 TOLL DENIAL SERVICE

Toll Demal Service will be provided at the request of the customer and will allow an exchange
access hine to be restricted to Local Exchange Access only.

The rate for Toll Denial Service 1s contamned 1n the Rate Schedule at the end of this tanff.

75 SPECIAL BILLING NUMBERS

Special Numbers will be provided to the customer when 1n the judgment of the Company service to
others will not be impaired.

A service ordering charge as shown 1n Section 4 of this tariff will apply when a customer orders a
special billing number.

76 ROTARY LINE SERVICE

Any individual lines arranged for rotary level hunting or similar service which allows an mcoming
call to an access line that 1s called to be completed over another access line by means of central
office facilities will be classed as rotary access lines. Access Lines used as trunks to PBX are
restricted to a single premuses.

The rates for Rotary Line Service are contained in the Rate Schedule at the end of this tanff.
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7.7 MULTIPOINT ACCESS POSITION RATES — RECURRING
Multipoint Access Position Rates contemplate their bemng located off prermuses, but within the same
exchange area
When 1t becomes necessary to use underground condwit buried cable or pole structure on the
subscriber’s premises for multipoint access positions, the subscriber will be required to furmish and
mstall such plant at his own expense or the Telephone Company will do such work and bill the
subscriber for time, matenal and usual administration
Service ordering charges per section 4 of this tanff will apply for each additional multipoint access
position mstalled.
Rates and charges for Multipoint Access Position Rates are contained 1n the Rate Schedule at the
end of this tanff
7.8 REMOTE CALL FORWARDING
7.8 1 General
Remote Call Forwarding (RCF) 1s a service whereby a call placed from a station (the
originating station) to a customer’s (the RCF customer) telephone number in one exchange
(the call forwarding location) 1s automatically forwarded by Telephone Company central
office equipment to another station designated by the RCF customer (the terminating
station) which 1s located 1n a different exchange.
782 Limtations
RCF Service 1s offered subject to availability of suitable facilities.
RCF Service 1s not offered when the termimating station 1s a coin telephone.
The Telephone Company will not provide identification of the origmating telephone
number to the remote call-forwarding customer
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7.8 REMOTE CALL FORWARDING (Cont’d)
7.8.2  Limutations (Cont’d)

Transmssion characteristics may vary depending on the distance and routing necessary to
complete the remotely forwarded call.

RCF 1s not represented as suitable for satisfactory transmussion of data
Call forwarding should not be offered as a feature at the RCF terminating station

RCF 1s provided on the condition that the customer subscribe to sufficient RCF features
and facihties to adequately handle calls to the RCF customer without interfering with or
impairng any services offered by the Company. If in the opmion of the Company,
additional RCF features at the call forwarding location or facilities at the termunating
statton line are needed, the customer will be required to subscribe to such additional RCF
features and faciliies In the event the customer refuses to subscribe to such additional
RCF features and facilities, said customer’s RCF Service shall be subject to termination

When the call forwarding number 1s to be located m a multi-office exchange, the Company
will determine the serving central office

RCF will not be provided when the Call Forwarding number and the terminating station are
both located mn the same local calling area.

RCF 1s offered as an mdividual service or as an additional feature with multi-line hunt
Foreign Exchange Service for overflow when the Foreign Exchange Service 1s busy.

An RCF Service number 1s not to be used as a termmating station number to which calls are
forwarded from another RCF Service.

RCF Service provides for handling only one call at a time An additional service feature 1s
required for each additional call to be handled while the first call continues.

If the use of RCF Service 1s primanly or substantially of a busmess, professional,
mstitutional or otherwise occupational nature, 1e., nonresidential, or 1if the histing used 1s
such as to indicate nonresidential use, then calls will not be forwarded to any telephone
number for which residential rates apply.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES

79.1 General

Custom Calling Services are enhanced service offerings.

7.9.2  Description of Features

a.

Call Forward

Call Forward, when activated, redirects attempted termunating calls to another
customer-specific line. The customer may have to activate and deactivate the
forwarding function and specify the desired terminating telephone number during
each activation procedure. Call originating ability 1s not affected by Call Forward.

The calling party 1s billed for the call to the called number. If the forwarded leg of
the call 1s chargeable, the customer with the Call Forwarding 1s billed for the
forwarded leg of the call

Call Forward-No Answer

Call Forward-No Answer allows all calls that terminate to a user’s number to be
redirected to an alternate number after a predetermined number of rings.

Call Forwarding Vanable
Call Forwarding Vanable enables the customer to divert all incoming calls to
another directory number The customer controls activation, deactivation and
the forward-to destination

Call Forwarding-Busy Line

Call Forwarding-Busy Line allows all calls to be redirected to an alternate
number when the called number 1s busy
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)

7.92 Description of Features (Cont’d)

c.

Call Hold

Call Hold allows customers to put a call on hold and retrieve 1t at another
extension on your telephone line, mitiate a second call, or consult privately with
another person.

Call Rejection

Call Rejection allows a customer with Calling Number Delivery to block any
incomng call, which does not come through with an 1dentifiable name or
number

Call Return

This 1s an incoming call management feature, which will enable a customer to
return a call to the last incoming call. This will apply whether the mcoming call
was answered, unanswered, or encountered a busy tone This feature 1s available
with level one or level two activation. At level two, the customer can recerve
announcement stating the Directory Number on the last incoming call before the
call set-up 1s completed This will allow the customer to decide if he/she wishes
to proceed with the call or to drop the request

Call Screening

This feature will allow the subscriber to define a st of calling DN to be
screened. Any calling numbers on this list will be routed to announcements and
rejected. All other calls will be treated normally The calling party on the
rejection hist will receive an announcement stating the call 1s not presently being
accepted by the called party
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)

79.2  Description of Features (Cont’d)

1

Call Trace

This feature allows the customer to mitiate a trace on the last mcoming call The
results of the trace will not be provided directly to the customer initiating the
trace. The trace log will be printed at the Telephone Company or at some
designated law enforcement agency premises. The customer will contact this
agency to determine further action to be taken The customer with this feature
assigned as a station option will dial an activation code to activate the feature
The call will be traced automatically, and the originating DN and the time the
call was made will be forwarded to the predetermined location.

Call Waiting

Call Waiting provides a burst of tone to inform a customer that another call 1s
waiting to be answered The customer may answer the warting call by hanging
up or flashing the switch hook

Caller ID - Name and Number Delivery

This feature allows a customer to see a caller's name and number previewed on a
display screen before the call 1s answered allowing a customer to prioritize and or
screen mcomung calls. Call ID records the name, number, date and time of each
mcormung call - including calls that aren't answered by the customer Call ID
service requires the use of specialized CPE not provided by the company. It 1s the
responsibility of the customer to provide the necessary CPE

Caller ID - Number Delivery

This feature will enable the customer to receive the calling number on incoming
calls. The number will be delivered to the called party’s Customer Premuses
Equipment (CPE) 1n the interval between the first and second ring The calling
number will remain for the duration of the call and can be viewed from the
display on the CPE.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)

792 Description of Features (Cont’d)

m.

Caller ID Blocking

Thus feature will allow the calling party to suppress a Directory Number such
that the called party with Caller ID does not receive the information. The called
party will recerve a “private” message instead of the calling party’s DN Caller
ID Blocking 1s provided to all on a per call basis at no charge. To activate this
feature there must be a two (2) digit code for touch tone or a four (4) digit code
for rotary, dialed prior to placing a call. Caller ID Blocking on a per-line-basis 1s
also available. This feature blocks Caller ID on all calls without the necessity of
dialing a code with each call.

Law enforcement agencies, domestic violence intervention agencies, and certain
other governmental agencies may be granted Caller ID Blocking on a per line
basis without charge, 1f requested, on a case-by-case basis at the Telephone
Company’s discretion If the Telephone Company and the agency cannot reach
an agreement on such a request, the agency may submt the matter to the
Tennessee Public Service Commussion for a determination on the merits.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)

7.9.2 Description of Features' (Cont’d)

Preferred Call Forwarding

This feature will allow the customer to have certain terminating calls forwarded
to a designated remote station The activity will occur whenever a call 1s
recerved from a telephone number which has been indicated on a list of numbers,
referred to as the Selective Call Forwarding screening list Termunating calls
from telephone numbers, which cannot be 1dentified or have not been indicated
on the list will be given standard terminating treatment

Priority Ringing

This 1s an incoming call management feature which will allow the customer to
define DNs that will provide the customer with special mcoming call treatment.
Any incoming calls on this list will be indicated by a distinctive ringing pattern
or a distinctive Call Waiting tone, 1f applicable. Terminating calls from
telephone numbers which are not on the list, or which cannot be 1dentified, will
be given standard treatment.

Remote Access Call Forwarding

Remote Access Call Forwarding allows customers to activate their call
forwarding feature from other than their base telephone to make forwarding
changes.

Repeat Dialing

This 1s an ongoing call management feature, which will enable the subscriber to
have the system redial the last number called from his/her station. This wall
apply regardless of whether the original call was answered unanswered, or
encountered a busy tone The system will monitor the calling and called lines
and will attempt to connect the call for up to 30 minutes The customer can
cancel the activation of this feature when desired.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.9 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)

79.2 Description of Features: (Cont’d)

I.

Special Call Acceptance

This feature will allow customers to define a list of calling directory numbers
that will be accepted Any calling numbers not on that list will be routed to
announcements and rejected The calling party not on the acceptance list will
receive an announcement stating that the call 1s not presently being accepted by
the calling party. Customers can review and change the list of accepted DN as
desired

Speed Calling 8

Speed Calling 8 enables a customer to call a list of up to 8 preselected directory
numbers by dialing one-digit.

Speed Calhng 30

Speed Calling 30 enables a customer to call a list of up to 30 preselected
directory numbers by dialing two-digits.

Teen Line

This feature will allow customers to have more than one telephone number on
the same line. A distinctive ringing pattern will identify the called party
(number). If a subscriber has Call Waiting, a distinctive tone will be heard when
the additional line has an incoming call

Three-Way Calling

Three-Way Calling allows a customer to add a third party to the existing call,
and thus enables a simultaneous conference between parties at multiple
locations.

Issued ISSDATE

Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
Section 7
Origmal Page No. 16

SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.9 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES (Cont’d)
793 Connection Charges

Connection charges may apply when a customer requests connection to one or more
features. Orders requested for the same customer account made at the same time for the
same premuses will be considered one request. These charges may not apply 1if the features
are ordered at the same time as other work for the same customer account at the same
premises These charges are described in Section 4 of this taniff

794 Tnal Penod

The Company may elect to offer a free or reduced rate trial of any new calling feature(s) to
prospective customers within 90 days of the establishment of the new feature. See Section
7 1, Service and Promotional Trnals

795 Rates and Charges

Rates and Charges for Miscellaneous Features are contained in the Rate Schedule at the
end of this tanff.
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.10 DIRECTORY LISTINGS

7.101 Provision of Directory Listings

a.

These rates and regulations for directory listings apply only to the nformation
records and the alphabetical section of the directory contaming the regular
alphabetical list of names of customers.

Listings are regularly provided in connection with all local service unless the
customer subscribes to Non-Published Number Service

Directory histings are provided to aid i the use of telephone service through the
1dentification of customers' telephone numbers. Special arrangements of names 1s
not contemplated, nor any form of listing which does not facihitate use of directory
service, 1s otherwise objectionable, or 1s unnecessary for purposes of 1dentification.

A hsting must conform to the Company's specifications with respect to 1ts
directores.

The Company has the night to limut the length of any listing to one lme mn the
directory by the use of abbreviations when the clearness of the listing or the
1dentification of the customer 1s not impaired thereby

The contract period for directory listings where the primary or additional histing
appears m the directory 1s the directory pel)’lod

Non-published service 1s provided by the Company This 1s a type of service
where the customer's number 1s not mncluded n the published directory, but 1s
included 1n the information records and 1s provided by the directory assistance
operator upon request.

7.10 2 Primary Directory Listings

a

Number of Listings Provided Without Charge

Except as provided in this Tanff, one primary histing 1s provided without extra
charge for each main service or for the first number 1n a group, when two or more
main station lines are consecutively operated
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SECTION 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

710 DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd)

7 102 Primary Directory Listings (Cont'd)

b

Business Listings

Business listings consist of a name, a designation descriptive of the customer's
business, the address of the premuses at which service 1s rendered, and the
telephone number. Business designations (e g., ofc , atty , M D, etc ) may be used
when appropriate The primary listing 1s ordmnarnily the name of the individual,
firm or corporation which contracts for the service or the name under which a
business 1s regularly conducted Where the service 1s contracted for by one party
for the use of a second party, the primary histing may be the name of the second

party.
Residence Listings

1. Residence listings consist of a name or dual names, the address of the
premises at which service 1s rendered and the telephone number The
primary histing 1s ordinarily the name or dual names of customers who
apply for the service, but the listing may be 1n the name of a second party
designated by the customer

2, Any hsting other than an individual name will be considered a business
service listing, except as specified in this Tanff

3. Dual name listings are available only for residence subscribers who share
the same surname and reside at the same address, or where a person 1s
known by two first names Dual name listings may be provided as the
primary lhisting at no recurring charge or as an additional hsting at the
regular residential additional histing rate.

At the customer's option, either the street address or post office box number may be

listed. An Additional Listing Charge will be due 1f the customer desires both
listings
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.10  DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd)

7 10.3 Additional Directory Listings

a. General

1 The regular extra listing rates and conditions apply to each regular or
special type of additional listing ordered by the customer.

2 Charges for additional listings begin on the date the information records
are posted and are payable monthly i advance.

3. Additional listing charges are automatically discontinued upon termination
of the main service.

4, Additional hstings will have the same address as the primary listing.
However, when, in the opinton of the Company, 1t appears necessary as an
aid to the use of the directory and provided satisfactory service can be
furnished, the following exceptions may be allowed:

a) A listing may be permitted under the address of a Private Branch
Exchange (PBX) station or extension station nstalled on the
premuses of the customer, even though that address 1s different
from that of the switchboard or main station using the telephone
number of the pnimary listing.

b) Where a building has more than one entrance, the customer may
have an additional listing showing the address of an entrance other
than that included 1n the primary listing.

5 Additional residence-type listings may be provided in the names of
permanent guests or tenants of hotels, motels and apartment houses
equipped with key or PBX systems, provided that written approval 1s
obtamed 1n advance from the hotel, motel or apartment house involved. In
such circumstances

a) Business additional listing rates apply; and

b) No separate billing will be 1ssued
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SECTION 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.10  DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd)

7.10 3 Additional Directory Listings (Cont'd)

b.

Special Types of Additional Listings

1.

Duplicate and Reference Listings

Listings of nicknames, abbreviated names, re-arrangements of names,
names which are commonly spelled in more than one way, and other
names by which customers are known are permitted when, i the opinion
of the Company, they are necessary for the proper identification of the
customer, they are not desired to secure a preferential position mn the
directory, or when they are not for advertising purposes. Cross-reference
histings are permitted when their use will facilitate the handling of
telephone calls

Alternate Listings

a) Listing of an alternate telephone number to be called in case no
answer 1s received 1s permutted for customers to all classes of
service.

b) The alternate number may be a number that 1s not the requesting

customer's number. In such case, the written consent of the
customer to the alternately histed service must be obtained before
the alternate listing 1s furnished.

Foreign Listings

Foreign listings are listings appearing in a directory other than the
directory for which local service 1s furmshed The mimimum contract
period for which charges will apply will be the remaining period that the
directory will be used These charges will be paid annually in advance.

Indented Residence Listings

Additional histings may be furnished for the customer's or their employees'
residence telephones These additional histings will be indented under the
listing of the business with which they are associated In such cases, the
party 1n whose name the indented residence listing 1s shown must have a
residence primary listing or additional listing in the same name Such

hstings are furnished at the rate and under the regulations specified for
additional histings
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SECTION 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

7.10 DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd)

7.10.3 Additional Directory Listings (Cont'd)

b.

Special Types of Additional Listings (Cont'd)

5. Listings of Residence Under Business Service

Additional hstings of residences may be furnished under business service,
provided the business and residence establishments are at the same address
and are under the same roof. The additional listing must be 1n the name of
the customer, a member of his/her immediate family, or of an employee or
representative of the customer.

6 Extra Lines of Information

Listings of other information which are not required n order to efficiently
handle telephone traffic 1s not included in the charges for service. For
example, such other information may be the office hours of a business
The Company may, at 1ts discretion, accept listings of such miscellaneous
mformation at the rates for special types of additional listings

7.10.4 Non-Published Number Service

a

General

1. Non-Published Number Service provides for the omission or deletion of a
customer's telephone number listing from the Company's directores.

2. In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, the Company
assumes no liability for publishing a non-published telephone number.
Where such number 1s published n the directory, the Company's liability
shall be limited to a refund of the Company's monthly charges applicable
to Non-Published Service.

3 The customer mdemnifies and saves the Company harmless against any
and all claims for damages caused or claimed to have been caused, directly
or ndirectly, by refusing to disclose a non-published telephone number
upon request, or by the publication of a number of a non-published

telephone number in the telephone directory, or disclosing of such number
to any person
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SECTION 7 -~ SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

710 DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd)
7104 Non-Published Number Service (Cont’d)

a. General (Cont'd)
4 The rate for Non-Published Service does not apply to
a) Additional service furnished to the same customer who has other

service listed 1n the directory at the same address.

b) To a customer living 1in a hotel, hospital, retlreme}lt complex,
apartment house, boarding house, or club 1f the customer 1s listed
under the telephone number of the Private Branch Exchange,
Centrex or Paystation Service furmished to such establl"shments

'

c) Service which 1s installed for a temporary period. |

5. A customer residing m an E911 Service distnict forfeits ‘the privacy
afforded by Non-Published Service to the extent that the customer's name,
telephone number and the address associated with the service location are
furnished to the E911 service admimistrator, E911 pubhic safefy answernng
point (PSAP) or E911 service database. :

1
1

7.10.5 Non-Listed Number Service

a. A non-listed telephone number 1s one for which no listing appears in the
alphabetical section of the directory The number 1s listed n the' information
records and 1s g1ven out upon request

b A Service Connection Charge, as stated in Section 4.1 of this Tanff, applies to the
establishment or change of non-listed telephone numbers. ‘

|

i
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

710 DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd) i

7.10 6 Liability For Directory Listing Service

a.

General

1.

The Company shall not be hable for any error, omission, or other failure in
connection with directory listings furmished without additional charge
The customer agrees to hold the Company free and harmless from any
claims, losses, damage, or habihty which may result from such error,
omuisstons, or other failures.

i

|
The hability, if any, of the Company for any error, 0m15516n or other
faillure 1n connection with directory hstings furnished at an additional
charge shall 1n no event exceed the charge for that hstmg during the
effective Iife of the directory in which the error or onmssion 1s made.

In accepting listings as prescribed by applicants or customers, the
Company will not assume liability for the result of their publfcahon n 1ts
directories nor will the Company be a party to controversies arising
between customers or others as a result of hstings pubhshed m 1ts
directornies.

7.10 7 Rates and Charges

a.

Recurring Monthly Rate

Rates and Charges for Directory Listings are contamed 1n the Rate Schedule at the
end of this tariff
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SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd) |

DIRECTORY LISTINGS (Cont'd) ‘

b Service Charges

1. See Section 4 of tms Tanff for applicable Connection Charges. A
Connection Charge applies for additions or changes in directory listings.
|
2. When directory listings are ordered at the same time a$ the mitial
mstallation of local access line service no additional Service Charges will
be apphied for the directory listing(s). '

]
'
1
|
!

One copy of local directories shall be distributed per access line, w1thout charge.
Additional directories including replacement of mutilated or destroyed dlrectones will be
furnished at the discretion of the Company at a reasonable rate.

Telephone directories shall be 1ssued approximately every twelve (12) months. The
Company 1ssues directories to assist in furmshing prompt and efficient service. The
Company does not guarantee to 1ts customers correct listings therein. Every precaution 1s
taken to prevent errors mn, and omussions of, directory listings The Company's hability for
damages ansing from errors or omussions in making up or printing of 1ts dlI'CCtOTleS 1S
addressed 1n Section 3.1.5 of this Tanff

If a customer's number 1s incorrectly hsted in the directory, and if the mcorrect: number 1s a
working number, and 1f the customer to whom the incorrect number 1s assigned requests,
the number shall be changed at no charge If the incorrect number 1s not a working number
but 15 a usable number, the customer's number shall be changed to the listed number at no
charge, 1f requested.

|
|
|
|
|
|
t
|
i
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES

8.1 PROVISION OF SERVICE

811 General

|
Services consisting of Local Channels, Interoffice Channels, and Optional Features
and Functions are classified by series. The various series are sub-divided into
different types and are described 1n terms of circuit charactenstics and use.
Customers may order local channels which are designed to meet specific
communications requirements The customer 1s responsible for determining that
his termuinal equipment 1s compatible with the service provided by the Company

Where multi-point service 1s furnished, the local channels are bndgeci n the wire

center |
|
|

812 Rate Categories i

a

Following are the basic rate categories which apply to Private Line service

1. Local Channels :

i

a) A local channel provides for a communications path between the
demarcation point at a customer premises and the $ervmg wire
center of that premmses. One local channel charge applies per
channel termination. |

b) When service is provided by non-wire center connected channels,
a non-wire center connected channel charge applies in lieu of local

channel charges. !
2 Interoffice Channels !
i

This rate category provides for the transmussion facihities bet\%veen serving
wire centers assoclated with two customer premuses, between serving wire
centers assoclated with a customer premuses and a Company hub, or
between two Company hubs. |
Interoffice mileage 1s portrayed in mileage bands. A flat rate and a rate per
nmule applies to each band For method of deterrumng muleage, see
Section 8 3 3.

!
I
|
i
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

81 PROVISION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)
812 Rate Categones (Cont'd) ,
3 Optional Features and Functions

This rate category provides for features and functions which may be added
to a service to improve its quality or utility to meet specific
communications requirements These are not necessarily identifiable with
specific equipment, but rather represent the end result in terms of the
performance charactenstics which may be obtamed This category
includes a and b following ‘

a) Hub Functions

A hub 1s a Company designated wire center where bridging or
multiplexing functions are performed 1.e., connecting three or
more customer premises n a multipoint arrangement or
channelizing analog or digital services requining a lower capacity
or bandwidth. 1

b) Provides for such things as signaling, condmonmg transfer
arrangements, protection switching, etc.

Issued ISSDATE Effective ' EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer .

R T C Communications, Inc ‘

6203 Alabama Highway

Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

81 PROVISION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

8.1.3  Service Configurations

b
i

Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
. Section 8
Onginal Page No 4

a There are two types of service configurations which can be provided These are

described as follows:

1. Two-Point Service

A two-pomt service connects two customer premises erther directly
through a serving wire center(s) or through a Company hub where
additional functions are performed. !

2. Multipoint Service .

a)

b)

d)

Multipoint service connects three or more customer premises
through a Company hub |

There 1s no limitation on the number of mid-links available with
multipoint service However, when more than three rd-links are
provided n tandem, the quality of the service may be degraded. A
mud-link 1s a channel between hubs (1.e., bridging locations)

Voice Grade (Series 2000) Multipoint Channel services for data
use have a limit of 6 two-wire facility type local channels or 20
four-wire facility type local channels when used with customer-
provided station equipment. !

i
Only certain types of service are available for multipoint
applications These are so designated 1n the service descriptions

set forth in 8.2.1 following.
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

81 PROVISION OF SERVICE (Cont'd)

|
814 Special Routing of IntraLATA Channels ;
a The private line services furnished in this Tanff are provided over such routes as
the Company may elect ’
b Special routing 1s involved where, n order to comply with requxremerits specified
by the customer, the Company furnishes the private line service in a manner which
includes one or both of the following conditions |

1 Where two or more prnivate hnes must be furnished over different physical
routes. :
I

2. Where a private line must be furnished on a route which avords specified

geographical locations !

i

|

c. When special routing of services 1s furmished a customer, the rates will be
determined on an individual case basis

1
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd) |

g2 SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000

!
|

a Series 2000 voice grade service provides for voice and/or data communications on
a two point or multipoint basis for service 7 days per week, 24 hours per day, for a
minimum period of one month. |

b. Basic parameters and specifications for Series 2000 voice grade'service are
described for the end to end operation as follows. :

Basic Parameters

Net Loss

DC Resistance

Frequency Error
Frequency Response

300 —3000 Hz
500 - 2500 Hz

Envelope Delay
Distortion

800 - 2600 Hz

|
For Speech Application  For Data Appl:ications
Local Channels used with terminal equlpme:nt Limut as
specified in the following Local Channel descriptions
Losses or gans present n CPE have not been mcluded

|
Local Channel hmit as specified in the following Local
Channel descriptions. Does not imply or guarantee end
to end DC continuity

Plus or Minus 5 Hz Plus or Minus 5 Hz

(Referenced to 1000 Hz Loss) |

-3dB to + 12dB -3dB to + 152dB

-2dB to + 8dB -2dB to + 8dB
Not Controlled Less than 15750
Microseconds

i
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

82 SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (Cont'd)

82.1 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 (Cont'd)

Basic Parameters For Speech Application
C-Notched Noise Not Controlled
(with a -13dBm0

1000 Hz Test Signal)

Impulse Noise Not Controlled
Phase Jitter Not Controlled

Non-Linear Distortion
2nd Order Distortion Not Controlled

3rd Order Distortion Not Controlled

For Data Applications
Noise level 24dB below
signal level

15 Counts mn 15 minutes at
a threshold of 6dB below a
13dBm0 rms 1000 Hz
Signal

10 degrees peak to peak

25dB below signal level

30dB below signal level

Transmission parameters for voice grade service are descnbed following:

1.

Type 2230 — A two-wire interface with effective two-wire facilities

engineered for a 1004 Hz net loss of 0dB to 10dB. Generally furnished for
voice transmission — Private Line Telephone, Mobile Radio Telephone, or
Supervisory Control Use. Multipoint service may be provided at charges

specified n the rate section of this tariff

Type 2231 - A two-wire nterface with two or four-wire facilities
engineered for a 1004 Hz net loss of 0dB to 4.5dB This 1s generally used
for PBX (or similar system) main or extension station services. Signaling

1s required for this service
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8.2 SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (Cont'd)

821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 (Cont'd)

3

Type 2432 — A two or four-wire interface with effective four-wire
facilities engineered for tie line service use between PBXs or customer-
provided communications systems Signaling 1s required for this service

Type 2434 — A two or four-wire nterface for connection to the serving
wire center where loop facilities are not required. This channel 1s suitable
for tie line service (with E&M signaling) between Centrex Type Services
Systems and may be connected with Type 2432 local channels

Type 2435 — A four-wire mterface with effective four-wire facilities
engineered for a 1004 Hz net loss of 0dB to 16dB. Generally furnished for
voice transmussion  Multipoint service may be provided at charges
specified in the rate section of this tanff

Type 2261 — A two-wire nterface with effective two-wire facilities
engineered for use m Select-A-Station Service or Telemetry/Alarm
Bridging Service (TABS)

Type 2462 — A four-wire mterface with effective four-wire facilities
engineered for use n Select-A-Station Service, or Telemetry/Alarm
Bndging Service (TABS).

Type 2463 — A four-wire interface with four-wire facilities engieered for
a 1004 Hz net loss of 16dB. Generally used in the provision of analog data
services Multipoint service may be provided at charges specified mn the
rate section of this tanff.

Type 2464 — A two-wire mterface with four-wire facilities engineered for
a 1004 Hz net loss of 16dB. Generally used in the provision of analog data
services Multipoint service may be provided at charges specified in the
rate section of this tanff.

Note 1 Transmussion data charactenstics can only be met and guaranteed for the two-wire interface when
the arrline distance from the serving wire center to the customer's premuses 1s one mile or less and
the interoffice channel 1s not greater than 4 airline miles between serving wire centers
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82 SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (Cont'd)

821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 (Cont'd)

d. Signaling Arrangements
1 Off Prenmuses Stations
a) For use with PBX (or similar system) off-premuses channels for

terminal equipment. Signaling arrangements are furnished for
grandfathered and registered PBX (or similar) systems in
accordance with Part 68 of the FCC Rules and Regulations or for
customer-provided communications systems not subject to Part 68
of the FCC Rules and Regulations.

Type A — Furnished for use with Class A PBX (or simular) system
station ports capable of operation over loops with resistance 1n the
range of 0-199 ohms.

Type B — Furnished for use with Class B PBX (or similar) system
station ports capable of operations over loops with resistance in
the range of 200-899 ohms.

Type C ~ Furnished for use with Class C PBX (or similar) system
station ports capable of operation over loops with resistance 1n the
range of 900 ohms or more.

b) For connections to registered or grandfathered PBX (or similar)
system equipment, the customer must specify the equipment
capability for use with Type A, B, or C Signaling Arrangements.
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82 SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (Cont'd)
821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 (Cont'd)
2 Tie Lines

a) E&M signaling 1s provided for use with tie line channels with
E&M signaling interfaces Signaling Arrangements are furmshed
for grandfathered and registered PBXs 1n accordance with Part 68
of the FCC Rules and Regulations or for customer-provided
communications systems not subject to Part 68 of the FCC Rules
and Regulations.

- An E&M Signaling Arrangement 1s required for each tie
line termination, operating in a Dial Repeating mode, at a
customer’s premises with a registered PBX

- An E&M Signaling Arrangement 1s requred for each tie
line termination at a customer's premises with
grandfathered PBXs when the tie line 1s arranged with an
E&M signaling interface.

- An E&M Signaling Arrangement 1s required with Types
2432 and 2434 channels for additions to or for new
mstallations of grandfathered PBX equipment when not
arranged with an E&M signaling interface

- An E&M Signaling Arrangement 1s required for each
Type 2432 or 2434 channel termination at a customer's
premuses with a customer-provided communications
system not subject to Part 68 of the FCC Rules and
Regulations when arranged with an E&M Signaling
mnterface.

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1

83 RATE REGULATIONS

Section &
Ongmal Page No 11
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831 Types of Rates and Charges

a

The two types of rates and charges are monthly rates and nonrecurring charges and
are described as follows-

1.

Monthly Rates

Monthly rates are recurring charges that apply each month or fraction
thereof that a service 1s provided. For billing purposes, each month 1s
considered to have 30 days

Commercial Quality Video (CQV) service 1s available under month-to-
month or Channel Services Payment Plans (CSPP) of either twenty-four to
forty-eight months or forty-nine to seventy-two months

All rate elements of each CQV service must be purchased under the same
payment plan with the same service period and are coterminous upon
disconnect of the CQV service

Rates applicable to a month-to-month payment option are subject to
Company mitiated changes

When a CQV customer's service extends beyond a seventy-two month
service period, the sixty Month Term Payment Plan rates will apply

A Termination Liability Charge 1s applicable 1f all or any part of a CQV
service 1s disconnected, at customer request, prior to the expiration of any
CSPP. This charge 1s calculated by multiplymg the number of months
remamning 1n the selected service period times sixty percent of the monthly
rates provided under the CSPP
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83 RATE REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

8.3.1 Types of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2

Nonrecurring Charges

Nonrecurring Charges are one-time charges that apply for a specific work
activity The three types of nonrecurring charges that apply are installation
of service, nstallation of features and functions and service
rearrangements

a

Installation of Service

Nonrecurring charges apply for each service terminated at the
customer's premises For the mstallation of local channels when
more than one of the same type of service, between the same
locations, for the same customer 1s ordered and nstalled at the
same time, one at each location 1s billed at the First Service
Installed rate and the others are billed at the Additional Service
Installed rate. For Commercial Quality Video service,
nonrecurring charges are per each rate element.

The nonrecurring charges for the Installation of Services are set
forth 1n the rate section of this tanff following as Nonrecurring
Charges for the Local Channel and Interoffice Channel rate
elements.

Nonrecurnng charges apply for the installation of features and
functions available with the vanous services. For some features
and functions there 1s a lower charge 1if installed coincident with

the service and a higher charge 1if installed subsequent to the
service
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83 RATE REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

8.31 Types of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

c Service Rearrangements

1

Service rearrangements are changes to existing (installed)
services which do not result i either a change in the
minimum period requirements or a change 1n the Physical
location of the pomnt of termmation at a customer
premuses. Changes which result in the establishment of
new mmmum period obhgations are treated as
disconnects and starts Changes n the physical location
of the point of termination are treated as moves and are
descnbed and charged for as set forth in Section 8.3 2.

The charge to the customer for the service rearrangement
1s dependent on whether the change 1s admimstrative only
in nature or involves actual physical change to the service.

Admmstrative changes will be made without charge(s) to
the customer. Such changes require the continued
provision and billing of the Private Line Service to the
same entity (1 e., customer remains responsible for all
outstanding indebtedness for the service) Admnistrative
changes are as follows:

- Change of customer name (1.€., the customer of
record does not change but rather the customer of
record changes name).

- Change of customer or customer's premises
address when the change of address 1s not a result
of a physical relocation of equipment.

- Change 1 billing data (name, address or contact
name or telephone number)
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8.31 Types of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2 All other service rearrangements will be charged for as
follows:

- If the change mvolves the addition of other
customer designated premises to an existing
multipoint service, the nonrecurring charge for
the local channel rate element will apply. The
charges will apply only for the location(s) that 1s
being added

- If the change involves the addition of an optional
feature or function which has a separate
nonrecurring charge, that nonrecurring charge
will apply.

- If the change involves changing the type of
signaling on a voice grade service the subsequent,
nonrecurring charge will apply for the new type
signaling. The charge will apply per service
termination affected.

- For all other changes, including a change of the
customer of record involving no physical changes
to the service provided or the addition of optional
features without separate nonrecurring charges, a
charge equal to a local channel rate element
nonrecurring charge will apply Only one such
charge will apply per service, per change
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832 Moves

A move mvolves a change 1n the physical location of one of the following:

1

2.

The point of interface at the customer prenuses.

The customer's premises

The charges for the move are dependent on whether the move 1s to a new location
within the same building or to a different building

1.

Moves Within the Same Building

When the move 1s to a new location within the same building, the charge
for the move will be an amount equal to one-half the nonrecurring (1 ¢,
mstallation) charge for the affected service termination at the customer's
prermuses. There will be no change in the minimum period requirements
If a move 1s made at the same time a service rearrangement 1s made, the

total charge will never exceed a full nonrecurring charge for the basic
service.

To a Different Building

Moves to a different building will be treated as a discontinuance and start
of service and all associated nonrecurring charges will apply New
minimum period requirements will be established at the new location. The
customer will also remain responsible for satisfying all outstanding
minimum period charges for the discontinued service
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

g3 RATE REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

833 Mileage Measurements

a

When station locations of a private line service are located in different wire center
serving areas, interoffice channel charges apply Charges are based on the direct
airhne distance measured between the serving wire centers. Mileage 1s determined
in accordance with the following.

1.

Obtam the “V” and “H” coordinates for each wire center, as listed in the
National Exchange Carrier Association Tanff F.C C No. 4.

Obtain the difference between the “V” coordinates of the two wire centers
Obtain the difference between the “H” coordinates (The difference 1s
always obtained by subtracting the smaller coordinate from the larger
coordinate.)

Square each difference obtained 1n 2. preceding

Add the squares of the”V” difference and the “H” difference obtamned 1n 3.
preceding.

Divide the sum of the squares obtamned 1n 4. preceding by 10.
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83  RATE REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

833 Mileage Measurements (Cont'd)

a) Obtan the square root of the result obtained in 5. preceding This 1s the
rate distance 1n mules. (Fractional miles bemng considered as full miles )

EXAMPLE: The rate distance is required between City One and City

Two

\% H
City One 7260 2083
City Two 7364 1865
Difference 104 218

Squared—10,816 + 47,524 = 58,340
58,340 Divided by 10 = 5834
Square Root of 5834 = 76.38 = 77 Airline miles

When a private line 1s furnished over facihities which the Company elects to
provide on a direct basis and 1s not routed through a central office, one two-point
channel charge from the rate section of this taniff will apply. The arrangement 1s
limited to channels not more than one airline mile 1n length

For the purpose of applying multipoint charges, the bridging or hubbing locations
are determined by that combination of airline distances connecting the serving wire
center which will produce the lowest interoffice mileage charges. Bridging
charges apply when three or more channels connect at the same location

For Senies 1000, 2000 and 6000 channels the customer may specify the sequence n
which the service points are to be connected in which case the rate mileage 1s the
shortest airline mileage determmed 1n accordance with paragraph ¢ preceding
which will connect the wire centers of the service ponts 1n the specified sequence
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

84 DIGITAL SERVICE

8.4.1 General

This service 1s provided for the transmussion of digital signals only and 1s
furnished only via digital transmission facihities

Digital service provides for the simultaneous two-way transmission of
synchronous digital signals at speeds of 2 4, 4 8, 9.6, 19.2, 56, and 64 Kbps
between customer locations where appropriate digital facilities for this service
are available as determined by the Company

Multipoint Service, Secondary Channel and/or the Data Over Voice Channel
capability may not be available in all Digital service locations.

To ensure satisfactory operation, the termial equipment provided by the
customer must be compatible with the channel facility provided by the Company

Unless specified following, the regulations for Digital service specified herem
apply.

The rates specified for Digital service are m the rate section of this tanff The
Company will provide a digital facility over existing nteroffice carner
equipment and/or transmission facilities compatible with Digital service. If new
equipment and facilities or changes to existing facilities are required to provide
for Digital service, a special construction charge based on the cost incurred to
make the changes may apply mn addition to these rates.

Dagital service 1s available on a month-to-month basis or under contract plans
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84 DIGITAL SERVICE (Cont'd)

842 Regulations

a

Description of Service

1.

Service 1s furnished for the simultaneous two-way transmission of digital
signals at synchronous rates of 2.4,4 8,9 6, 19 2, 56, and 64 Kbps
between two or more points located within a LATA. These channels
may also be furmished on a hink (partial channel) bass.'

Service 1s furmished for full duplex operation only.
A minimum 1nitial service period of 3 months 1s required.

The design, maintenance and operation of Digital service contemplates
communications originating or termmating at stations of the customer.
While connections to communications systems provided by others may
be made on a permussive basis, the Company does not represent this
service as adapted for such connections, and shall not be responsible for

the through transmussion of signals, or the quality of such transmission
on such connections.

A Channel Service Unit provided by the customer 1s required at a
customer's premises to perform such functions as.

L - proper termination of the service

- amplification
- signal shaping
- remote loop-back

Note 1 This also applies when the Data Over Voice Channel option 1s used
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842 Regulations (Cont'd)

b.

Method of Applying Rates

1.

A Digital Local Channel 1s furmished between a Serving Wire Center and
the demarcation point on a customer's premises

Node Termmations are applied to each termination within the Node
Central Office. A change 1s applicable for each Local Channel and/or
Digital Interoffice Channel connected within a Node Central Office.

A Digital Interoffice Channel will be required when a Digital Local
Channel onginates from a Serving Wire Center that 1s not a Node Central
Office The rate 1s based on airline mileage, or fraction thereof, between
the Serving Wire Center and the Node Central Office

A Digital Interoffice Channel will be required between Nodes when a
customer has a requirement to connect premises located 1n separate Nodal
Service Areas. The rate 1s based on airline mileage, or fraction thereof,
between Node Central Offices.'

Arrline distance between Company central offices shall be developed
using methodology and Vertical (V) and Horizontal (H) coordinates
contamned 1n the National Exchange Carrier Association (NECA) Tanff
F.C.C No 4 Fractional miles are to be rounded up to the next full mle.

Note 1- When customer premises terminations are located m wire centers assigned to different
primary nodes, digital interoffice channel mileage will be calculated from each serving wire
center to 1ts assigned primary node, and digital nternodal channel mileage will be
calculated for the distance between the two primary nodes 1n the routing sequence.

Issued ISSDATE

Effecive EFFDATE
Alice Ewvitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc

6203 Alabama Highway

Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

84 DIGITAL SERVICE (Cont'd)

Tennessee R A Tanff No 1
Section 8
Orniginal Page No 21

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

84.2 Regulations (Cont'd)

6

A Data Over Voice Channel at 9.6 Kbps 1s available as an optional feature.
The customer must also subscribe to a compatible two-wire local exchange
line (e.g, busmess exchange line) This two-wire exchange line and 1ts
associated rates and charges are in addition to the Data Over Voice
Channel rates and charges Node Termunation charges apply per Data
Over Voice Channel. Interoffice Channel mileage charges apply between
the customer's serving wire center and the Node Central Office if the
customer's serving wire center 1s not a Node Office

A Data Over Voice Channel may be used in a two-station arrangement and
a multipoint arrangement

Connections

1

Customer-Provided Terminal equipment, Customer-Provided Derivation
Equipment and Customer-Provided Communications Systems may be
connected to Digital service when such a connection 1s made mn
accordance with the provision specified in 2. and 3. followng.

The responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furmshing and
maintenance of service to a network interface on the customer's premises
were provision 1s made for the connection of local service The customer
15 responsible for mstalling and testing his premises equipment or facilihies
to msure that when they are connected with the Digital service such
equipment or facilities are operating properly.

The customer responsibility shall include cooperative testing with the
Company as may be necessary Where regeneration and/or equalization
adjustments or changes may be required to compensate for rearrangements
and/or changes 1n outside plant facilities, the customer will be responsible
for all expenses incurred 1n changes to his premises equipment
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84.2 Regulations (Cont'd)

4. Connection of Customer-Provided Termunal Equipment, Customer-

Provided Denivation Equipment and Customer-provided Communications
Systems

a) The following provisions apply

|
(D Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment and Customer-
Provided Communications Systems may be connected at
the premuses of the customer to Digital service

2 The customer, by use of 1ts own derivation equipment,
may create digital bit streams from Dagital service  Such
equipment may be connected for transmission of such bit

streams when connected through a customer-provided
CSu.

b) Connections to Other Services Furmshed by the Company to the
Same Customer

Digital service as furnished by the Company may be connected to
another service or to other services furmished by the Company as
specified following:

€y At the premuses of the customer to Series 2000 analog
data channels furmished under the rates and regulations of
this Company's Tanff

Issued ISSDATE Effecive EFFDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Tennessee R.A Tariff No. 1
Section 8
Orginal Page No. 23

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

84  DIGITAL SERVICE (Contd)

8.4.2 Regulations (Cont'd)

c)

d)

Connections to other services furmished by the Company to
different customers

Digital service as furnished by the Company to a customer may be
connected at the premuses of the customer to other services
furmshed by the Company to different customers as specified in
8.4 2 c. preceding

Connection of Channel Service Units

A Channel Service Unit (CSU) must be provided by the customer
to connect a company-provided digital facility

Customer provided termmal equipment for the data over voice
channel must be compatible with the Company provided
termmating equipment at the central office Network mnterface
specifications are contained in BellSouth Techmical Reference
Publication 73548. This publication 1s available from the
Information Exchange Manager, BellSouth Telecommunications,
Inc., Documentation Operations, North W5A1, 35345 Colonnade
Parkway, Birmingham, Alabama 35243.
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(1

@

The Company shall not be responsible for mstallation
operation or maintenance of any termunal equipment or
communications systems provided by a customer Digital
service 1s not represented as adapted to the use of such
equipment or system Where such equipment or system 1s
connected to Company facilities the responsibihity of the
Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities
suitable for Digital service and to the mamtenance and
operation in a manner proper for such digital service The
Company shall not be responsible for:

- the through transmission of signals generated by
such equipment or system, or for the quality of, or
defects 1n such transmission or

- the reception of signals by such equipment or
systems, or

- damage to terminal equipment or communication
systems provided by a customer due to testing

The Company shall not be responsible to the customer 1f
changes m any of the facilities, operations or procedures
of the Company utilized in the provision of Digital service
render any facilities or equipment provided by a customer
obsolete, or require modification or alteration of such
equipment or system or otherwise affects 1ts use or
performance
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€))

“

&)

The Company undertakes to maintamn and repair the
facilities which it furmshes. The customer may not
rearrange, disconnect, remove or attempt to repair any
equipment nstalled by the Company without prior written
consent of the Company

The Company has set a design objective of 99.5 percent
error free seconds at all speeds with Digital service The
objective does not apply when the data over voice channel
option 1s used in a circuit design

The data over voice channel 1s provided subject to the
availabiity of appropnate network facilities and
equipment and subject to the transmussion limitation of
facilities and equipment used by the Company.

d. Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowance

1. The minimum pertod for which service 1s furnished and for which charges
are applicable 1s 3 months.

2. Suspension of service 1s not allowed
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84 DIGITAL SERVICE (Cont'd)

8.4.2 Regulations (Cont'd)

3

When service 1s interrupted due to causes other than the negligence of the
customer, or the failure of facilities furmshed by the customer, a credit
allowance will be made upon request for the portion of the service which
1s affected. For the purpose of determining the amount of allowance every
month 1s considered to have 30 days and only those stations on the
mterrupted portions of a service shall be considered 1n the determining the
number of stations affected. All such credit allowances shall begin from
the time of notice by the customer to the Company that an unsatisfactory
performance level has occurred, provided that the customer promptly
releases the service as requested by the Company to perform testing and
maintenance

a) Interruptions of less than three hours — no credit 1s applied.’

b) Interruptions of three hours or over are credited to the customer at
the proportionate monthly charge n haif-hour multiples for each
half-hour or major fraction thereof of mterruption.

c) Interruption for a period of twenty-four hours or more, credit 1s
allowed or the proportionate part of the monthly charge in
multiples of one day for each twenty-four hours or major fraction
thereof of interruption for the portion of the service affected by the
mnterruption.

Note 1. Two or more mterruptions of 30 minutes or more, during any period up to, but not
including 3 hours, shall be considered as one nterruption.
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

T-1 Service 1s furmshed for Private Line IntraLATA Communications by the
Company.

T-1 Service 1s a service for the transmission of digital signals only and uses only
digital transmission facilities.

T-1 Service provides for the simultaneous two-way transmission of 1sochronous
digital signals at DS1 speeds of 1.544 Mbps where facilities are available.

To ensure satisfactory operation, the terminal equipment provided by the
customer must be compatible with the DS1/1 544 Mbps channel facility provided
by the Company

The rates specified for T-1 Service the Rate Schedule at the end of this taniff,
contemplate the provision of a digital quahty facility utilizing existing interoffice
carrier equipment and/or exchange cable facilities compatible with this service
If such equipment, new facilities or changes to existing facilities are required for
the provision of this service, a special construction charge based on the cost
incurred to make the changes will apply 1n addition to the rates for T-1 Service.

T-1 Service 1s available on a month-to-month basis only.
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8.52 Description of Service

a.

T-1 Service 1s furnished for the simultaneous two-way transmssion of serial,
Bipolar, Return-to-Zero (BPRZ) isochronous digital signals, except where
intentional bipolar violations are introduced by Bipolar with 8 Zero Substitution

(B8ZS) format, at a speed of DS1/1 544 Mbps between two points located within
aLATA

Multi-point service 1s not available.

Connection of DS1/1.544 Mbps communications systems provided by others
may be made on a permissive basis as provided for in Section 8.5.5 the
Company does not represent 1ts T-1 Service as adapted for such connections and
shall not be responsible for the through transmussion of signals, or the quality of
such transmission on such connections

A Channel Service Umit (CSU) or appropriate Termmation Equipment (TE)
provided by the customer 1s required at a customer’s or authorized user’s
premuses to perform such functions as:

1. Proper termination of the service
2. Amplification

3. Signal shaping

4 Remote loop-back

The design, maimtenance and operation of T-1 Service contemplates
communications oniginating and termmating as (1) a customer premises to
customer premuses channel via the Company’s Serving Wire Center, (SWC)
and/or through remote SWCs, (2) a customer premises to the Serving Wire
Center and/or to remote SWCs partial channel (link); or (3) a central office to
central office (interoffice) partial channel (link)

T-1 Service may also be furnished on a link (partial channel) basis when
connected to Centrex Service, T-1 Channel Service, and/or another T-1 Service

All appropriate rates specified in other Tanff sections are m addition to the

monthly rate per package or single channel for T-1 Service specified 1n the Rate
Schedule at the end of this tariff.
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85 T-1 SERVICE (Cont’d)
8.53 Channelized T-1 Service

a. General

1. Channelized T-1 Service 1s an intraLATA digital service, which provides
channehzation capability for the customer in the Company's central office
Channelized T-1 Service 1s provided in packages based on multiple voice
grade channel equivalents (DS0) where 24 voice grade channels are equal
to a DS1. This service provides local channels and/or interoffice channels
for network exchange access

2 Channelization 1s provided by D type channel banks, which are offered
In various basic system capacities and feature activation types
Individual channel services are made available by selecting the specific
feature activation equipment desired mn a basic system. The customer
may channelize all or part of a T-1 Service to activate voice and data
facilities for interconnection with the exchange network, voice grade and
data facilities for private line channels, as well as other T-1 Services

3. This service 1s available within the LATA where appropnate digital
facilities are available as determined by the Company. Service mquiries
will be necessary to determne availability Special Construction charges
for Channelized T-1 Service may apply.

4. Individual channels within a Channelized T-1 Service package may be
connected with service offered mn other sections of this Tanff and
General Subscriber Service Tariff as appropriate The regulations, rates
and charges 1n this Tanff are applicable for the Channelized T-1 Service
component of the customer's end-to-end service. Single channel service
components (non- Channelized T-1 Service links) are subject to the
regulations, rates and charges in their respective tariff sections
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853 Channelized T-1 Service (Cont’d)

a.

General (Cont’d)

5

The customer may activate any number or combination of channels
within a Channelized T-1 Service package within the hmitations set
forth ;n Section 853a7 following. Channels may be activated
comcident with initial service or at any time subsequent to basic system
installation Once activated, a channel 1s subject to a minimum service
period of one month. Features (channels) activated will have a mimmum
service period of one month

The total number of voice grade equivalent channels activated by the
customer may not exceed the capacity of the basic system. Additionally,
there are some necessary restrictions in total system capacities where
certain types of channel services are channelized.

Digital Service channels may require two voice grade equivalent
channels per channel provided by the Company. This would reduce a
system's stated capacity substantially The Company will notify the
customer when a system's capacity 1s affected

Central Office channelization generally provides analog to digital
conversion to permit mdividual exchange services and private line
channel services to be transported over digital high capacity facilities In
addition, this equipment permits connection to required testing facilities
at designated hub or node locations for some digital offerings. This
channelization 1s also intended for use at Company locations where
different high capacity digital network hinks terminate mn the same
central office and must be converted to individual analog or digital
channels before individual service hinks can be cross-connected
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8.53 Channelized T-1 Service (Cont’d)

a.

General (Cont’d)

8

Channelization on a customer's premises 1s provided by the customer.
Customer premises channelization equipment, and any other associated
network termination equipment, is available through vartous vendors,
including Company, on a detariffed basis Jomnt provisioning of
channelized services introduces joint responsibilities between the
customer and the Company.

a) Responsibilities of the Company

)

@

©))

4

)

The Company will endeavor to activate its portion of
joint service 1n a timely manner on the negotiated date to
support nstallation requirements.

The Company will provide the customer with
information regarding the type and the manufacturer of
Central Office (C.0.) channelization equipment to be
used 1n each application.

The Company will hmut 1ts selection of central office
equipment to avoid operational and administrative
difficulties associated with a multi-vendor central office
environment.

The Company reserves the right to change 1ts equipment
vendors should equipment availability, price or
technological advantages make such a change attractive
or necessary

The Company will notify the customer, generally a
mimmum of six months in advance, of any need to
change 1ts central office equipment to allow the
customer sufficient time to respond, make any necessary
changes, and schedule cooperative testing for cutover 1f
required.
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8.5.3 Channelized T-1 Service (Cont’d)

a. General (Cont’d)

b)

Responsibilities of the Customer.

€8] The customer must be prepared to activate his portion of
joint service 1n a timely manner on the negotiated date,
providing testing equipment and personnel to support
nstallation requirements, as may be necessary.

(2) The customer will be responsible for selecting his own
equipment Customer equipment must be compatible
with the Company provided channelization at the central
office.

Trouble resolutions.

The Company will assist the customer 1n resolving any
installation or day-to-day channel service problems. However,
the Company does not assume responsibility for the
compatibility or suitabihity of the customer's equipment
Dispatches to customer premises caused by customer equipment
troubles will result in Trouble Determination Charges to the
customer.

9. Channelized DS1 Service 1s available only with D4 channel bank
equipment or compatible, equivalent equipment.

10. Emerging technology, such as low bit rate voice multiplexing
techniques, may permit additional quantities of individual channels to be
channelized on a single DS1 signal Equipment providing this capability
does not generally assure compatibility between different manufacturers.
Some equipment may not be suitable for data transmission or tandem
network line application Rates, charges, and availability of this
equipment will be negotiated with the customer on an individual case

basis.
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8.5  T-1 SERVICE (Cont’d)

8.5.4 Definitions Applicable to T-1 Service

a

Channel Service Unit

The term “Channel Service Unit” (CSU) denotes equipment provided by the
Customer to terminate a digital facility on the customer or user’s premises

DS1

This denotes a Channel Service expressed 1n terms of its digitally encoded data
bit rate 1n accordance with the North American hierarchy of digital signal levels
It has a 1544 Mbps transmission data rate, and provides for the two-way
simultaneous transmission of 1sochronous timed, Bipolar Return-to-Zero (BPRZ)
bit stream format, except where intentional bipolar violations are introduced by
Bipolar with 8 Zero Substitution (B8ZS) format. Unframed signal formats are
not permitted or compatible with the Company equipment

Digital Local Channel

The term “Digital Local Channel” denotes a path for T-1 Service furmshed from
the demarcation point on a customer’s premuses to their Serving Wire Center.

Interoffice Channel

The term “Interoffice Channel” denotes a path (or paths) for digital transmission
between the Company Serving Wire Centers within a LATA An nteroffice
channel may be furnished in such manner as the Company may elect.
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8 5.5 Application of Rates

a

Digital Local Channels furnished between a Serving Wire Center and the
customer’s premises will be charged at rates based on the first one-half mile and
each additional one-half mile for the airline distance measured between the
customer’s premises and their Serving Wire Center.

Standard T-1 Service 1s provisioned with two cable pairs to include repeaters
depending upon the length of the circuit.

1. A Frame Charge 1s assessed for T-1 Service passing through the frame.

Interoffice Channels furnished between Central Offices will be charged at rates
based on airline distance between the Central Offices.

T-1 Service 1s available on a month-to-month basis

Monthly rates for each Channelized T-1 Service according to the system capacity
of voice grade equivalent channels in each package These rates apply regardless
of the number of voice grade circuit equivalents within each package that are
actually activated by the customer at a pomnt in time. In addition, rates and
charges for associated T-1 Service are applicable

Exchange Network Access 1s provided for channels within each Channelized T-1
Service package at the rates and charges specified in the Rate Schedule at the
end of this tariff and apply for each channel within a package that 1s activated for
Exchange Network Access.

Rates and charges specified in other tanff sections for services such as Touch-
Tone, Custom Calling Service, etc., are mn addition to the monthly rate for
Channelized T-1 Services. Also, the rates and charges for other services that may
be interconnected or extended beyond the basic Channelized T-1 Service, such
as off-premses stations, tie lines, private lines, etc , are 1n addition to the rates
specified in this Tanff for those portions of channel services necessary to
provide end-to-end service.

All usual and applicable Service Connection Charges and Nonrecurring Charges
as specified in other tanffs apply to the activation, move or change of channel
equivalents within Channelized T-1 channel service packages as well as for
installation of the basic system. Suspension of service is not permitted with
Channelized T-1 Service.
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8.5.6 Connections
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

a. Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment, Customer-Provided Dernivation
Equipment and Customer-Provided Communicattons Systems may be connected
to T-1 Service when such connection 1s made in accordance with the provisions
specified 1n Sections 8 5 5 b ,¢c and d. following

b. Responsibility of the Company

1.

The responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing and
maintenance of T-1 Service to a network interface on the customer’s
premises where provision 1s made for the connection of local service.

The Company shall not be responsible for installation, operation, or
maintenance of any terrmnal equipment or communications systems
provided by a customer. T-1 Service 1s not represented as adapted for
the use of such equipment or system. Where such equipment or system
1s connected to the Company facilities, the responsibility of the
Company shall be limited to the furmshing of facilities suitable for T-1
Service and to the maintenance and operation 1n a manner proper for
such digital service. The Company shall not be responsible for:

a) The through transmussion of signals generated by such
equipment or system, or for the quality of, or defects in, such
transmission,

b) The reception of signals by such equipment or systems, or

c) Damage to termimnal equipment or communications systems

provided by a customer or authorized user due to testing.

The Company shall not be responsible to the customer 1f changes 1n any
of the facilities, operations or procedures of the Company utilized in the
provision of T-1 Service render any facilities or equipment provided by a
customer obsolete, or require modification or alteration of such
equipment or system or otherwise affects 1ts use or performance

The Company undertakes to maintain and repair the facilities, which 1t
furmshes The customer may not rearrange, disconnect, remove or

attempt to repair any equipment installed by the Company without prior
written consent of the Company
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856 Connections (Cont’d)

C

Responsibility of the Customer

1

The customer 1s responsible for installing and testing his premises
equipment or facilities to insure that when they are connected to T-1
Service such equipment or facilities are operating properly

The operating characteristics of the customer premises equipment or
facilities shall be such as to not interfere with any of the services offered
by the Company Such use is subject to the further provisions that the
equipment provided by a customer does not* endanger the safety of the
Company employees or the public, damage, require change m or
alteration of the equipment or other facilities of the Company, mterfere
with the proper functioning of such equipment or facilities; impair the
operation of the Company’s facilities or otherwise injure the public m 1ts
use of the Company’s services. Upon notice that the equipment
provided by a customer 1s causing or 1s hikely to cause such hazard or
mterference, the customer shall take such steps as shall be necessary to
remove or prevent such hazard or interference

The customer’s responsibility shall include jomnt testing with the
Company as may be necessary Where regeneration and/or equalization
adjustments or changes may be required to compensate for
rearrangements and/or changes 1n outside plant facilities, the customer
will be responsible for all expenses mncurred n changes to his premises
equipment.
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8.5 T-1 SERVICE (Cont’d)
85.6 Connections (Cont’d)

d. Connection of Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment, Customer-Provided
Dertvation Equipment and Customer-Provided Communications Systems

1 The following provisions will apply.

a) Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment and/or Customer-
Provided Communications Systems may be connected at the
premuses of the customer to T-1 Service.

b) The customer, by use of its own derivation equipment, may
create digital bit streams from a T-1 Service and such equipment
may be connected through a customer-provided CSU/TE

c) The undertaking of the Company 1s to furnish T-1 Service as
ordered and specified by the customer as described in Section
8.5.5.d.4. following

2. Connections to Other Services Furnished by the Company to the Same
Customer

T-1 Service furmished by the Company may be connected by the
customer to another service or to other services furmished by the
Company as specified in Section 8.5.5.b., preceding. Connected services
are subject to all rules and regulations governing the provisioning of
those services.

3. Connections to Other Services Furnished by the Company to Different
Customers

The customer may connect at the premuses of the customer to another
T-1 Service or other services furmished by the Company to different
customers as specified in 8 5 5.b, preceeding. Connected services are

subject to all rules and regulations governing provisioning of those
Services.
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SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

8.56 Connections (Cont’d)

d

Connection of Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment, Customer-Provided

Dertvation Equipment and Customer-Provided Communications Systems
(Cont’d)

4.

Connection of Channel Service Units

A Channel Service Unit (CSU) or appropriate Termination Equipment
(TE) must be provided by the customer to connect the Company-
provided digital facility In accordance with Part 68 of the FCC Rules
and Regulations, new grand fathered CSU/TEs may be connected,
moved, and reconnected until June 30, 1987. After this date, only
registered and previously connected grand fathered CSU/TEs may be
connected to the Company-provided digital facilities

Registered technical requirements for CSU/TEs are outlined in Part 68
of the FCC Rules and Regulations

Clear Channel Capability

a) Clear Channel Capability (CCC) 1s an arrangement that alters a
DS1/1.544 Mbps signal with unconstrained information buts, to
meet pulse density requirements. This will allow a customer to
transport an all zero octet over a T-1 Service channel providing
an available combined maximum 1.536 Mbps data rate. This
arrangement requires the customer signal at the channel
nterface to conform to Bipolar with 8 Zero Substitution (B8ZS)
line code.
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856 Connections (Cont’d)

d. Connection of Customer-Provided Terminal Equipment, Customer-Provided
Derivation Equipment and Customer-Provided Communications Systems
(Cont’d)

b) CCC 1s provided on T-1 Service channels between two customer

designated premises, from a customer premises to their Serving
Wire Center or Node Central Office and/or to a remote Serving
Wire Center or Node Central Office, and from a Central Office
to a Central Office, and 1s subject to the availability of facilities
This optional feature may be ordered at the same time the T-1
Service 1s ordered, or it may be ordered as an additional feature
of an existing T-1 Service.

c) When providing CCC via a DS3 / 44.736 Mbps High Capacity
channel, the DS3 channel must be designated in the Company
records as having Clear Channel Capability prior to the
provisioning of a DS1/1.544 Mbps High Capacity channel with
CCC Customers must agree to out-of-service pertods required to

add this feature to an existing T-1 Service to be optioned for
B8ZS.
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8.57 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowance

a.

The minimum period for which T-1 Service 1s furnished and for which charges
are applicable 1s one month.

Suspension of service 1s not allowed.

When service 1s mterrupted due to causes other than the negligence of the
customer, or the failure of facilities furnished by the customer, a credit
allowance will be made upon request for the portion of the service, which 1s
affected. For the purpose of determining the amount of allowance, every month
1s considered to have 30 days. Only the interrupted portions of the service shall
be considered in determining credits All such credit allowances shall begin from
the time of notice by the customer to the Company that an unsatisfactory
performance level has occurred, provided that the customer promptly releases
the service as requested by the Company to perform testing and maitenance.

1 Interruptions of less than 24 hours - no credits are appled

2. With 1nterruption for a period of 24 hours or more, credit 1s allowed for
the proportionate part of the monthly charge in multiples of one day for
each 24 hours or major fraction thereof of interruption for the portion of
the service affected by the interruption.

8.5.8 Types of Charges

a.

Move Charge

A Move Charge, per T-1 Service, applies for each Digital Local Channel moved
to a new location 1n the same building This Move Charge 1s equal to the sum of
the Digital Local Channel Nonrecurring Charge, Service Change Charge - Inside
Moves, and Premises Visit Charge.

A Move Charge, per T-1 Service, applies for each T-1 Service moved to a new
location 1n the Company territory This Move Charge 1s equal to the sum of all

Nonrecurring Charges applicable to a new T-1 Service installation at the new
location
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85.8 Types of Charges (Cont’d)

b. Service

1

Establishment (Connection) Charges

Service Establishment Charges are applicable, for each T-1 Service
ordered for receiving and recording mformation and/or taking action 1n
connection with a customer’s request, and processing the necessary data
These charges include engineering design, common centralized testing
and coordination.

Service Change Charges are applicable for receiving and recording
information and/or taking action in connection with a customer’s mside
move, transfer of service responsibility request or for processing the
necessary data on an existing T-1 Service. A Service Change Charge 1s
applicable for each T-1 Service associated with the customer request (in
lieu of a Service Establishment Charge)

Premises Visit Charges are applicable, per Digital Local Channel, for the
termination of a channel at a customer’s premises or for inside moves
Only one Premises Visit Charge applies when more than one channel of
the same type 1s terminated or moved at the same premuses at the same
time.

Connection Charges are applicable for the connection and testing of
Digital Local Channels and/or Interoffice Channels The charges
applied are those Nonrecurring Charges contained in Section 8.5.6.a and
b, preceding

8.5.9 Rates and Charges

Rates and Charges for T-1 Service are contained 1n the Rate Schedule at the end of this

tariff
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91 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

911 Basis for Charges

Basis for Charges where the Company furnishes a facihity or service for which a rate or
charge 1s not specified in the Company's tanffs, charges will be based on the costs incurred
by the Company (including return) and may mclude

a. nonrecurring charges;
b recurring charges,
c. termination liabilities, or
d. combinations of a, b, and c.
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9.1 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION (Cont'd)

912 Termation Liability

To the extent that there 1s no other requirement for use by the Company, a termmation
habality may apply for facilities specially constructed at the request of a customer.
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SECTION 9 — SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

92 NON-ROUTINE INSTALLATION AND/OR MAINTENANCE

At the customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's
regular busmess hours, or (in the Company's sole discretion and subject to any conditions 1t may
impose) in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on the cost of labor, material, and
other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply If installation 1s started during
regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours nto
time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or might hours, additional
charges may apply.

93 INDIVIDUAL CASE BASIS (ICB) ARRANGEMENTS

Rates for ICB arrangements will be developed on a case-by-case basis 1n response to a bona fide
request from a customer or prospective customer for service which vary from taniffed arrangements.
Rates quoted in response to such requests may be different for tanffed service than those specified:
for such service in the Rate Schedule ICB rates will be offered to customers 1n writing and will be
made available to simlarly situated customers. A summary of each ICB contract pricing
arrangement offered pursuant to this paragraph will be filed as an addendum to this Tarff within 30
days after the contract 1s signed by both the Company and the customer The following information
will be included 1n the summary:

LATA and type of switch

The V&H distance from the central office to the customer's premises
Service description

Rates and charges

Quantity of circuits

Length of the agreement.

o Ao o
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SECTION 10 - INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN)

101 GENERAL INFORMATION

1011

1012

Description

Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN) 1s a digital architecture that provides an
integrated voice/data capability to the customer premuses facility, utilizing the public
switched network ISDN distributes voice, data video, image and facsimile by a Primary
Rate Interface (PRI). These are serving arrangements, which conform to mternationally
developed, published, and recogmzed standards generated by the International
Telecommunications Union (formerly CCITT)

Definitions

B (Bearer) Channel
The B-channel carrier circuit-switched voice and/or data communications at speeds up to
64 kbps, from the customer’s premuises, over the loop facility, to the central office.

B-Channel Circuit-Switched Data

Circuit-Switched Data provides the capability of making data calls over the public
switched network. Information 1s transmutted the same way as digitized voice Like a
voice call, a circuit switched data call ties up network/system resources for the duration
of the call. Similar to voice, caller ID functionality 1s provided.

D (Delta) Channel

The D-channel carries signaling nformation, at speeds up to 64 kbps, from the
customer’s premises to the central office. The D-channel has both data and signaling
functionality, 1t does not have voice capability.
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SECTION 10 - INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

10.1  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
10.1 2 Definitions (Cont’d)

Primary Rate Interface (PRI)

PRI has a capacity of 1.544 Mbps and has multiple channels: 23 B-channels, and 1 D-
channel, and 1s also known as 23 B+D access. The B-channels carry voice calls, circuit
switched data, and video, while the D-channel handles signaling information Once the
customer has subscribed to PRI service subsequent T1 may be configured with 24 B
channels circuits, subject to D channel signaling capacity

Service Area
Service Area pricing for Single Line ISDN Service includes all customers who.

- Draw dial tone directly from an ISDN switch, or

- Itis within a designated distance, as determined by the Company, from an ISDN
equipped switch.

T1/DS1 Facihty

Ths element 15 the digital facihity transmutting as a rate of 1 544 Mbps. The T1/DS1 signal
provided to the customer’s premuses would have a loss not greater than 16.5 dB.
Construction charges may apply.

Digital Subscriber Loop (DSL)
The digital ISDN connection from the Central Office to the customer’s prenuses.
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SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

101  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

10.1.3 Terms and Conditions

General

1.

The customer will be responsible for the procurement of associated
customer premises equipment (CPE) and will ensure compatibility with
the ISDN digital switch serving the customer. CPE must meet national
IDSN1 (NT1) standards to insure compatibility with ISDN services

ISDN includes a comprehensive 2 B+D package. Within the standard
basic package there 1s little flexibility for customization

ISDN does not offer B-channel packet service capabilities

The Company will terminate ISDN Services at the customer’s demarcation
pont.

Should any change n customer owned inside wiring (including niser cable)
or customer owned CPE require the Company to redesign ISDN service,
the customer shall reimburse the Company for all costs incurred by the
Company for making such a change. Should ISDN service fail due to
customer owned inside wiring or CPE, or power failure, the responsibility
for failure shall be solely that of the customer and the Company shall have
no hability of any kind

The customer 1s responsible for replacement, installation, operation,
maintenance, repair and replacement of all customer owned nside wire
and CPE that the customer uses n connection with this service Premuses
wiring and CPE must be compatible with the Company ’s provision of
ISDN Service.
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SECTION 10 - INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

101  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

10 1.3 Terms and Conditions (Cont’d)

a.

General (Cont’d)

7.

If there 1s an ISDN Service mnterruption which lasts more than 24
consecutive hours after the customer gives the Company notice of such
out-of-service condition, except for problems caused by the customer’s
actions, nside wiring, interface, and/or CPE, an out-of-service credit will
be applied to the customer’s bill This service shall be based on a 30-day
month and shall be calculated by dividing the monthly rate for the service
affected by 30 days and multiplying that daily rate by the number of days,
or major fraction thereof, that the service was interrupted This will be the
customer’s sole remedy. o

This ISDN service offering 1s considered an optional service The ISDN
equipment at the customer’s premise will not function with the loss of
electrical power leaving this service inoperable Service location moves of
ISDN circuits will be treated as a discontinuance and start of new service,
therefore all associated nonrecurring charges will apply.
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SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

10.1  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

10.1.4 Provisioning of ISDN

a

The rates and charges specified for ISDN are applicable only to customers whose

serving central office has been identified by the Company as having ISDN
available

ISDN may be provided to customers from a central office other than their normal
serving office as determined by the Company.

ISDN 1s offered where compatible facilities and equipment are available Service
1s generally considered available for loops 18 kilo feet or less in length Loops
greater than 18 kilo feet in total length must meet ISDN extension technology
design requirements and will be considered available 1f ISDN compatible pair gain
systems are in place or planned to serve the area based on the scheduled placement
of compatible pair gain systems If no pair gamn system 1s i place or planned,
loops greater than 18 kilo feet i length will also be considered available 1if single
line loop extension equipment can be deployed and the loop 1s within the design
limitation of this type of extension equipment If the loop 1s greater than 18 kilo
feet i length, additional engineering and construction charges may apply.

Some products and services are not available and/or compatible with ISDN
therefore the customer should check with the Company for capability before
purchasing and nstalling this service.

10.1 5 Local Calling Areas and Telephone Numbers

a.

If a customer 1s provided service from a designated central office, which 1s not the
customer’s normal serving office, the local calling area for the customer’s ISDN
will be that of the designated ISDN-equipped CO.

Calling areas are subject to change as additional central office become capable of
directly providing ISDN services to the customer’s own and nearby serving area.
Changes to calling areas will affect customer telephone numbers.
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SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

10.1  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

10 1.6 Indemmfication

It 1s the customer’s responsibility to mdemmfy and hold harmless the Company
agamst any and all claims, losses, habilities damages and lawsuits brought by any
nonparty and arising, 1 whole or n part, out of customer’s material breach of this
tanff Indemnification shall include, but 1s not limited to costs and attorney’s
fees

The customer 1s responsible for the content of communications. Where the
customer’s negligence or wrongful actions n using customer owned mstde wire or
CPE, or customer’s commumcations result in any claim or legal action brought by
any nonparty, the customer shall indemnify and hold the Company harmless

10.1.7 Protection of the Network

The Company has the right and option to check the output of any equipment used
1n the transnussion of signals, to or from the customer premuses, for this service.
This includes the Company provided facilities or other compames’ facihities used
n connection with provision of ISDN capabihities, such as CPE

The Company will notify the customer of any deviation form the authorized
transmssion or specifications established 1n provision of the service.

Upon notification by the Company that unauthorized transmissions are present due
to customer equipment of facilities, the customer will correct the situation on an
expeditious basis or service will be disconnected by the Company to protect the
network. The Company shall not be liable for and disclaims liability for losses,
which might be ncurred as a result of disconnecting the service, and disclaims any
and all mmphed warranties, including, without limitation, warranties of
merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose ~ With respect to such
equipment of service, the Company shall not be hable for any ncidental or
consequential damages, including, but not limited to loss, damage, or expense
directly or indirectly anising from the customer’s use of or nability to use this

service or equipment, either separately or mn combination with other services or
equipment.
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SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SYSTEMS DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) (Cont’d)

10.1  GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
10.1 8 Agreement
Fixed period agreements will be priced on an Individual Case Basis (ICB) depending on the
number of years of the agreement. Additions or changes to the agreement will be
negotiable between the Company and the customer.

10.2  PRIMARY RATE INTERFACE (PRI)

10.2.1 General

a. The mimimum configuration 1s a T1 with 23 B +D

b Base configuration includes forty (40) DID numbers, 2 way voice capability and
data capability.

c PRI 1s not available to Commercial Radio Mobile Carriers, Private Mobile Radio
Camers and Interexchange Carriers in therr provision of services to their
customers.

d PRI 1s available for both residential and business customers

e. Monthly rate includes T1 termination, T1 configuration and twenty-four (24), T1
channels.

10.22 Rates and Charges

Rates and charges for Primary Rate Interface are contamed 1n the Rate Schedule at the end
of this taniff.
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 4 — SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES

42.1  Service Order Charge
Resident Business
Primary (for mitial connection of service and connection of additional local exchange lines, local
private lines, tie line, off-premise connections and the like, to an established service )
Primary Service Order Charge $12 00 $15.00
Secondary (modification to an existing service, applicable to each order for a move, change, or
addition
Secondary Service Order Charge $ 9.00 $10 00
422  Central Office Line Connection $ 600 $ 800
423  Outside Line Work $ 7.00 $10 00
424  Premise Visit § 8.00 $1000
42.5  PIC Service Order Charge $10.00 $10 00
42.6 Restoration Charge $15.00 $15.00
427  Number Change Charge $15.00 $1500
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 6 — NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES
61 RESIDENTIAL FLAT RATE SERVICE
Monthly Recurring Charges:
- Each Service Line $11.30
6.2 BASIC BUSINESS LINE SERVICE
Monthly Recurring Charges:

- Each Service Line $37.10
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 6 - NETWORK SWITCHED SERVICES (Cont'd)
62 BASIC BUSINESS LINE SERVICE (Cont’d)

62.2 PBX Trunk Service

Installation Monthly

First Block of 10 D I D. Numbers $500 00 $ 5.00
Each additional group of 10 D LD. Numbers § 15.00 $ 5.00
D ID. Trunk Termmation — Inward Only $100 00 $£50 00

Note (1) Minimum blocks of numbers will be in multiples of ten (10).

2) The preceding rates and charges are mn addition to any other applicable rates and charges
other sections of this tanff

3) The preceding rates and charges apply to blocks of reserved numbers
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 7 — SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES

72

7.3

7.4

75

76

7.7

78

SEASONAL AND VACATION SERVICE

The monthly rate will be based upon 50% of the customer’s total Local Exchange Service,
including, but not limited to extensions mileage charges and directory listings

DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE SERVICE
$0.85 per call (maximum of two requests per call)

TOLL DENIAL
Resident Business

Per month per line restricted $275 $3.25
SPECIAL BILLING NUMBERS

$0 50 per month per special billing number.
$5.00 minimum per month

ROTARY LINE SERVICE

$27.85 per month per line

MULTIPOINT ACCESS POSITION RATES — RECURRING

For each one quarter mile or fraction thereof, circuit measurement $0 75
REMOTE CALL FORWARDING

The following per line charge 1s 1n addition to the applicable business rate for each exchange.

Per feature arranged $23 45
Per additional access facility $23 45
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)

79 MISCELLANEOUS FEATURES

Monthly Rate

Feature Residence Business
Call Forward $275 $375
Call Forward No Answer $1.00 $4.30
Call Forwarding Variable $3.80 $5.25
Call Forwarding-Busy Line $1.00 $4 30
Call Hold $2.75 $3.25
Call Rejection $3 00 $550
Call Return $4.75 £6 20
Call Screening $4 00 $5 25
Call Trace (per successful trace) $4.00 $6.65
Call Waiting $3 00 $4.00
Caller ID — Number Dehvery $6.65 $10.45
Caller ID — Name and Number Delivery $7.55 $10 45
Caller ID Blocking N/C N/C
Preferred Call Forwarding $4.00 $5.70
Priority Ringing $4.00 $5.25
Remote Access Call Forwarding $5.50 $9.50
Repeat Dialing $4.00 $5.70
Special Call Acceptance $4.00 $4.50
Speed Calling 8 $3.60 $5.70
Speed Calling 30 $4.50 $6.20
Teen Line $6.00 NA
Three-Way Calling $4.30 $5.70
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SECTION 7 - SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (Cont'd)
7.10  DIRECTORY LISTINGS
Primary Service Listing

Additional Name Listings
in alphabetical section only

Non-listed Telephone Number per listing

Non-published Telephone Number per histing

Tennessee R.A. Tanff No. 1
Rate Schedule
Origmal Page No 6

N/C

$100
$1.00

$2.00
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES

8.2.1 Voice Grade — Local Channels

Per point of termination

Voice

Type 2230
Type 2231
Type 2432
Type 2434
Type 2435
Type 2261
Type 2462

Data

Type 2463
Type 2464

Monthly
Rate

$28.50
$28 50
$47.50
$1140
$47 50
$28.50
$47 50

$5225
$52 25

First

$290 00
$290 00
$33500
$13500
$310 00
$350 00
$470 00

$350 00
$350.00

Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
Rate Schedule
Ornginal Page No. 7

Nonrecurring

Charge

Additional

$11500
$115.00
$145 00
$ 7800
$130.00
$230.00
$225 00

$155 00
$155 00
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 - PRIVATE LINE SERVICES
8.2.1 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 — Interoffice Channels'

Fixed and Mileage Charges applicable

Fixed Monthly Nonrecurring
Monthly Charge Charge Per
Charge Per Mile Channel

1 thru 8 Miles $33.25 $215 $93 00

9 thru 25 Miles $33.25 $215 $93 00

Over 25 Miles $33.25 $215 $93.00

Note- For method of determining mileage, See Section 8
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES
821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 — Optional Features and Functions
Bridging
Bridging charges are applicable where more than two Local Channels, or one or more
Local Channels and more than one Interoffice Channel, or more than one Local Channel
and one Interoffice Channel are bridged or hubbed at the same wire center. No additional

bridging charges are applicable for Series 1000, Types 1204 and 1205.

Voice Grade Bridges (Senes 2000)

Voice Bridging
Per Port
Monthly Nonrecurring

Rate Charge

Two-Wire (Type 2230) $14 25 $31.00
Data Brnidging
Per Port

Four-Wire (Types 2463 and 2464) $23.75 $34.00
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES
8.2.1 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 — Optional Features and Functions (Cont'd)

Bridging (Cont'd)

Voice Grade Bridges (Series 2000) (Cont'd)

Addressable Arrangement
Monthly Nonrecurring
Rate Charge
Common Equipment $237.50 $245 00
Channel Connections
Per two-wire connection $4 75 $3300
Per four-wire connection $14.25 $38.00
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES

821 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 — Optional Features and Functions (Cont'd)
Signaling Arrangements
Signaling arrangements are provided at the customer's option to arrange channels for
suitable signaling Signaling 1s required on all off-prenuses extension channels and tie line

channels associated with PBX (or similar) systems.

Per local channel

Nonrecurring
Monthly Charge
Rate Initial Subsequent
Ringdown-Manual $1045 $38 00 $170 00
Ringdown-Automatic $ 9.50 $16 00 $ 54.00
E&M Type $ 950 $40.00 $160 00
Type A (0-199 ohms) $ 5.70 $3900 $11000
Type B (200-899 ohms) $570 $35 00 $110.00
Type C (900 or more ohms) $ 285 $12.00 $110.00
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Tennessee R A. Taniff No 1

Rate Schedule
Original Page No. 12

821 Voice Grade Service — Senes 2000 — Optional Features and Functions (Cont'd)

Conditioning (Voice Grade Services)

Conditioning provides more specific transmission characteristics for data services There
are two types of C-conditioning and one type of D-conditioning, each with different
technical specifications. C-Type conditioning controls attenuation distortion and envelope
delay distortion D-Type conditionming controls the signal to C-notched noise ratio and
mtermodulation distortion

Conditioning 1s charged for on a per Local Channel basis for two-point and multi-point
service For two-pont services the parameters apply to each service. For multipoint
services the parameters apply to any path between any two service points

The types and description of the available conditioning options are as follows

Type Conditioning

Frequency Response

Specification

C1 (two-pomt or multipoint)

C2 (two-point or multipoint)

D1 (two-point)

300-2700 Hz,
-2db to +6dB.
1000-2400 Hz,
-1dB to +3dB.
300-3000 Hz,
-3dB to +12dB.

300-3000 Hz,
-3dB to +6dB.
500-2800 Hz,
-dB to +3dB

Envelope Delay Distortion
Specification

1000-2400 Hz, less than
1000 microseconds

1000-2600 Hz, less than 500
microseconds
600-2600 Hz, less than 1500
microseconds
500-2800 Hz, less than 3000
microseconds

Non-Linear Distortion

C-Notched Noise

Noise level 28dB below
signal level

2nd Order 3rd Order
Distortion Distortion
35dB below  40dB below

signal level  signal level
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES
82.1 Voice Grade Service — Series 2000 — Optional Features and Functions (Cont'd)

Conditioning (Voice Grade Services) (Cont'd)

When a channel 1s equipped with Type D1 conditioning and 1s utilized for voice

communications, the Company does not undertake to represent that the channel will be
suitable for such voice transmission

C-Type Conditioning
C-Type Conditioning 1s available for Types 2463 and 2464.

C-Types of Conditioning per local channel

Nonrecurring
Monthly Charge
Rate Initial Subsequent
C1-Type $1.90 $10.00 $62 00
C2-Type $1.90 $2100 $71.00

D-Type Conditioning

D-Type Conditioning 1s available for Types 2463 and 2464.

D-Type Conditioning per local channel

Nonrecurring
Monthly Charge
Rate Initial Subsequent
D1-Type $190 $16 00 $66.00
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES
84 DIGITAL SERVICE
Service wholly within the same LATA

A Digital Local Channel 1s furnished between a Serving Wire Center and the customer's
premuses. The Digital Local Channel charges apply per local channel

Month 24 to 43 to
Nonrecurring Charge to 42 60
First Add’l Month Months Months
2 4 Kbps $340 00 $105 00 $52 25 $46 55 $44.65
4 8 Kbps $340 00 $105.00 $£52.25 $46.55 $44 65
9.6 Kbps $340.00 $105 00 $5225 $46.55 $44 65
19.2 Kbps $340 00 $10500 $£52.25 $46 55 $44 65
56 0 Kbps $340 00 $105 00 $71.25 $61.75 $57.00
64 0 Kbps $340.00 $105 00 $71.25 $6175 $57.00

A Node Channel Termination 1s required at the Company’s Node Central Office. Node
Channel Termination per local channel or equivalent, each.

2.4 Kbps $37 00 $3200 $11.40 $9.30 $9.05
4.8 Kbps $37.00 $32.00 $1140 $9.30 $9.05
9 6 Kbps $37.00 $32 00 $11.40 $9 30 $9 05
19.2 Kbps $37 00 $32 00 $11.40 $9.30 $9.05
56.0 Kbps $37 00 $32.00 $3325 $26.60 $24.70
64 0 Kbps $37.00 $3200 $33.25 $26 60 $24 70
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

84 Digital Service (Cont'd)
Service wholly within the same LATA (Cont'd)
A Digntal Interoffice Channel 1s furnished between a serving wire center and the Node
Central Office or between Node Central Offices. Digital Interoffice mileage 1s portrayed in
bands. The approprate mileage band for calculating interoffice mileage rates 1s determined
by the total length 1n mules of that interoffice channel A flat rate and a rate per mle apply

to each band,' for each Digital Interoffice Channel provided

Interoffice channel, each channel 0-8 miles

Fixed rates applicable
Month 24 to 43 to
Nonrecurring to 42 60
Charge Month Months Months
24,48,9.6 and 19 2 Kbps $76 00 $22 80 $1855 $18.05
56 0 and 64 Kbps $76.00 $45.60 $34.20 $32 30
Each mile or fraction thereof
Month 24 to 43 to
Nonrecurring to 42 60
Charge Month Months Months
24,4.8,96and 19.2 Kbps - $235 $185 $1.70
56.0 and 64 Kbps - $4.60 $3.65 $335
Note 1 Refer to the National Exchange Carrier Association (NECA) Tanff F C C No. 4 for

mileage measurement methodology and wire center Vertical (V) and Horizontal (H)
coordinates

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
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6203 Alabama Highway
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R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC

CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)
84 Dhgital Service (Cont'd)
Service wholly within the same LATA (Cont'd)
Interoffice channel, each channel 9-25 miles

Fixed rates applicable

Tennessee R.A. Tariff No 1

Rate Schedule

Orniginal Page No 16

Month 24 to 43 to
Nonrecurring to 42 60
Charge Month Months Months
24,48,9.6and 19 2 Kbps $76.00 $22 80 $18 55 $18.05
56 0 and 64 Kbps $76 00 $45.60 $34 20 $3230
Each mule or fraction thereof
24,48,96and 19.2 Kbps - $2.30 $1.80 $165
56.0 and 64 Kbps - $4 50 $355 $3.25
Interoffice channel, each channel over 25 miles
Fixed rates applicable
2.4,4.8,9.6 and 19.2 Kbps $76.00 $22 80 $18 55 $18 05
56 0 and 64 Kbps $76.00 $45.60 $34 20 $32.30
Each mule or fraction thereof
2.4,4.8,96and 19 2 Kbps - $2.20 $1.75 $1.60
56 0 and 64 Kbps - $4 40 $345 $315
Note 1: Refer to the National Exchange Carrier Association (NECA) Tanff F C C. No 4 for

mileage measurement methodology and wire center Vertical (V) and Honzontal (H)

coordinates

Issued ISSDATE

Alice Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
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6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736
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R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R.A. Tariff No 1

Rate Schedule
Oniginal Page No. 17

CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)
84 Digital Service (Cont'd)
Optional Features and Functions

Multipoint Service, per local or interoffice channel bridged"?

Month 24 to 43 to
Nonrecurring to 42 60
Charge Month Months Months
24,48,96and 192 Kbps $28 00 $28 50 $22 80 $20.90
56 0 Kbps $28.00 $28.50 $22 80 $20 90
Secondary Channel Capability, per local channel
Each, $225.00 $1710  $13.30 $12.35
Data Over Voice Channel, per local channel
9 6 Kbps'? $570.00 $31 35 $28.50 $26.60
Note 1- Not available at all service locations
Note 2: Nonrecurring charge 1s applicable only 1f Secondary Channel Service 1s being added
subsequent to the installation of basic service
Note 3: This option may be used n lieu of a 9.6 Kbps Digital Local Channel in Section 8 4. All

other Digital Service rate elements apply as appropnate

Issued ISSDATE Effective EFFDATE

Alhce Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1

Rate Schedule
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CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

85 T-1 Service

a A Dagital Local Channel 1s furnished between a Serving Wire Center and the customer’s

premises Rates are based on the airline distance between the Serving Wire Center and
the customer’s premises

1 Standard Local Channel Service, each
Monthly Installation
Rate Charge
a First 1/2 Mile $57.95 $105 00
b Each Additional 1/2 Mile $42 75

or Fraction Thereof

Issued ISSDATE

Effective EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer
R T C Communications, Inc.
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC

CURRENT RATES

SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

8.5 T-1 Service

b

Interoffice Channels furnished between Central Offices. Rates are based upon the airline
distance between central offices.

1 Interoffice Channel, each
Monthly Installation
Rate Charge
$71.25 $310 00
a) Each Airline Mile $42 30

or Fraction Thereof

Clear Channel Capability 1s furnished on a per T-1 Service channel basis

1 Per T-1 Service channel optioned as
Monthly Installation Subsequent
Rate Initial Charge

a) Superframe NC NC $590 00
Format (SF)

b) Extended NC NC $590.00
Superframe
Format (ESF)

Issued ISSDATE

Effective. EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer.

R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736
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R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC Tennessee R A. Tanff No 1

Rate Schedule
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CURRENT RATES
SECTION 8 — PRIVATE LINE SERVICES (Cont'd)

85 T-1 Service

d. Charges for T-1 Service
Installation
Charge

1. Service Establishment Charge

Per T-1 Service $575.00
2. Service Change Charge

Inside Moves, each $350 00

Per Transfers of

Responsibility, each $35000
3. Premises Visit Charge

Per Digital Local Channel

or for an Inside Move, Per Visit $ 3000

Issued- ISSDATE

Effective: EFFDATE
Alice Evitt Bandy

Chief Executive Officer

R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



R T C COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Tennessee R A Tanff No. 1
Rate Schedule
Original Page No 21

CURRENT RATES
SECTION 10 — INTEGRATED SERVICES DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN)

Primary Rate Interface-Integrated Services Digital Network (PRI-ISDN)

Monthly Nonrecurring

Rate Charge
PRI-ISDN Access Line, each $13300 $875 00
PRI-ISDN Interoffice Channel, each channel $ 7125 $125 00
PRI-ISDN Interface, each $380.00 $110.00
PRI - Flat Rate ISDN B-Channels $ 5425 $ 500
Issued ISSDATE Effective: EFFDATE

Alce Evitt Bandy
Chief Executive Officer

R T C Communications, Inc
6203 Alabama Highway
Ringgold, Georgia 30736



